PLANNING
Date: Thursday 27 May 2021
Time: 5.30 pm
Venue: Guildhall, High Street, Exeter
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business.
If you have an enquiry regarding any items on this agenda, please contact Howard Bassett,
Democratic Services Officer (Committees) on 01392 265107.
Because of current social distancing restrictions brought about by the Corona Virus outbreak,
this meeting is only open to those addressing the Committee under the public speaking
provision on the basis of one supporting and one opposing an application.
For the general public the live stream can be viewed here at the meeting start time via
Facebook.

Membership Councillors Morse (Chair), Williams (Deputy Chair), Bialyk, Branston, Buswell, Denning, Hannaford,
Mrs Henson, Lights, Martin, A, Mitchell, M, Moore, D, Sparkes and Sutton

Agenda
Part I: Items suggested for discussion with the press and public present
1

Apologies
To receive apologies for absence from Committee members.

2

Minutes
To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 29 April 2021.

3

Declarations of Interest
Councillors are reminded of the need to declare any disclosable pecuniary
interests that relate to business on the agenda and which have not already been
included in the register of interests, before any discussion takes place on the
item. Unless the interest is sensitive, you must also disclose the nature of the
interest. In accordance with the Council's Code of Conduct, you must then leave
the room and must not participate in any further discussion of the item.
Councillors requiring clarification should seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer
prior to the day of the meeting.

(Pages 5 18)

4

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 EXCLUSION
OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
It is not considered that the Committee would be likely to exclude the press and
public during the consideration of any of the items on this agenda but, if it should
wish to do so, then the following resolution should be passed: RECOMMENDED that, under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for particular item(s) on the
grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in the relevant paragraphs of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Act.

Public Speaking
Public speaking on planning applications and tree preservation orders is permitted at this
Committee. Only one speaker in support and one opposed to the application may speak and the
request must be made by 10 am on the Tuesday before the meeting – 25 May 2021 (full details
available on request from the Democratic Services Officer).
5

Planning Application No. 20/1380/OUT - Land at Redhills, Exwick Lane,
Exeter
To consider the report of the Liveable Exeter Programme Director and Interim
City Development Lead.

6

Planning Application No. 20/1684/OUT - Clydesdale Nash and Birks Grange
Village Halls of Residence, University of Exeter, Exeter
To consider the report of the Liveable Exeter Programme Director and Interim
City Development Lead.

7

(Pages 85
- 106)

List of Decisions Made and Withdrawn Applications
To consider the report of the Liveable Exeter Programme Director and Interim
City Development Lead.

9

(Pages 53
- 84)

Planning Application No. 20/1685/OUT - Land at Rennes Drive, University of
Exeter, Exeter
To consider the report of the Liveable Exeter Programme Director and Interim
City Development Lead.

8

(Pages 19
- 52)

(Pages
107 - 128)

Appeals Report
To consider the report of the Liveable Exeter Programme Director and Interim
City Development Lead.

(Pages
129 - 132)

10

Site Inspection Report
A schedule of site inspections for 2021/22 is attached. Members are reminded of
social distancing requirements when undertaking any site inspections arranged.

(Pages
133 - 134)

Date of Next Meeting
The next scheduled meeting of the Planning Committee will be held on Monday 7 June 2021 at 5.30
pm in the Guildhall.

Find out more about Exeter City Council services by looking at our web site http://www.exeter.gov.uk.
This will give you the dates of all future Committee meetings and tell you how you can ask a question
at a Scrutiny Committee meeting. Alternatively, contact the Democratic Services Officer
(Committees) on (01392) 265107 for further information.
Follow us:
Twitter
Facebook

Individual reports on this agenda can be produced in large print on
request to Democratic Services (Committees) on 01392 265107.
Planning Acronyms used in the Planning Application Reports are set out below:The following list explains the acronyms used in Officers reports:
AH
Affordable Housing
AIP
Approval in Principle
BCIS
Building Cost Information Service
CEMP
Construction Environmental Management Plan
CIL
Community Infrastructure Levy
DCC
Devon County Council
DCLG
Department for Communities and Local Government: the former name of the Ministry
of Housing, Communities & Local Government
DfE
Department for Education
DfT
Department for Transport
dph
Dwellings per hectare
ECC
Exeter City Council
EIA
Environment Impact Assessment
EPS
European Protected Species
ESFA
Education and Skills Funding Agency
ha
Hectares
HMPE
Highway Maintainable at Public Expense
ICNIRP
International Commission on Non-Ionizing Radiation Protection
MHCLG
Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government
NPPF
National Planning Policy Framework
QBAR
The mean annual flood: the value of the average annual flood event recorded in a river
SAM
Scheduled Ancient Monument
SANGS
Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space
SEDEMS
South East Devon European Sites Mitigation Strategy
SPA
Special Protection Area
SPD
Supplementary Planning Document

SPR
TA
TEMPro
TPO
TRO
UE

Standard Percentage Runoff
Transport Assessment
Trip End Model Presentation Program
Tree Preservation Order
Traffic Regulation Order
Urban Extension

Agenda Item 2
PLANNING COMMITTEE
(HELD AS A VIRTUAL MEETING)

Thursday 29 April 2021

Present:Councillor Emma Morse (Chair)
Councillors Bialyk, Branston, Foale, Hannaford, Harvey, Mrs Henson, Mitchell, M, Sparkes,
Sutton and Williams

Also Present
Chief Executive & Growth Director, Deputy Chief Executive, Liveable Exeter Programme
Director and Interim City Development Lead, Principal Project Manager (Development)
(MD), Development Manager Highways and Transport, Senior Highways Development
Management Officer (Exeter), Democratic Services Officer (HB) and Democratic Services
Officer (MD)
22

MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on 29 March 2021 were taken as read, and
approved as correct to be signed by the Chair at the earliest possible convenience.

23

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
No declarations of interest were made by Members.

24

PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 20/1187/FUL - EXMOUTH JUNCTION GATEWAY
SITE, EXETER
The Principal Project Manager (Development) presented the application for the redevelopment of the site and construction of a part 3, part 5 storey building
containing 51 residential units with associated access and servicing arrangements,
car parking, landscaping and infrastructure ancillary to the residential use. (Revised)
The Principal Project Manager (Development) provided a detailed description of the
site in relation to the surrounding area, the site comprising vacant undesignated
“white land” of 0.21 hectares on the corner of the roundabout in front of Morrisons
off Prince Charles Road. The site was in Flood Zone 1 and was potentially
contaminated from its previous use as part of the Exmouth Junction railway yard. In
detail, the proposal was to develop a part 3, part 4, part 5 storey building on the site
comprising 51 apartments (26 no. 1-beds, 20 no. 2-beds and 5 no. 3-beds) with the
apartments Build to Rent housing. There would also be an internal cycle store on
the ground floor of 90 spaces with bin storage provided. The design matched the
architectural principles of the main Exmouth Junction site to the west.
The Principal Project Manager (Development) provided the following additional
information:-

Page 5






a revised ground floor plan had been submitted by the applicant who had
confirmed acceptance of the £60,000 contribution towards playing pitches in the
local area;
Devon County Council had confirmed that a surface water drainage issue would
be covered by a pre-commencement condition;
the additional cycle storage provision had been welcomed by the Exeter Cycling
Campaign;
the applicant had confirmed the provision of balconies for the 1-bed flats in
addition to those proposed for the 2 and 3-bed flats and the recommendation
had been changed to grant delegated authority to officers to agree revised plans
with the applicant to include balconies for the relevant 1-bed flats.

The Principal Project Manager (Development) responded as follows to Members’
queries:




the contaminated land condition does not cover the issue of ordnance, however
the ground conditions report addressed this issue and concluded that the risk of
ordnance was low - a specific condition could be added to address this issue but
the Principal Project Manager (Development) had not considered it necessary;
the site was approximately 50 metres away from the main Exmouth Junction
site;
the type of contamination on the site was likely to be the same as the main
Exmouth Junction site and potentially includes heavy metals, asbestos , total
petroleum hydrocarbons, polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons and ground gases.

Donna Norgate spoke against the application. She raised the following points:








this development should have been included as part of the original planning
application for the Exmouth Junction site as splitting the planning applications
made the original size of development appear smaller;
the height is out of keeping with local properties and Morrisons. The five-storey
element is justified by virtue of the first phase already being approved, but the
height is not compatible with existing properties in the area;
ground water drainage is inadequate and any flooding on Prince Charles Road
would be highly disruptive to City traffic;
several hundred properties will not be bought or rented solely by non-car owners
and visitors and deliveries will also increase congestion and make the road
junctions and access to Morrisons potentially more hazardous. There should be
greater provision for electric vehicles;
inhabitants will be supporting dirty, diesel buses more than clean electric
vehicles;
do not wish to be part of a residents’ parking scheme associated with this
development; and
the development is an unacceptable consequences of the Liveable Exeter
experiment and Exeter residents have not been allowed any meaningful
opportunity on this plan with no genuine consultation on the application itself.

Tomos Pierce spoke in support of the application. He raised the following points:



the application is for the overall regeneration of this former railway yard and
creating a high quality building marking its entrance and exit, the proposal being
complementary to the main site and repeating the same sustainable design
principles;
car dependency has been reduced in response to the Council’s ambition to be
net zero carbon by 2030 by making this part of the overall proposal car-free

Page 6







along with generous provision for cycling. The energy strategy will
deliver carbon savings of just over 21%;
there will be minimal impact of over-shadowing with neighbouring residential
properties as well as the Allotments Association with 35-40 metres separation
from the former and new drainage measures implement to reduce flooding
problems;
balconies, a roof terrace and an on-site play area have been included with
further balconies for the one-bedroomed flats added;
all homes meet the national space standards;
Inclusivity has always been key for our clients Eutopia. The Gateway site will
provide a further valuable contribution to the City’s housing needs, including
20% affordable provision. This will provide 10 more units to add to those on the
main site. As a fully rented scheme, this will ensure that it will appeal to a wide
cross-section of people.

Responding to a Member he advised that no specific noise or light tests had been
undertaken but, as the development was up to 40 metres away from the nearest
residential development, no significant disturbance was anticipated.
Members made the following comments:








the proposal represents over development, with excessive height and there is
likely to be an adverse noise and light impact on neighbouring properties.
Additional car parking in the immediate neighbourhood is likely as it is a car free
development in part and potential contamination could be an issue;
proposal offers much needed additional housing on a brownfield site close to the
city centre;
it offers a variety of housing types, with only one third of the blocks at a five
storey level. It is likely to be attractive to younger cohorts who may not require
car ownership but use public transport links, cycling and walking to the city
centre in line with the city’s Net Zero ambitions and the Council’s active
transport policy; and
affordable housing and infrastructure contributions are particularly welcome, the
former offering alternatives to the private sector market;
it is a sustainable development in line with the National Planning Practice
Guidance (NPPG); and
it is not part of the City Council’s Liveable Exeter Programme as it is a private
development.

The recommendation was for approval, subject to the completion of a Section 106
Agreement and the conditions as set out in the report together with an additional
recommendation to grant delegated authority to officers to agree revised plans with
the applicant to include balconies for the relevant 1-bed flats.
The recommendation was moved and seconded and carried.
RESOLVED that,
A) subject to the completion of a Section 106 Agreement under the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 (As amended) to secure the following: 20% of the dwellings will be affordable private rented (10 dwellings) in
accordance with the glossary definition of Affordable housing for rent in
Annex 2 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2019);

Page 7

 £27,387.65 financial contribution for 0.2 of a dwelling towards off-site
affordable housing;
 £88,968 towards secondary education provision;
 £63,750 towards improvements towards the E4 strategic cycle route/Stoke
Hill roundabout;
 £60,000 towards provision and improvement of off-site playing fields; and
 a contribution of £25,000 towards Traffic Regulation Orders unless prior
payment of the contribution for the Orders being made in respect of the
planning permission agreed for the Old coal Yard, Exmouth Junction, Mount
Pleasant Road, Exeter – 19/0650/OUT.
All Section 106 contributions to be index linked from the date of resolution.
the Assistant Service Lead City Development be authorised to APPROVE the
application for the re-development of the site and construction of a part 3, part 5
storey building containing 51 residential units with associated access and servicing
arrangements, car parking, landscaping and infrastructure ancillary to the residential
use. (Revised), subject to agreeing revised plans with the applicant to include
balconies for the relevant 1-bed flats which will be subject to prior consultation with
the Chair of the Planning Committee on this matter and subject also to the following
conditions:1.

Standard Time Limit – Full Planning Permission

The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the
expiration of three years beginning with the date on which this permission is
granted.
Reason: To comply with Section 91(1)(a) of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 (as amended).
2.
Approved Plans (NB. Some plans to be revised to show balconies added to
the 1-bed flats where feasible)
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with
the approved plans listed below, unless modified by the other conditions of this
consent:
 Site Location Plan (20001 (01)-S-001)
 Proposed Ground Floor Plan (20001 (03)-P-0G0 Rev 03)
 Proposed 1st + 2nd Floor Plan (20001 (03)-P-001 Rev02)
 Proposed 3rd Floor Plan (20001 (03)-P-003 Rev 02)
 Proposed 4th & 5th Floor Plan (20001 (03)-P-004 Rev 02)
 Proposed Roof Plan (20001 (03)-P-0R0 Rev 02)
 Proposed SE Elevation (20001 (03)-E-001 Rev 02)
 Proposed SW Elevation (20001 (03)-E-002 Rev 02)
 Proposed West Elevation (20001 (03)-E-003 Rev 02)
 Proposed NE Elevation (20001 (03)-E-004 Rev 02)
 Swept Path Analysis – Large Refuse (VN201674-TR103)
 Indicative Landscaping (20001 (90)-P-0G0 Rev 01)
Reason: To ensure the development is constructed in accordance with the
approved plans.
Pre-commencement Details
3.

Construction and Environmental Management Plan (CEMP)

Page 8

No development (including ground works) or vegetation clearance works shall take
place until a Construction and Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The CEMP
shall be prepared in accordance with specifications in clause 10.2 of BS
42020:2013 (or any superseding British Standard) and shall include the following:
a)
b)
c)
d)

e)

f)
g)

Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities.
Identification of “biodiversity protection zones”.
Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working
practices) to avoid or reduce impacts during construction.
The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity
features. This includes the use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and
warning signs.
The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be present
on site to monitor works to ensure compliance with the CEMP, and the
actions that will be undertaken.
Responsible persons and lines of communication.
The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works (ECoW)
or similarly competent person.

The approved CEMP shall be adhered to and implemented throughout the
construction period of the development strictly in accordance with the approved
details.
Reason: To protect the biodiversity of the site including protected species, taking
into account the recommendations of the submitted Ecological Impact Assessment.
A CEMP is required before any development begins to ensure that appropriate
mitigation measures are identified and carried out during the construction phase.
4.

Reptile Mitigation Strategy

No development (including ground works) or vegetation clearance works shall take
place until a Reptile Mitigation Strategy has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Strategy shall be carried out by a
suitably qualified ecologist and be based on the ecological mitigation and avoidance
measures for reptiles contained in the submitted Ecological Impact Assessment
(Burton Reid Associates, August 2020). The Strategy shall be adhered to and
implemented in full.
Reason: To ensure that reptiles on the site will not be harmed by vegetation
clearance works or other construction activities. These details are required precommencement as specified to ensure that an appropriate strategy is in place to
protect reptiles on the site before construction works begin.
5.

Contaminated Land

No development shall take place on site until a full investigation of the site has
taken place to determine the extent of, and risk posed by, any contamination of the
land and the results, together with any remedial works necessary, have been
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The building(s) shall not be
occupied until the approved remedial works have been implemented and a
remediation statement submitted to the Local Planning Authority detailing what
contamination has been found and how it has been dealt with together with
confirmation that no unacceptable risks remain.
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the occupants of the building hereby
approved. This information is required before development commences to ensure
that any remedial works are properly considered and addressed at the appropriate
stage.

Page 9

6.

Detailed Permanent Surface Water Drainage Scheme

No development hereby permitted shall commence until the following information
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:
a) Soakaway test results in accordance with BRE 365 and groundwater
monitoring results in line with Devon County Council groundwater monitoring
policy.
b) Evidence that there is a low risk of groundwater re-emergence downslope of
the site from any proposed soakaways or infiltration basins/tanks if
infiltration based techniques are to be proposed.
c) A detailed drainage design should be submitted which encompasses above
ground sustainable drainage systems and the use of FEH rainfall data as
well as the results of the information submitted in relation to (a) and (b)
above.
d) Detailed proposals for the management of surface water and silt runoff from
the site during construction of the development hereby permitted.
e) Proposals for the adoption and maintenance of the permanent surface water
drainage system.
f)

A plan indicating how exceedance flows will be safely managed at the site.

g) Evidence there is agreement in principle from SWW for the connection into
their system.
No building hereby permitted shall be occupied until the works have been approved
and implemented in accordance with the details under a) - g) above.
Reason: The above conditions are required to ensure the proposed surface water
drainage system will operate effectively and will not cause an increase in flood risk
either on the site, adjacent land or downstream in line with SuDS for Devon
Guidance (2017) and national policies, including NPPF and PPG. The condition
should be pre-commencement since it is essential that the proposed surface water
drainage system is shown to be feasible before works begin to avoid redesign /
unnecessary delays during construction when site layout is fixed.
7.

Tree Protection

No materials shall be brought onto the site or any development commenced, until
the developer has erected tree protective fencing to protect trees and shrubs on or
adjacent to the site to be retained, in accordance with a plan that shall previously
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
This plan shall be produced in accordance with BS 5837:2012 - Trees in Relation to
Design, demolition and construction. The developer shall maintain such fences to
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority until all development the subject of
this permission is completed. The level of the land within the fenced areas shall not
be altered without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority. No
materials shall be stored within the fenced area, nor shall trenches for service runs
or any other excavations take place within the fenced area except by written
permission of the Local Planning Authority. Where such permission is granted, soil
shall be removed manually, without powered equipment.
Reason: To ensure the protection of the trees/shrubs during the carrying out of the
development. This information is required before development commences to
protect trees during all stages of the construction process.

Page 10

8.

Construction Method Statement

No development (including ground works) or vegetation clearance works shall take
place until a Construction Method Statement has been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Statement shall provide for:
a) The site access point(s) of all vehicles to the site during the construction
phase.
b) The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors.
c) The areas for loading and unloading plant and materials.
d) Storage areas of plant and materials used in constructing the development.
e) The erection and maintenance of security hoarding, if appropriate.
f) Wheel washing facilities.
g) Measures monitor and control the emission of dust and dirt during
construction (including, but not limited to, the measures recommended in
Table 17 of Syntegra Consulting’s Air Quality Assessment for Exmouth
Junction Gateway, Exeter (date:18/08/2020)).
h) No burning on site during construction or site preparation works.
i) Measures to monitor and minimise noise/vibration nuisance to neighbours
from plant and machinery.
j) Construction working hours and deliveries from 8:00 to 18:00 Monday to
Friday, 8:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays or Bank
Holidays.
k) No driven piling without prior consent from the Local Planning Authority.
The approved Statement shall be strictly adhered to throughout the construction
period of the development.
Reason: To ensure that the construction works are carried out in an appropriate
manner to minimise the impact on the amenity of neighbouring uses and in the
interests of the safety and convenience of highway users. These details are
required pre-commencement as specified to ensure that building operations are
carried out in an appropriate manner.
9.

Waste Audit Statement

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, a Waste Audit
Statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. This statement shall include all information outlined in the waste audit
template provided in Devon County Council's Waste Management and
Infrastructure Supplementary Planning Document. The development shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved statement.
Reason: To minimise the amount of waste produced and promote sustainable
methods of waste management in accordance with Policy W4 of the Devon Waste
Plan and the Waste Management and Infrastructure Supplementary Planning
Document. These details are required pre-commencement as specified to ensure
that building operations are carried out in a sustainable manner.
Pre-specific Works
10.

Energy Performance Standard

Prior to the construction of the foundations of the building hereby permitted, the
Design SAP calculation(s) of the dwelling(s) shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority, which shall demonstrate that the dwelling(s)
will achieve a 19% reduction in CO2 emissions in relation to the level required to
meet the 2013 Building Regulations. No individual dwelling shall be occupied until

Page 11

the As-Built SAP calculation of the dwelling has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority to confirm that a 19% reduction in CO2
emissions in relation to the level required to meet the 2013 Building Regulations has
been achieved.
Reason: To ensure the dwelling(s) will achieve the energy performance standard
required by Policy CP15 of the Core Strategy, taking into account the Written
Ministerial Statement on Plan Making (25 March 2015) requiring local planning
authorities not to exceed the equivalent of the energy requirement of Level 4 of the
Code for Sustainable Homes, in the interests of reducing greenhouse gas
emissions and delivering sustainable development. (Advice: Please see Paragraph:
012 ID: 6-012-20190315 of the National Planning Practice Guidance on Climate
Change for background information.)
11.

Bird Nesting Season

No tree works or felling, cutting or removal of hedgerows or other vegetation
clearance works shall be carried out on the site during the bird nesting season from
March to September, inclusive. If this period cannot be avoided, these works shall
not be carried out unless they are overseen by a suitably qualified ecologist and the
reasons why have previously been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority, including the date of the intended works and the name
and contact details of the ecologist. If nesting birds are found or suspected during
the works, the works shall cease until the ecologist is satisfied that the nest sites
have become inactive.
Reason: To protect nesting birds in accordance with saved Policy LS4 of the Exeter
Local Plan First Review and paragraphs 174 and 175 of the NPPF (2019).
12.

Materials

Prior to the construction of the external walls of the building hereby permitted,
samples and/or product specification sheets, including confirmation of colour, of the
external facing materials and roof materials of the building shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The building shall be
constructed in accordance with the approved materials.
Reason: In the interests of good design and the character of the area, in
accordance with Policy CP17 of the Core Strategy, Policy DG1 of the Exeter Local
Plan First Review and paragraph 127 of the NPPF (2019).
13.

Nesting and Roosting Boxes

Prior to the construction of the external walls of the building hereby permitted,
details of the provision for nesting birds and roosting bats in the built fabric of the
building shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved details shall be fully implemented as part of the
development and retained thereafter.
Reason: To enhance biodiversity on the site in accordance with the Residential
Design Guide SPD (Appendix 2) and paragraph 175 of the NPPF (2019).
14.

External Lighting

No external lighting shall be installed on the site unless details of the lighting have
previously been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority (including location, type and specification). The details shall demonstrate
how the lighting has been designed to minimise impacts on local amenity and
wildlife (including isoline drawings of lighting levels and mitigation if necessary). The
lighting shall be installed in accordance with the approved details.

Page 12

Reason: To ensure lighting is well designed to protect the amenities of the area and
wildlife.
15.

Details of Building Services Plant

Prior to installation, details of all building services plant shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include
location, design (including any compound) and noise specification. The plant shall
not exceed 5dB below the existing background noise level at the site boundary. If
the plant exceeds this level, mitigation measures shall be provided to achieve this in
accordance with details previously submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. (All measurements shall be made in accordance with BS
4142:2014).
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity.
Pre-occupation
16.

Detailed Landscaping Scheme

Prior to the occupation of any dwelling hereby permitted, a Detailed Landscaping
Scheme for the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The Scheme shall include details of hard and soft landscaping,
including all boundary treatments. The soft landscaping shall take into account the
recommended ecological enhancements in the submitted Ecological Impact
Assessment (Burton Reid Associates, August 2020). The hard landscaping shall be
constructed as approved prior to the occupation of the development. The soft
landscaping shall be planted in the first planting season following the occupation of
the development or completion of the development, whichever is the sooner, or in
earlier planting seasons wherever practicable, and any trees or plants which within
a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are removed or
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting
season with others of similar size and species.
Reason: In the interests of good design in accordance with saved Policy DG1 of the
Exeter Local Plan First Review and paragraphs 127 and 174 of the NPPF (2019).
17.

Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP)

Prior to the first occupation or use of the development hereby permitted, a
Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The content of the LEMP shall
be prepared in accordance with the specifications in clause 11.1 of BS 42020:2013
(or any superseding British Standard) and shall include the following:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)

Description and evaluation of features to be managed.
Ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management.
Aims and objectives of management.
Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives.
Prescriptions for management actions.
Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of
being rolled forward over a five year period).
g) Details of the body or organisation responsible for implementation of the
plan.
h) On-going monitoring and remedial measures for biodiversity features
included in the LEMP.

Page 13

The LEMP shall also include details of the legal and funding mechanism(s) by which
the long-term implementation of the plan will be secured by the developer with the
management body(s) responsible for its delivery.
All post-construction site management shall be undertaken in accordance with the
LEMP.
Reason: In the interests of biodiversity and good design in accordance with Policy
CP16 of the Core Strategy, saved Policies LS4 and DG1 of the Local Plan First
Review and paragraphs 127 and 175 of the NPPF. Also taking into account the
recommendations of the submitted Ecological Impact Assessment.
18.

Noise Mitigation and Ventilation Standards

Prior to occupation of the development, the noise mitigation and ventilation
standards set out in Syntegra Consulting’s Noise Impact Assessment for Exmouth
Junction Gateway, Exeter (date: 18/08/2020) shall be implemented in full. The
measures shall be maintained thereafter unless alternative noise mitigation
measures are implemented in accordance with details submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority, which shall be maintained thereafter.
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity.
19.

S278 Agreement

The development shall not be occupied or brought into use until a Section 278
Highways Agreement has been entered into in order to secure the necessary works
to the public highway. The s278 works shall include a pedestrian crossing of the
road to the south of the site adjacent to the pedestrian entrance to the site and the
footpath widening to the south. The works shall be implemented prior to the
occupation of the development.
Reason: In the interests of pedestrian safety and promoting sustainable modes of
travel taking into account the desire line between the development and
supermarket, in accordance with Policy CP9 of the Core Strategy, saved Policies
T1, T3 and DG1(a) of the Exeter Local Plan First Review, and paragraphs 108 and
110 of the NPPF (2019).
20.

Vehicle Access

Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, the vehicular access
as shown on drawing number 20001 (03)-P-0G0 Rev 03 (‘Proposed Ground Floor
Plan’) shall be provided in accordance with a plan previously submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan shall include visibility
splays to protect the users of the shared use pedestrian/cycle path to the south. The
vehicular access shall be maintained thereafter and the visibility splays shall be kept
free of visual obstructions above 600mm.
Reason: To provide a safe and suitable access to the site in accordance with
paragraphs 108 and 110 of the NPPF (2019).
21.

Cycle Parking

Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, the internal and
external cycle parking as shown on the approved plans shall be provided in
accordance with details of the cycle parking (type of racks and weather protection)
previously submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
cycle parking shall be maintained at all times thereafter.
Reason: To encourage cycling as a sustainable mode of transport in accordance
with saved Policy T3 of the Exeter Local Plan First Review and the Sustainable
Transport Supplementary Planning Document (March 2013).

Page 14

22.

Car Parking

Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, the disabled car
parking space and the EV Car Club space as shown on drawing number 20001
(03)-P-0G0 Rev 03 (‘Proposed Ground Floor Plan’) shall be provided. The EV Car
Club space shall be provided in accordance with details of the vehicle charging
point and car club, i.e. who the operator will be and how it will be managed,
previously submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
These facilities shall be maintained at all times thereafter unless otherwise agreed
in writing with the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the disabled parking space and EV Car Club space are
delivered and available for residents of the development in the interests of
sustainable travel.
23.

Travel Plan

No part of the development shall be occupied until a Travel Plan (including
recommendations and arrangements for monitoring and review) has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the
Local Highway Authority. Thereafter the recommendations of the Travel Plan shall
be implemented, monitored and reviewed in accordance with the approved
document, or any amended document subsequently approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To encourage travel by sustainable means, in accordance with saved
Policy T3 of the Local Plan First Review and the Sustainable Transport SPD.
24.

Travel Pack

Prior to the occupation of any dwelling in the development on a continuing basis, a
travel pack shall be provided to the future resident(s) of the dwelling informing them
of the car-free status of the development and that they will not be entitled to
residents parking permits to park on local streets, and the walking and cycling
routes and facilities, public transport facilities including bus stops, rail stations and
timetables, car clubs and electric bike hire facilities available in the area, the form
and content of which will have previously been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that all residents of the development are aware of its car free
status and the available sustainable travel options.
25.

Play Space

Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, the Play Space as
shown on drawing number 20001 (03)-P-0G0 Rev 03 (‘Proposed Ground Floor
Plan’) shall be provided in accordance with details of the play equipment previously
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The play
equipment and Place Space shall be maintained at all times thereafter. The Play
Space shall be accessible at all times accept for times when the play equipment is
being maintained or replaced from damage or general wear and tear.
Reason: To ensure the play space is delivered and available for residents of the
development in the interests of residential amenity.
26.

LEAP

The development shall not be occupied until a Locally Equipped Area for Play
(LEAP) has either been provided on the ‘Village Green’ as part of the development
with a resolution to approve under application number 19/0650/OUT (‘Exmouth

Page 15

Junction’), or the details of the LEAP and timing of its delivery have been approved
by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To accord with saved Policy DG5 of the Local Plan First Review and the
Fields in Trust guidance document ‘Guidance for Outdoor Sport and Play – Beyond
the Six Acre Standard England’ (November 2020).
further RESOLVED that,

B) the Assistant Service Lead City Development be authorised to REFUSE
planning permission if the legal agreement under Section 106 Agreement
under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990(as amended) is not
completed by 26 September 2021 or such extended time as agreed by the
Assistant Service Lead City Development for the reasons set out below:In the absence of a Section 106 legal agreement in terms that are satisfactory to
the Local Planning Authority being completed within an appropriate timescale,
and which makes provision for the following matters:






20% of the dwellings will be affordable private rented (10 dwellings) in
accordance with the glossary definition of Affordable housing for rent in
Annex 2 of the NPPF (2019);
£27,387.65 financial contribution for 0.2 of a dwelling towards off-site
affordable housing;
£88,968 towards secondary education provision;
£63,750 towards improvements towards the E4 strategic cycle route/Stoke
Hill roundabout;
£60,000 towards provision and improvement of off-site playing fields; and
a contribution of £25,000 towards Traffic Regulation Orders unless prior
payment of the contribution for the Orders being made in respect of the
planning permission agreed for the Old coal Yard, Exmouth Junction, Mount
Pleasant Road, Exeter – 19/0650/OUT.

the proposal is contrary to Exeter Local Development Framework Core Strategy
2012 Objectives 1, 3, 5, 6 and 10, and policies CP7, CP9, CP10, CP16 and
CP18, Exeter Local Plan First Review 1995-2011 saved policies L4, T1, T3, LS2
and LS3, Exeter City Council Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning
Document 2014, Exeter City Council Sustainable Transport Supplementary
Planning Document 2013 and Exeter City Council Public Open Space
Supplementary Planning Document 2005.

25

LIST OF DECISIONS MADE AND WITHDRAWN APPLICATIONS
The report of the Liveable Exeter Programme Director and Interim City
Development Lead was submitted.
RESOLVED that the report be noted.

26

APPEALS REPORT
The schedule of appeal decisions and appeals lodged was submitted.
RESOLVED that the report be noted.

Page 16

(The meeting commenced at 5.30 pm and closed at 6.24 pm)

Chair

Page 17

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
Planning Committee Report: 20/1380/OUT
1.0

Application Number:
Applicant name:
Proposal:

Site address:
Registration Date:
Link to application:

Case Officer:
Ward Members:

20/1380/OUT
ALD Development
Outline planning application for up to 80 dwellings and
associated infrastructure (All matters reserved except
for access).
Land at Redhills, Exwick Lane, Exeter.
19 October 2020
http://publicaccess.exeter.gov.uk/onlineapplications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summar
y&keyVal=QIGF3DHBK1C00
Paul Jeffrey
Cllr Bialyk, Cllr Pearson and Cllr Sutton (Exwick
Ward)

REASON APPLICATION IS GOING TO COMMITTEE: Major application with
over 10 emails/correspondence of objection.
2.0

Summary of Recommendation: REFUSE permission as the site lies within an
area of important landscape setting.

3.0

Reason for the recommendation: as set out in Section 18









Site lies within an area of landscape as designated in the Core Strategy.
Paragraph 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out
that permission should be granted for sustainable development unless
specific policies in the NPPF indicate otherwise.
The development would make a positive contribution to the Council’s 5
year housing land supply.
The scheme will provide 35% affordable houses.
Concerns about the sustainability given its location and topography of the
site have been overcome by amended plans and financial contributions to
highway/accessibility improvements.
Planning assessment has concluded that the benefits of the proposed
housing does not outweigh the harmful impact the development would
have on the landscape character of the area.

Page 19

4.0

Table of key planning issues
Issue
Principle of development

Affordable Housing

Access/Impact on Local Highways

Scale, design, impact on character
and appearance

Ecological Issues/Habitat Mitigation

Sustainable Construction and Energy
Conservation
Economic benefits

CIL/S106

Conclusion
Site lies within an area of landscape
setting as allocated in the Local Plan
First Review and Core Strategy where
certain types of development are
identified but does not include
residential. Policy CP16 protects the
character and local distinctiveness of
areas of the city including hills to the
north and northwest.
35% affordable housing forms part of
the proposal and will be secured
through a Section 106 Agreement.
This accords with Policy CP7.
The County Highway officer still
remains concerned about the
sustainability given its location and
topography of the site however
planning condition and a financial
contribution towards footways in the
areas have overcome these concerns.
The submitted illustrative layout and
Design & Access Statement indicate
that the future development will have
an adverse impact on the character of
the locality.
Concern remains as to the loss of
existing trees and hedgerows and the
impact on wildlife in particular
protected species however not to an
extent which would warrant refusal.
The appropriate energy performing
standards to be secured through
condition.
Affordable housing and financial
contribution towards education/GP
provision, and jobs in construction
related industries.
CIL generated and S106 to secure
relevant benefits identified above.

Page 20

5.0

Description of Site
The application proposes outline planning permission for development on land to
the east of Redhills, south of Exwick Lane. An existing footpath is located to the
eastern edge of the site, which backs onto properties in Cheltenham Close. The
southern boundary of the site is bounded by Newbery scrap yard on the western
side; an existing mature wooded area and behind properties in St Peters Mount.
The boundary with Teignbridge District Council lies approximately 150 metres to
the north across open fields beyond Exwick Lane. The site (4.1 hectares)
comprises of open fields currently used for horse grazing. The boundaries of the
site are demarcated by existing hedgerows with some mature trees. The site
undulates but in general the highest sections of the site are located along its
northern edge alongside Exwick Lane sloping down towards the south adjacent
to Newbery’s scrap yard, the existing woodland and properties in St Peters
Mount. The site sits on an east-west ridge that forms the skyline in various
viewpoints in the surrounding area.
Two fields gates currently access the site from Redhills immediately north of
Newbery scrap yard and along Exwick Lane, which serves storage buildings. The
proposed vehicular access to the site would be from a newly constructed one
onto Redhills. This would be located on the brow of the hill as Redhills drops
steeply towards Exeter. Since the original submission, the applicant has included
highway improvements to Redhills with the provision of a new footway. Currently
there is no pedestrian footways to the site between the Redhills junction with St
Peters Mount and Barley Villas, a distance of over 200 metres. This section of
road is characterised by steeply banked hedgerows with mature trees. The
creation of the proposed new footway would result in the remodelling of the
existing bank and removal of existing mature trees.
Mature hedgerows or trees form the boundary of the site and in some instances
will require removal to achieve access onto Exwick Lane and the existing
footpath on the eastern boundary of the site. This existing footpath runs from
Exwick Lane to the north alongside the eastern edge of the site backing onto
existing properties in Cheltenham Close eventually connecting with St Peters
Mount and ultimately Gloucester Road to the south. The existing footpath is very
steep and unsuitable for pushchair uses or disabled accessibility.
The site is located beyond the built up urban area of Exwick to the south. To the
north of the site beyond Exwick Lane are steep sloping open fields which are
within Teignbridge District Council’s areas. It is understood that this area has
been the source of development interest but no planning permission currently
exists for the development of this land and therefore remains open countryside.

Page 21

6.0

Description of Development
This outline planning application for residential development is for up to 80
dwellings, with all matters reserved except for access. The accompanying
illustrative plan indicates that the future development would comprise of mainly
semi-detached and detached properties with some small rows of terraced
properties. All dwellings are proposed to be either two or two and a half storeys
in height. The scheme proposes a total of 35% affordable housing. This would
result in 52 market houses and 28 affordable units being provided, if the full 80
units were approved at the reserved matters stage. The illustrative layout
indicates that there would be a central main road running through the site along
the ridge with the sole vehicular access from Redhills. The proposed dwellings
would essentially front onto this access road in most instances creating
properties with either north facing or south facing gardens. The application
includes the provision of two Local Areas of Play (LAP) and a Local Equipped
Area for Play (LEAP) within the site. In addition, an area of open space is
proposed to be located in the southern eastern corner of the site, which will also
provide for a storm attenuation basin. An additional, storm attenuation basin is
located on the western edge of the site.
The sole vehicular access is shown in a central location on the western side of
the site onto Redhills. The amended access plan shows a 6 metre wide
accessway with a 2.5m by 45 metre visibility splay. This would involve the
removal of a significant section of hedgerow fronting Redhills, which is proposed
to be replaced but set further back into the site. In addition, since the original
submission was made a new footway is proposed along the eastern side of
Redhills, which will connect the existing footway from the junction with St Peters
Mount to alongside the Newbery scrap yard entrance and to the site entrance.
This is achieved through the widening of Redhills on the western side. The
highway changes would require the removal of the existing hedgerow
bank/mature trees, remodelling of the bank and the replanting of the bank with
new trees made up of oak, field maple and scots pine. The road arrangement
would be altered to provide a give and take highway layout along this section of
the highway.

7.0

Supporting information provided by applicant
The application is accompanied by the following supporting information:








Planning Statement
Design & Access Statement
Illustrative Layout Plan
Transport Statement
Flood Risk and Drainage Strategy
Ecological Impact Assessment
Landscape Visual Impact Assessment (and subsequent addendum)

Page 22






8.0

Access Plan
Land Classification Report
Affordable Housing Statement
Tree Survey & Arboricultural Impact Assessment (and subsequent
addendum)
Geo-Environmental Desk Study

Relevant Planning History
No previous applications have been made for this site.

9.0

List of Constraints
Within landscape setting
Majority of the site is designated as a site of local interest for nature conservation
(SLINC)
Smoke Control Area

10.0

Consultations
All consultee responses can be viewed in full on the Council’s website.
Teignbridge District Council raise no comments at this time and is content for
Exeter City Council to determine this application in accordance with your own
professional Officer’s recommendation.
Natural England agree with the conclusions of the revised Appropriate
Assessment, that provided the appropriate financial contribution towards the
South East Devon European Sites Mitigation Strategy is secured in respect of the
Exe Estuary SPA/Ramsar site, there will be no adverse effect on the integrity of
the European site.
NHS Devon Clinical Commissioning Group comment that the application has
been reviewed from a primary care perspective and informed by the Devon
Health Contributions Approach: GP Provision. In preparing this response, it is
noted that the Exeter City Council Core Strategy Document 2012 under “Meeting
the Community’s Needs” states that:
“The objectives of the Sustainable Community Strategy and other strategies and
programmes can be delivered, at least in part, through developer contributions
sought for social and community infrastructure, including education/skills, health,
culture, sports and leisure facilities. Examples of areas where developer
con…………improving access to health and social care (Exeter Sustainable
Community Strategy/ Exeter Primary Care Trust Estate Strategy/Royal Devon
and Exeter (NHS) Trust Building Programme);”
The CCG’s concern is that the combined surgeries of St Thomas’ Health Centre
and Foxhayes Surgery are already at or over capacity within their existing

Page 23

footprints therefore it follows that to have a sustainable development in human
health terms the whole local healthcare provision will require review. The
surgeries already have 42,470 patients registered between them and this new
development will increase the local population by a further 182 persons.
Taking this into account and drawing upon the document “Devon Health
Contributions Approach: GP Provision document” which was agreed by NHS
England and Devon County Council, this will result a request for £551 per
dwelling which based on 80 units require a total contribution of £40,858 towards
the mitigation of the pressures on local healthcare facility.
Royal Devon & Exeter NHS Foundation Trust have submitted a lengthy
consultation response setting out the background and justification behind a
request for a S106 financial contribution of £103,149 towards the gap in funding
created by each patient from this development. Without the requested
contribution, the access to adequate health services is rendered more vulnerable
thereby undermining the sustainability credentials of the proposed development
due to conflict with NPPF and Local Development Plan policies as explained in
the attached document.
Response - The request from the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation
Trust for a financial contribution to be secured through a S106 agreement is one
of a number of similar requests submitted by the Trust in respect of recent
residential applications under consideration by the Council. Officers have
responded generically to these requests outlining why it is considered that they
are not considered to meet the necessary tests relating to S106 obligations, and
consequently are not being sought in connection with these developments.
County Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment (Highways)
comment that:The Highway Authority previously recommended refusal due to an absence of
information in relation to:
Justification of the vehicular trip rate and the sustainability of the site
The applicant has provided no further evidence of the trip rates for the site. The
vehicle trip generation from the site is unlikely to have a severe impact on the
highway network. However, given the lack of suitable pedestrian and cycle
infrastructure, further supporting infrastructure is required to enable safe and
suitable pedestrian access to the site. The location on the edge of Exeter gives
tendency for the development to become car dependent, particularly if access to
sustainable modes of travel is not convenient.
Vehicular Access Point
Vehicular access to the development is to be created onto Redhills. The Highway
Authority has raised concerns that this is subject to 30mph and to ensure safe &
suitable access, appropriate visibility splays should be abided to. Discussions with
the applicant have been made regarding this aspect and it has been indicated that

Page 24

appropriate visibility splays could be met. Drawing No 19.124/006 shows visibility
standards of (2.4 by 43m with no obstruction over 600mm) clearly annotated.
Safe and suitable pedestrian and cycle infrastructure to reach the site
Redhills
The applicant has now provided further information to support the application.
The applicant has proposed a new 2m footway on Redhills (Drawing No.
19.124/003), connecting the development to the existing footway on St Peters
Mount and the bus stop facilities on Gloucester Road. The applicant has
provided a Stage 2 Road Safety Audit of the highway proposals for Redhills
which have been reviewed by the DCC Road Safety Team. The proposals are
considered acceptable. The give and take layout on Redhill’s appear to be quite
short with good intervisibility and suitable road width. One issue which wasn’t
raised in the audit was the possibility of traffic waiting at the eastern give and
take backing up onto the roundabout. After taking into consideration that the
right-hand arm of the roundabout only services a cul-de-sac with limited traffic,
the highway authority accepts this layout is acceptable in road safety.
Exwick Lane
To the east of the site, the applicant has shown a new footpath ramp connecting
the site to Exwick Lane (Drawing No 19.124/006). This remains a major concern
for the Highway Authority, as Exwick Lane is a narrow single-track road with no
provision for pedestrians. Exwick Lane is the most direct route to Exwick Heights
Primary School and providing safe access is essential. For this application to be
acceptable, measures to remove through traffic on Exwick Lane are required,
alongside suitable lighting from the egress of the site to Peterborough Road. A
traffic free route on this section of Exwick Lane would provide safe and secure
access to the primary school and onwards towards shops and services in
Exwick. Improvements to Exwick Lane would also improve access to Exeter St
Davids and Exeter College from the site.
Eastern Footway Link connecting Exwick Lane to Gloucester Road
To reach the bus stop on Gloucester Road, the eastern N-S footway (as shown
on Drawing No.19.124/006) is the most direct route. The proposed footway on
Redhills is unattractive for a large proportion of the development as it requires
residents to travel up the hill to the western access to then walk back on
themselves. It is also noted this route is well outside of the acceptable walking
distance to a bus stop.
To promote walking and cycling and enhance the attractiveness of using onward
bus connections, the development brings about the need to improve the standard
of the eastern footway link. The highway authority has already raised concerns
that this link is substandard in terms of its width (in part) – sections were not wide
enough; it’s construction (materials are not to suitable for pedestrians); its lack of
street lighting and its gradient (does not meet adoptable standards – too steep to
be used by all users). It is not acceptable for the development to send additional

Page 25

pedestrian movements on a route which is unsuitable and outside of the
applicant’s boundary.
Therefore, the Highway Authority will request a contribution from the
development of up to £75,000 to upgrade this footway link and provide a facility
compliant with the NPFF. The Highway Authority has agreement from ECC to
make these improvements and costed designs are currently being drawn up.
Internal Roads and layout
Well-designed residential streets are central to sustainable development and
therefore the design of the internal road layout must accord with the principles of
Manual for Streets and appropriate sustainable design guidance. To ensure
permeability through the development, the highway authority will request suitable
pedestrian / cycle links through the site. Provision has not been showed on the
existing illustrative plans provided by the applicant.
The applicant is advised that car parking standards are set out in the Exeter City
Residential Design Guide and that secure cycle parking facilities will need to be
in accordance with chapter 5 of Exeter City Councils Sustainable Transport
Supplementary Planning document. As an outline application these details are
reserved for approval at a later stage (together with cycle parking requirements).
Travel Planning
In accordance with paragraph 111 of the NPPF the development will be required
to have a Travel Plan. DCC is currently adopting an approach for residential
Travel Planning in the Exeter area with contributions paid directly to the Council
for them to implement the Travel Plan and its measures. Consequently, a
contribution of £500 per dwelling should be secured through S106 agreement.
Construction
The proposals will require demolition/construction work adjacent to a busy
environment. To protect the safety of users of the public highway it is essential that
the construction arrangements are carefully managed, and that appropriate space
is available off the highway for all construction plant/vehicles.
Summary
Much emphasis has been put on the accessibility of the site and the current lack
of suitable and safe infrastructure for pedestrian access. Whilst a footway has
been provided on Redhills, the applicant has made no provision for
improvements to connect the site to the nearest school, bus stop facilities or local
services in Exwick.
For this application to be acceptable, the following supporting infrastructure will
be required to be incorporated into the granting of any permission.

Page 26

-Creation of a traffic free route on Exwick Lane, from the point of egress of the
development to Peterborough Road. Suitable lighting to be provided as part of the
improvements.
-Improvements to the eastern N-S footway link to provide safe and suitable access
for pedestrians: Contribution up to £75,000 required
-Contribution towards Travel Planning at £500 per dwelling, totalling £40,000 for
the application.
Devon and Cornwall Police Liaison Officer raises no objection in relation to
the scheme, based on the ‘Illustrative Sketch Site Layout’ but would like to make
the following comments and recommendations for consideration should the
application progress.
The sketch layout shows two potential issues that could increase the opportunity
for crime:
-There appear to be incidences of accessible space / footpaths to the rear of
residential back gardens. Such design has shown to leave plots vulnerable to
trespass, burglary and damage to boundaries.
-The LEAP appears to lack surveillance opportunities. Natural surveillance
should be provided from nearby dwellings and play space should not positioned
to the rear of dwellings which can increase the potential for crime and complaints
arising from increased noise and nuisance.
Devon County Education Authority comment that a development of 80 family
type dwellings will generate an additional 20.00 primary pupils and 12.00
secondary pupils which would have a direct impact on the primary and secondary
schools in Exeter. In order to make the development acceptable in planning
terms, an education contribution to mitigate its impact will be requested.
When factoring in both approved but unimplemented housing developments as
well as outstanding local plan allocations DCC has forecast that there is enough
spare primary capacity to accommodate the number of pupils expected to be
generated from this development. A contribution towards primary education will
therefore not be sought against this development.
However, DCC has forecast that the secondary schools within Exeter are at
capacity and therefore we will request secondary education contributions against
the pupils expected to be generated from this development. The secondary
contribution sought is £284,700 (based on the DfE new build rate of £23,725 per
pupil). The contributions will be used towards new secondary provision at South
West Exeter. This new provision will release capacity at existing secondary
schools across the city.
Devon County Council Flood and Coastal Risk Management Team have no
in-principle objections to the above planning application at this stage. The Team
originally raised object to this planning application because it was not considered
that the development satisfactorily conformed to Policy CP12 (Flood Risk) of

Page 27

Exeter City Council's Core Strategy (2012) which requires all developments to
mitigate against flood risk and utilise sustainable drainage systems, where
feasible and practical. However in January 2021 the agent provided additional
information in relation to the surface water drainage aspects of the above
planning application. The applicant has produced a feasible surface water
drainage strategy in line with County’s SuDS for Devon Guidance (2017). The
applicant has proposed an attenuation basin to restrict flows to greenfield rates,
also incorporating long term storage requirements. At the next stage, infiltration
should be fully investigated via site investigation in line with the surface water
management hierarchy.
Devon County Waste Management comments that paragraph 8 of the National
Planning Policy for Waste and Policy W4 of the Devon Waste Plan requires
major development proposals to be accompanied by a Waste Audit Statement.
The application is not supported by any such statement and it is therefore
recommended that a condition is attached to any consent to require the
submission of a statement at reserved matters stage.
Exeter Cycling Campaign raise objection to the development considering the
location of the development to be totally inappropriate. The location results in this
proposed development being in breach of several local and national planning
documents.
ECC Environmental Health officer originally commented that there was
insufficient information provided to assess whether the impact on air quality
acceptable. The location is difficult to access by active or sustainable travel
modes. However In response to the submitted air quality report it was predicted
that the change in air pollution levels as a result of the proposed development
would not be significant. However the environmental health officer commented
further that the development would will result in an additional 400 vehicle
movements and there will be emissions from these vehicles. Consequently the
developer should take steps to mitigate these matters which would need to be
agreed at the reserved matters stage. No objection is therefore raised subject to
satisfactory information is provided approval subject to conditions in respect of
CEMP, contaminated land, noise and air pollution mitigation being submitted
prior to commencement and then implemented and maintained prior to
occupation.
ECC Place Making officer commented on the original submission states that:-The site is in the Landscape Setting policy area (LS1) that covers the hills to the
north and west of Exeter which provide the setting and containment of the City
and the proposed development is completely contrary to it. In addition, much of
the site is an integral part of a Site of Local Interest for Nature Conservation that
extends to the north and west and which includes the boundary hedgerow
fronting Redhills Road which would be negatively affected by the development.

Page 28

- The proposal is inconsistent with the Exeter Fringes Landscape Sensitivity and
Capacity Study finding that this site, as an integral part of Zone 33, has high
Landscape Sensitivity and medium to low Housing Use Capacity.
- The Zone of Theoretical Visibility, the starting point for the developer’s
Landscape and Visual Impact Appraisal, determines the potential area where the
development at 9.0m high could be seen. However, the field verified views of the
site, which follow on from this, show views in the direction of the site and the
boundaries of the proposed site but without indicating the height or presence of
the development and cannot be regarded as representative of the visual impact.
- The Appraisal states that hedgerow trees and woodland limit views of the site.
However, the photographs from the viewpoints chosen to show the boundaries of
the site have been taken when the existing trees and hedges appear to be in full
leaf and the report acknowledges that the potential visibility of the site would
increase from certain viewpoints in winter. Comparable winter of all views
following complete leaf fall would be needed to provide a complete assessment
of the site.
- No views are included from ‘Dukes Way’, the north-south district public path
linking Gloucester Road and Exwick Lane (an approximately 11.0m wide corridor
of land owned and maintained by Exeter City Council) despite its route along the
eastern boundary of the site (included in the illustrative sketch layout) and the
Appraisal finding that the footpath has high visual value.
- The ridge-like land form and the height difference between the central part of
the site and the varying levels of Exwick Lane makes it questionable whether
three photographic views (Nos. 13, 14 & 15) would be sufficient to assess the
visual impact of the proposed height of the development.
- Views 9 and 10 suggest that the addition of 9.0m high development would have
a significant impact on the skyline that would adversely affect landscape
character as viewed from the north of the site.
- Views 19 and 20 from the south which are closer to the site strongly hints that
skyline development could result which would detrimentally affect the area and
nullify the function of this part of the Landscape Setting area.
- Views 16 and 17 indicate the substantial visual presence of the existing
hedgerow fronting the site much of which would be removed for the proposed
vehicle access whilst opening up views of the intended development and
resulting in a substantially detrimental effect on the rural character of Redhills
Road in this locality
Further comments have been made in response to additional information
received (March 2021)

Page 29

The additional winter views and wirelines particularly the southern views 19 and
20 confirm that the proposed development would result in skyline development
(as acknowledged in the LVIA addendum) the detrimental effect of which on the
area and the function of the Landscape Setting in this locality would be
unacceptable. The extent and scale of tree planting that would be needed to
screen the proposed development would have a significant impact on the
character and usability of the open space and the adjoining rear gardens of the
proposed dwellings. The length of time required for tree planting to achieve
sufficient height and density would further substantially undermine such an
approach to potential mitigation.
No wireline views from Duke Way are provided which might otherwise further
illustrate the adverse impact of development of this site.
The effect of the removal of the group of trees and the extent and nature of the
additional highway works on Redhills cannot be compared with the suggested
need to coppice the existing trees. In any event there is no certainty that the
suggested replacement planting would be maintained better than at present or to
maturity.
The cumulative effect of the proposed site access and the road widening will
greatly increase the adverse impact on the rural character of Redhills Road in
this locality.
Councils Arboriculture officer’s commented on the original submission stating
that there are no objections to the proposed access and internal road layout.
However while it is understood the block plan is indicative, the block plan shows
several units that have an unsatisfactory spatial relationship between units and
adjacent trees. The applicant is encourage to produce a tree constraints plan,
preferably agreed with the Council’s Arboricultural Officer, the plan should then
be used to assist and guide the design process. Owing to the number and quality
of trees on and adjacent to the site it will be challenging to achieve the number of
units shown on the indicative plan.
Following the submission of further information further comments were made
(March 2021):-Further to my previous comments dated 12th December 2020, plans have been
submitted to widen the existing carriageway to the south west of the site
(drawing: S278 Highways Works Pedestrian Links / Improvements). It is noted
that the proposed widening is outside of the application red line. Any application
to develop the site, should include the necessary highways works, as access to
and from the site will undoubtedly have an impact on whether or not the
application is successful.

Page 30

-The proposed widening of the carriageway as indicated by the above drawing,
would involve the unacceptable loss of significant semi-mature to mature trees.
Owing to the above, there is an arboriculture objection to the proposal (see Tree
Constraints Plan ref: 200101-TCP-2-01.2021).
-The proposal is supported by a New Tree Planting Plan (New Tree Planting Plan
ref: 200101-NTP-01.2021). If the decision is taken to approve the proposal, then
it is recommended that the tree planting plan includes significantly more trees.
This would need to consist of larger container grown stock and whips to create a
linear woodland, rather than a single row of trees.
Comments received April 2021
There are no Arboricultural objections to the general site layout, as outlined in the
Tree Impact Assessment Plan ref: 200101-TIAP-RevA-01.2021 .
The proposed widening of the carriageway, as indicated by the Tree Constraints
Plan ref: 200101-TCP-2-01.2021) would involve the unacceptable loss of
significant semi-mature, to mature trees. Although it is accepted that the
applicant has provided a new planting scheme ref: New Tree Planting Plan ref:
200101-NTP-02.2021, it would take a considerable amount of time before the
newly planted trees become established and offsets the loss of the existing
hedgerow trees.
Owing to the above, there is an arboriculture objection to the proposal.
The woodland to the South of the proposed development, is predominately
composed of mixed broadleaf deciduous species, with a smaller coniferous
element along the perimeter of the scrap yard on the West. Ash is a major
component of the woodland cover and with the estimated loss of 90% of Devon’s
Ash trees over the coming years, as a result of Ash dieback, there is likely to be
a short term loss of screening. Ultimately, the woodland is expected to
regenerate, whether this is by means of planting, or natural regeneration.
However, there will be a period of time before canopy cover is fully restored.
ECC Service Manager Public and Green Spaces raised no objection to the
proposal in terms of informaI play provision. The illustrative layout provides
sufficient access to Local Areas for Play (LAPs) in accordance with Fields in
Trust Guidance, with all new dwellings falling within 100 metres of an
appropriately sized open space suitable for informal play. A LEAP is proposed
within the larger open space, and this is located within 400 metres of all
proposed dwellings in accordance with guidance.
The scale of the proposed development does not require a NEAP
(Neighbourhood Equipped Area of Play) to be provided on site, however the
Fields in Trust Guidance recommends that areas of over 200 dwellings should
have access to a NEAP (Neighbourhood Equipped Area of Play) within 1000m of
dwellings to provide play opportunities for age ranges up to young teenagers.

Page 31

There are no local play areas within 1km which could be classified as a NEAP,
and the only available, appropriate site within 1km of the development which has
capacity to provide a NEAP is Cemetery Fields. Given the local deficiency in play
for the junior age group, we would expect the proposed development to either
provide a NEAP on site (integrated with the proposed LEAP), or to make a preoccupation contribution towards the off-site provision of a NEAP at Cemetery
Fields.
It is noted that a footway is proposed along Redhills, where there is currently no
pedestrian footway. We support the intent to improve active travel modes to and
from the site, as this will help residents safely access off-site play facilities such
as NEAPs (if not provided on site) and outdoor sports / playing fields. This is
primarily the remit of the highways officer so would rely on their comments, but
from an environmental and cost perspective we wonder whether the applicant
might consider alternative access options such as modal filters on Exwick Lane
to create a traffic-free route for pedestrians and cyclists between the site and
Peterborough Road. In addition to providing safe access to / from off-site play
facilities, it would provide a safe traffic-free route to Exwick Heights Primary
School, reduces exposure to vehicle-generated air pollution and would avoid the
disruption and habitat damage associated with construction of the Redhills
widening scheme. Provision of a modal filter would also be substantially cheaper
than the proposed highway works.
Residents of the eastern side of the new development are likely to want a more
convenient walking route to off-site facilities than the proposed footway from
entrance, so we support the retention of walking connections to the south and
east. However, for these routes to be used by families this route will need to be
attractive and feel safe for users. In its current form, the footpath is confined with
little overlooking and in winter would be very dark in the times that residents
would be expected to use play areas (i.e. after school). We therefore expect the
applicant to include the provision of street lighting for the footpaths through the
proposed south-east POS and connecting to St Peters Mount to maximise the
potential for this route to be used all-year round.
In terms of recommended conditions for Reserved Matters, we would expect the
following to be incorporated into the final conditions:
-Landscape Plan, Lighting Plan and details of the proposed equipped play areas
to be submitted and approved prior to commencement
-Equipped Play area to be delivered prior to first occupation of any dwelling
RSPB comment that the compensation measures recommended by the
Developer's ecologists are of concern that the bird boxes will be provided at an
average rate of one box per two units. Some will be tree mounted on suitable
retained trees. New foraging and nesting opportunities created as part of site
wide landscaping/planting scheme does not comply with the Biodiversity
Requirements of your Residential Design Guide which specifies one integral bird

Page 32

box per residential unit which is increasingly accepted as a criterion of good
practice.
It is recommended that using boxes designed for swifts as they will be used by
most species that nest/roost in the cavities found in older properties and mature
trees, see first attachment. It is recommended that a Landscape and
Environmental Management Plan including details and locations of bird boxes is
made a condition of the consent.
11.0

Representations
101 objection emails/letters received as part of the original consultation. Issues
raised:
1. Impact on landscape character contrary to local plan policy;
2. Detrimental impact on the skyline/highly visible;
3. Loss of valuable open/green space
4. Overdevelopment of the site;
5. Potential development in Teignbridge will adversely affect the rural character
of the area;
6. Lead to the unacceptable merging of Nadderwater and Exwick;
7. Already sufficient development in the Exwick area as a result of approvals for
the former school sites;
8. Need to look at developing brownfield rather than greenfield sites;
9. Loss of wildlife habitat/corridors;
10. Adverse impact on wildlife including foxes, badgers, squirrels, hedgehogs,
deer, polecats, moths etc
11. Increased light pollution from within the site will affect wildlife, particularly
bats;
12. Lack of regard for protected species such as dormice and slow
worms/inaccurate survey results submitted;
13. Loss of trees and hedgerow;
14. Detrimental impact of biodiversity of the area;
15. Adverse effect of light pollution on the skyline
16. Increased noise and traffic along Exwick Lane an existing quiet road mainly
used by walkers;
17. Precedent for future housing development in the area particularly within the
Teignbridge area;
18. Inaccurate information contained within the submitted application including
housing numbers and refer to bus and cycle routes;
19. Lack of public transport serving the site;
20. Add to existing traffic congestion in the area;
21. Insufficient parking to be provided on site;
22. Need to close Exwick Lane as part of the development for it to be acceptable;
23. Existing road infrastructure incapable of accommodating increased dwelling
numbers for the area;

Page 33

24. Danger to pedestrians along Redhills due to lack of footway/unlit
road/footways;
25. Existing roads are narrow, visibility poor on the top of a hill leading unsuitable
and potential dangerous vehicular access;
26. Increased traffic along Barley Lane creating a rat run;
27. Difficulties for emergency vehicles accessing the site;
28. Increase noise and air pollution from greater traffic in the area;
29. Poor pedestrian access to local shops and services exacerbated by the steep
slope serving the site;
30. Concern over drainage and flooding potential particularly from the attenuation
basins to properties in St Peters Mount;
31. Problems associated with dealing with foul water drainage due to topography
of site;
32. Inadequate public transport serving the site;
33. Lack of capacity at nearby schools and GP surgeries;
34. Extra distance to access these facilities a concern due to lack of sufficient
provision;
35. Steepness of the site will disadvantage pushchair/wheelchair uses;
36. Loss of landscape and open space necessary for physical and mental wellbeing;
37. Development will add to the already poor air quality in the area;
38. Overlooking and loss of privacy to neighbouring properties;
39. Noise, disturbance and traffic disruption during construction work.
Whitestone Parish Council raised objection stating that:
1. Loss of mature trees and hedgerow contrary to the development plan;
2. Inaccurate information contained within the submission in respect of highway
and public transport matters;
3. Brownfield sites should be developed over greenfield ones;
4. Threat of flooding to existing properties in St Peters Mount and surrounding
area;
5. No consideration given to the detrimental visual impact of the development on
Whitestone;
6. Unsafe pedestrian access to and from the site;
7. Steep gradient will prevent pedestrians and cyclists accessing the site;
8. Construction vehicles will put additional pressure on unsuitable road network;
9. Access to schools would be too far to access by pedestrians;
10. Pressure on existing medical services;
11. Impact of light pollution on wildlife in the area given the current lack of
streetlighting;
12. The development is not a sustainable site.
6 letters of support for the original scheme. Issues raised:
1. Well-designed development, sympathetic and in keeping with the area;
2. Need for people to have somewhere to live;
3. Provides sufficient open space within the site for good quality accommodation;

Page 34

4. Streets and footways will eventually be lit, notwithstanding objectors’
comments;
5. Good alternative to the overdevelopment occurring in Pinhoe and the east of
Exeter.
Comments/Objections/Support following re-consultation in March 2021.
180 objections received following re-consultation. Issues raised:
1. Revised scheme does not alter the objections previously raised and therefore
previous comments reiterated;
2. Revisions by the developer do not change the unacceptable nature of the
scheme;
3. Scheme still affects the skyline;
4. Not a strategic housing site and therefore should not be built on;
5. Already potential housing to be developed at Atwells Farm;
6. Loss of hedgerow to Redhills and Exwick Lane;
7. Changes to Redhills road layout will lead to Barley Lane becoming a rat-run;
8. Traffic congestion during school times in particular;
9. Remain concerned about the traffic generation;
10. Increased incidents of accidents;
11. Detrimental impact to Exwick Lane;
12. Damage to Barley Valley nature reserve;
13. Impact on Wildlife and biodiversity;
14. Enough development in the area given recent approvals for the former
Exwick school sites;
15. Concerns about flooding as existing land provides natural storage for water;
16. Risk to horses and riders;
17. Not a suitable site due to pedestrian access via steep slope;
18. Existing open space important for well-being and mental health;
19. Impact of light pollution on surrounding wildlife habitat;
20. Need to follow Liveable Exeter’s vision and build on brownfield sites;
21. Pressure on existing local schools and GP practices;
22. Proposed creation of wildlife areas no substitute for existing habitat;
23. Hill top should be planted with trees to prevent water runoff;
24. Out of town location will inevitably add to vehicular trips and ultimately lead to
greater air pollution;
25. Impact of the development needs to consider roads beyond the immediate
site boundary, in particular the narrow section down to Nadderwater;
26. Concern regarding the creation off bottlenecks and rat runs on existing
unsuitable roads;
27. Due to narrowness of surrounding roads they offer poor options for
pedestrians accessing local amenities as described in the supporting information;
28. Most journeys from the site will be by car;
29. Proposed stop/go traffic management on Redhills unworkable;
30. Concern about the impact of the development on dormice;

Page 35

31. Drainage proposals are located at the wrong end of the site and will not
mitigation the flooding in Exwick Lane which occurs on an annual basis;
32. Widening of Redhills will not ease the existing problems of traffic flow
congestion which already existing in the area and will be exacerbated by this
development;
33. Proposal contradicts Council’s declaration of a Climate emergency in 2019;
34. Traffic issues have not been addressed since the previous application and
there needs to be significant improvements to the whole road network on this
side of the city;
35. Concern about the accessibility to local sporting facilities particularly for
children;
36. Information submitted regarding access to local facilities is inaccurate and out
of date;
37. There is already problem for children getting into local schools;
38. Development would be better if a high rise approach was followed to allow
the retention of greater open space;
39. Ecological impact particularly to ancient trees, established badger set and
bats;
40. Access to the site poorly lit and will lead to accidents.

96 objections using the same standard letter, which raised the followings issues:
1. Development would have an adverse impact on the landscape character of the
area;
2. Public transport infrastructure is inadequate which would lead to increased car
use;
3. Proposed road/traffic management will hinder traffic flow in the area;
4. Wildlife and their habitat would be affected;
5. Existing area important for local people’s health and wellbeing;
6. Contrary to ECC’s previous stance regarding development in nearby
Teignbridge district;
7. Need to follow the Council’s Exeter Vision 2040 approach.
96 emails/letters of support following re-consultation in March 2021. Issues
raised:
1. Need for new housing in the city, particularly affordable one;
2. Revised scheme an improvement on the original and should be approved
without delay;
3. New footway will helpful pedestrian safety in the area;
4. Housing well designed/set out and will not affect the skyline;
5. Objectors comments are misinformed and inaccurate particular in reference to
Teignbridge development and loss of hedgerow along Exwick Lane;
6. Not overdevelopment as claimed by objectors, scheme will continue to provide
sufficient open/green space;

Page 36

7. Scheme will provide much needed revenue for the Council;
8. Site has good communications links and is close to the city;
9. Displaced wildlife will migrate to neighbouring fields;
10. Public access across the site will improve;
11. Schools/GPs will be able to cope with additional demand through financial
payment.
3 emails/letters of comment following re-consultation. Issues raised:1. Potential noise from increased traffic;
2. Traffic safety issues particularly for children;
3. Need for dedicated cycle/walking routes;
4. Open space within the site needs to be maintained;
5. Wildlife mitigation needs to be conditioned;
6. Exwick needs the investment for infrastructure and facilities;
7. Need to ensure the scheme does not compromise the lanes and safe access
of horses used by local riders/groups – consideration should be given to safe
riding routes around the perimeter of the site.
The total number of comments received over the two consultations was 378
objections; 102 support and 3 comments, although it is clear that particular for
objections this represent some residents response twice.
12.0

Relevant Policies
National Planning Policy and Guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (February 2019)
2.
Achieving sustainable design
3.
Plan making
4.
Decision-making
5.
Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
8.
Promoting healthy and safe communities
11.
Making effective use of land
12.
Achieving well-designed places
15.
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
Planning Practice Guidance
National Design Guide (October 2019)
Core Strategy (Adopted 21 February 2012)
Core Strategy Objectives
CP1 – Spatial Strategy
CP3 – Housing
CP4 – Density
CP5 – Mixed Housing
CP7 – Affordable Housing
CP9 – Transport

Page 37

CP10 – Meeting Community Needs
CP11 – Pollution
CP12 – Flood Risk
CP14 – Renewable and Low Carbon Energy
CP15 – Sustainable Construction
CP16 – Green Infrastructure, Landscape and Biodiversity
CP17 – Design and Local Distinctiveness
CP18 – Infrastructure
CP19 – Strategic Allocations
Exeter Local Plan First Review 1995-2011 (Adopted 31 March 2005)
AP1 – Design and Location of Development
AP2 – Sequential Approach
H1 – Search Sequence
H2 – Location Priorities
H3 – Housing Sites
H5 – Diversity of Housing
H6 - Affordable Housing
H7 – Housing for Disabled People
T1 – Hierarchy of Modes
T2 – Accessibility Criteria
T3 – Encouraging Use of Sustainable Modes
T5 – Cycle Route Network
T10 – Car Parking Standards
C5 – Archaeology
LS4 – Nature Conservation
EN2 – Contaminated Land
EN3 – Air and Water Quality
EN4 – Flood Risk
EN5 – Noise
EN6 – Renewable Energy
DG1 – Objectives of Urban Design
DG2 – Energy Conservation
DG4 – Residential Layout and Amenity
DG5 – Provision of Open Space and Children’s Play Areas
DG6 – Vehicle Circulation and Car Parking in Residential Development
DG7 – Crime Prevention and Safety
Devon Waste Plan 2011 – 2031 (Adopted 11 December 2014) (Devon County
Council)
W4 – Waste Prevention
W21 – Making Provision for Waste Management

Page 38

Other Material Considerations
Development Delivery Development Plan Document (Publication Version,
July 2015)
This document represents a material consideration but has not been adopted
and does not form part of the Development Plan and therefore carries limited
weight.
DD1 – Sustainable Development
DD9 – Accessible, Adaptable and Wheelchair User Dwellings
DD13 – Residential Amenity
DD20 – Accessibility and Sustainable Movement
DD21 – Parking
DD22 – Open Space, Allotments, and Sport and Recreation Provision
DD25 – Design Principles
DD26 – Designing out Crime
DD28 – Conserving and Managing Heritage Assets
DD29 Landscape Setting Areas
‘Development within the Landscape Setting Areas will only be permitted where:
a) there is no harm to the distinctive characteristics and special qualities of the
landscape setting of the City and the wider area; and
b) it does not contribute towards the urbanisation of these areas; and…’
DD30 – Green Infrastructure
DD31 – Biodiversity
DD33 – Flood Risk
DD34 – Pollution and Contaminated Land
Exeter City Council Supplementary Planning Documents
Affordable Housing SPD (April 2014)
Archaeology and Development SPD (Nov 2004)
Sustainable Transport SPD (March 2013)
Planning Obligations SPD (April 2014)
Public Open Space SPD (Sept 2005)
Residential Design Guide SPD (Sept 2010)
Trees and Development SPD (Sept 2009)
Other documents
Net-Zero Exeter 2030 Plan July 2020 to inform all policy documents, plans and
corporate decision making in response to the Climate Emergency and in
pursuance of the goal to make Exeter a carbon neutral city by 2030
13.0

Human rights
Article 6 - Right to a fair trial.
Article 8 - Right to respect for private and family life and home.
The first protocol of Article 1 Protection of property

Page 39

The consideration of the application in accordance with Council procedures will
ensure that views of all those interested are considered. All comments from
interested parties have been considered and reported within this report in
summary with full text accessible via the Council’s website.
It is acknowledged that there are certain individual properties where there may
be some adverse impact and this will need to be mitigated as recommended
through imposing conditions to ensure that there is no undue impact on the home
and family life for occupiers. However, any interference with the right to a private
and family life and home arising from the scheme as result of impact on
residential amenity is considered necessary in a democratic society in the
interests of the economic well-being of the city and wider area and is
proportionate given the overall benefits of the scheme in the provision of homes,
including affordable housing and economic benefits.
Any interference with property rights is in the public interest and in accordance
with the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 regime for controlling the
development of land.
This Recommendation is based on consideration of the proposal against adopted
Development Plan policies, the application of which does not prejudice the
Human Rights of the applicant or any third party.
14.0

Public Sector Equalities Duty
As set out in the Equalities Act 2010, all public bodies in discharging their
functions must have “due regard” to the need to:
a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that
is prohibited by or under this Act;
b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;
c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.
Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not
share it involves having due regard in particular to the need to:
a) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;
b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it;
c) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate
in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is
disproportionately low.

Page 40

Whilst there is no absolute requirement to fully remove any disadvantage the
Duty is to have “regard to” and remove OR minimise disadvantage and in
considering the merits of this planning application the planning authority has had
due regard to the matters set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010.
15.0

Financial benefits
The requirements to set out the financial benefits arising from a planning
application is set out in s155 of the Housing and Planning Act 2016. This requires
that local planning authorities include financial benefits in each report which is:
a) made by an officer or agent of the authority for the purposes of a nondelegated determination of an application for planning permission; and
b) contains a recommendation as to how the authority should determine the
application in accordance with section 70(2) (of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990).
The information on financial benefits must include a list of local financial
considerations or benefits of a development which officers consider are likely to
be obtained by the authority if the development is carried out including their value
if known and should include whether the officer considers these to be material or
not material.
Material considerations
Affordable housing contribution of 35%; (28 units)
GP contributions £512 per dwelling; (£40,858 based on 80 units)
Educational contribution £284,700 towards secondary schools (based on 80
units).
Financial contribution towards the off-site provision of a NEAP at Cemetery
Fields (to be agreed)
Improvements to the eastern N-S footway link to provide safe and suitable access
for pedestrians: Contribution up to £75,000 required
-Contribution towards Travel Planning at £500 per dwelling, totalling £40,000 for
the application.
Non material considerations
CIL contributions - This proposal is CIL liable. The rate at which CIL is charged
for this development is £118.93 per sq. metre plus new index linking.
Confirmation of the final CIL charge will be provided to the applicant in a CIL
liability notice issued prior to the commencement of the development.

16.0

Planning Assessment
The key issues are:
1. Policy background
2. Planning balance
3. Development benefits

Page 41

3. Landscape assessment and impact
4. Access and transport issues
5. Ecological issues
6. Habitat Mitigation
7. Education/GP provision
8. Flooding
9. Public Opinion
Policy Background
The proposed development for up to 80 dwellings falls outside the urban
boundary, as identified in the Development Delivery DPD and is located in an
area of landscape setting and of local interest for nature conservation in the
Exeter Local Plan, Policies LS1 and LS4 are therefore applicable. The site is
identified within an area designated as landscape setting on the key diagram
included in the Core Strategy and therefore Policy CP16 is applicable. The
principle of development for housing within an area of Landscape Setting is
contrary to the statutory development plan. Policy LS1 of the Local Plan First
Review states that proposals in these areas should maintain local distinctiveness
and character and be reasonably necessary for the purposes of agriculture,
forestry, the rural economy, outdoor recreation or the provision of infrastructure.
Policy CP16 of the Core Strategy seeks to protect the strategic green
infrastructure identified on the key diagram in order to protect and enhance
current environmental assets and to provide a framework for sustainable forms of
development. Within the text of the Core Strategy it states in paragraph 10.35
that ‘…several areas of open land, designated as ‘Landscape Setting’ to be
protected from development because of their intrinsic merit and their contribution
to the distinctive landscape quality of the city…’Both Local Plan Policy LS1 and
Core Strategy Policy CP16 seeks to resist development which would harm the
local distinctiveness and character in an area designated as landscaping setting
of which residential development represents an inappropriate form of
development.
The area is identified in the Appraisal of Landscape Policy areas (1997) which
states that ‘the most important view of the area is that of the ridgeline between
Luggs Farm and the back of Cheltenham Close which is visible from much of the
city, especially on the east side of the river, it is also visible from the road
approaches along Redhills and Barley Lane and from the Exwick ‘Farm Hill’ and
Kinnerton Way developments, looking south at the northern flanks of the area….’
The evaluation of the site states that ‘the ridgeline forms an important element on
the green setting of Exeter. The area as approached from Redhills is important
as the rural ‘back-door’ exit from that side of the City: the tree lined hedgerows,
protected by Tree Preservation Order, form the backdrop for much of the
Foxhayes and Fairhazel estate and the area acts as an attractive rural boundary
to the high density development around Kinnerton Way and Farm Hill…’

Page 42

The Exeter Fringe Landscape Sensitivity and Capacity Study (2007) identified
the site as having a high landscape sensitivity with steep sloping ridge with
strong tree cover which acts as a setting and backcloth to the settlement. The
study states that the area has very limited capacity for housing limited to the
northern lowest slopes (which in terms of this study area was adjacent to
Kinnerton Way) as it is too prominent in all other areas.
Planning balance
Members will be aware that the Council cannot currently demonstrate a five year
supply of deliverable housing site. Consequently paragraph 11 d) of the National
Planning Policy Framework applies. It states that, in these circumstances,
permission for residential development should be granted unless there are of
policies in the Framework that protect areas or assets of particular importance
provide a clear reason for refusing the development proposed. A further
consequence of a lack of a 5 year housing supply is that the relevant Local Plan
policy LS1 has been given limited weight by Inspectors at recent appeal
decisions relating to residential schemes within areas of landscape setting. This
is due to the policy being out of date, effectively seeking to limit development to
the existing urban area rather than providing sufficient site specific landscape
assessment, which ensures that the character of the area is maintained.
However Inspectors have given full planning weight to Core Strategy policy CP16
which seeks to protect and enhance the character and local distinctiveness of
areas identified within the key diagram (within which this site is located). As
evident from the appeal decision at the Home Farm decision, the Inspector
considered that the objective of Policy CP16 does not seek to prevent all
development within the areas shown on the key diagram, as it needs to be
balanced against the needs to bring forward deliverable housing sites. In
summary, the impact of the development on the landscape character of the site
in this particular instance needs to be balanced against the need for housing to
meet the five year housing supply.
It is relevant to note that the Council has recently updated its five year land
supply calculation and as of March 2021, the Council is able to demonstrate a
housing supply of just under four years and three months as opposed to 2 years
and 1 month, which was the previously calculated figure. This in part reflects the
number of new houses that have been consented or granted resolution to
approve and helps to demonstrate the Council’s pro-growth agenda including
Liveable Exeter’s proposals for up to 12,000 homes within the city and the
Council’s support of sustainable development. However at this current time it is
accepted that the Authority does not have a 5 year land supply, but not the
‘serious shortfall’ as stated by the Inspector at the Home Farm appeal.
Nevertheless the ‘tilted balance’ must still be applied when it comes to
determining planning applications, which states the presumption in favour of
approving sustainable development unless protected areas or assets of particular
importance provide a clear reason for refusing the application.

Page 43

Development benefits
It is clear that the impact of 80 dwellings and associated infrastructure will result
in a significant change to the landscape character of this site. However given the
Council’s current lack of a 5 year housing and advice contained within the NPPF
the benefits of additional housing for the city represents an important
consideration in the planning balance. The proposal for up to 80 dwellings, which
if this number was ultimately achieved, would result in the provision of 28
affordable homes on the site; a policy compliant level of 35% in accordance with
Core Strategy Policy CP7. In addition, it is clear that the applicant has sought to
improve the scheme wherer possible to address the comments raised by
residents and in response to consultee responses. In particular, the previous
recommendation of refusal as indicated by the County highway officer is now an
approval on highway grounds subject to conditions or legal agreement, which will
be set out later in this report. Internal changes have also been made to improve
the public open space layout and provision of play equipment following
comments raised by the Council’s service manager public and green spaces. In
addition to the physical changes to the layout as proposed, which could be
safeguarded via planning conditions, the applicant has confirmed contributions
towards highway improvement to footpaths and green travel; education in
respect of secondary school provision and GP provision for the area. The
scheme would also result in a CIL payment at a rate of £118.93 per square metre
for all the non-affordable units.
Landscape assessment and impact
Previous appeal decisions have made clear that a landscape designation within
the development plan cannot be relied upon to resist development given the
limited weight attached to Local Plan Policy LS1, as a result of a lack of a 5 year
housing supply. Consequently it is necessary to consider the context within which
the application site is located and the importance of its landscape character. The
applicant has provided an illustrative sketch layout, which indicates how the
planting within the site could help to mitigate the impact of the development on
the surrounding area. This includes the replacement of the hedgerow which
would be lost to create the vehicular access onto Redhills; the provision of
additional trees to the eastern side of the site; trees planted within the site to the
north of the proposed area of public open space in addition to further onsite and
boundary tree and hedge planting. This illustrative plan indicates how the layout
seeks to limit development in the most visually sensitive areas of the site, notably
the western boundary and the south eastern section of the site. Whilst it is should
be noted that this is an outline application and therefore the siting of the housings
is not fixed, it does indicate the applicant’s approach to the integration of the
development into the site.
Notwithstanding the applicant’s supporting information the scheme for 80
dwellings will have a significant impact on the landscape character of the area.
As accepted by the applicant’s own landscape appraisal the housing will be
highly visible from a number of important viewpoints. Whilst accepting that

Page 44

housing will not be visible from all viewpoints, this is understandable given the
topography of the area in this location and the character of the surrounding area.
It is considered that the approach into the City is particularly important in defining
the changing character of the area from the more rural Whitestone and
Nadderwater into the urban setting of the city of Exeter. Whilst it is accepted that
long established properties exists onto the approach into Exeter, notably on the
south western side of Redhills including Barley Villas opposite the proposed
access into the site they are more reflective of a rural settlement rather than the
urbanised layout proposed for this development. When approaching the city
along Redhills it is considered that notwithstanding the area set aside for the
storm attenuation of the site at the corner with Exwick Lane, the topography of
the site and removal of the existing mature hedge required to achieve the new
vehicular access will appear as a significant adverse change to the visual
character and appearance and detrimental to strong rural identity it currently
possesses. The existing woodland area seen from this approach into the city
provides a strong and natural boundary, which separates the rural and urban
setting of the city.
The impact of the development on the landscape quality of the area will also be
experienced through the creation of a new footway and new road layout, which is
needed for this scheme to be acceptable in highway terms. The approach to the
site along Redhills currently offers no footway and although footfall along this
section of road is low given the lack of properties immediately to the north west of
the city, this would not be the case with the scale of development proposed. The
new footway is therefore considered essential for highway safety and its
construction will result in the loss of a significant section of mature trees and
hedgerow on the western side of Redhills immediately to the north of Luggs
Farm. Whilst it is accepted that this group of trees predominately ash will either
die back or need managing in the future, there is no justification for their removal
in this location. The Council’s tree manager has also raised objection to their
removal. Given the topography of this bank and the field beyond, the relocation
and re-establishment of a new hedgerow bank will result in significant
remodelling, which currently has a distinctly rural and countryside character
along this section of Redhills road. The impact of the trees removal would be
visible not only along this road but from Barley Lane. The overall impact would be
detrimental to the existing character of the area and contrary to the objection of
the landscape setting policies.
The impact of the development would also be clearly evident from Redhills and
Lichgate Road. A significant part of the development site is clearly visible from
this vantage point and provides a good example of the purpose for landscape
setting policy, which aims to provide a green backdrop to the existing housing
located at a lower level. This green space emphases the characteristic sloping
nature of the outskirts of Exeter and whilst the development in this area is
relatively dense and urban in form, the green field helps to integrate the urban
and rural area which is considered to be valued and important. It is noted that the

Page 45

applicant has sought to provide the public open space within the lower section of
the eastern of the site but it is clear that the proposed housing beyond will break
the skyline in this location.
The purpose of the landscape setting designation in both the Local Plan and
Core Strategy is to retain the distinctive quality for the city as a whole and
therefore it is necessary to consider the impact of the site from longer distance
views. The applicant’s visual and landscape appraisals does provide a series of
views of the site and assessment of the development’s impact. It is not disputed
that due to the presence of existing vegetation, not least the woodland to the
south this will help to mitigate the appearance of some of the site. However to
use the applicant’s own assessment in the longevity of the hedgerow alongside
Redhills, which is indicated for removal for the required highway improvement
works, this area contains a high proportion of ash trees. As confirmed by the
Council’s tree manager these areas will ultimately require management but will
evidently result in a lower level of screening than currently exists. It is considered
that this area of woodland is important as part of the overall landscape character
of the area and does not provide justification for the site being suitable for
development. The site’s impact from a longer viewpoint is from the north and
given the proposed linear nature of the site layout, a more substantial depth of
planting is not possible. These viewpoints from the Farm Hill area indicate that
the development will extend over a significant distance (approx.400 metres) and
the topography of this ridgeline area will limit the potential for significant
screening. Whilst some additional tree and hedge planting is proposed to the rear
gardens of the proposed properties and to the south of Exwick Lane it is
accepted in the applicant’s own appraisal that the built form of the development
will be visible on the ridgeline through existing tree over from Barley Villas on
Redhills to Cheltenham Close (as these properties are visible from Farm Hill).
More limited additional planting is proposed within the internal layout of the
scheme and consequently it is considered the resultant development will appear
highly visible which is heightened to a certain extent by the stepped nature of the
site. Notwithstanding the applicants attempts to integrate the development within
the area through additional planting it is inevitable that development will have a
significant impact on the character of the area.
The Council place making/landscape officer has raised objection to the scheme
stating that the proposed development would result in a skyline development (as
acknowledged by the applicant’s own landscape and visual impact assessment)
having a detrimental impact of the area and its function as an area of landscape
setting in this locality. Further comment is made in that the extent and scale of
tree planting that would be needed to screen the proposed development would
have a significant impact on the character and usability of the open space and
the adjoining rear gardens of the proposed dwellings. The length of time required
for tree planting to achieve sufficient height and density would further undermine
such an approach to potential mitigation.

Page 46

In addition, the effect of the removal of the group of trees and the extent and
nature of the additional highway works on Redhills Road cannot be compared
with the suggested need to coppice the existing trees. In any event there is no
certainty that the suggested replacement planting would be maintained better
than at present or to maturity. The cumulative effect of the proposed site access
and the road widening will greatly increase the adverse impact on the rural
character of Redhills in this locality.
In summary, it is considered that the development of the site for housing would
have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the area which
has been identified as important and valuable for landscape setting for the city.
The NPPF recognises that planning decisions should ensure that development
‘…are sympathetic to local character and history including the surrounding built
and landscape setting…(para 127c) and decisions ‘…should contribute to and
enhance the natural and local environment by protecting and enhancing valued
landscapes…’ (para 170). Accordingly, it’s considered that the adverse impacts
of granting planning permission would significantly and demonstrably outweigh
the benefits of the proposal, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF
(2019) taken as a whole.
Access and Transport Issues
The originally submitted application raised significant highway concerns, which
lead to the applicant revising the plan principally with the provision of a new
footway and highway arrangement along Redhills. These amended drawings
resulted in the need for re-consultation. In particular the highway officer
previously raised concern about the proposed visibility splays to ensure that safe
and suitable access could be created onto Redhills. Amended plans were
submitted which confirm that the visibility standards of 2.4 metre by 43 metres
could be achieved, although as previously stated this would be at the expense of
the existing mature hedgerow bank. In addition an important change in respect of
sustainability and pedestrian safety was the creation of the new footway. The
amended plans indicate that the existing tree and hedgebank on the western side
of Redhills will be removed (and replacement planting proposed) to enable the
road to be widen to create a new footway along the eastern side and a new give
and take road arrangement introduced along a section of this road. These
revised plans have been assessed by the County’s road safety audit team and
considered to be acceptable.
The provision of the footway represents an important improvement to the scheme
from previously submitted, as it provides safe pedestrian access from the
western section of the site and would be welcomed in highway terms for the area
as a whole. However the highway officer still remains concerned about the lack
of suitable and safe infrastructure for pedestrian access serving the site. Whilst
acknowledging the new Redhills footway, no provision for improvements to
connect the site to the nearest school, bus stops or local service in Exwick were
proposed. The highway officer has therefore requested that improvements to

Page 47

Exwick Lane and the existing footway link connecting Exwick Lane and
Gloucester Road be improved, in addition to a financial contribution towards
travel planning for each future household.
The highway officer has stated that for the scheme to be acceptable, measures
to remove through traffic on Exwick Lane would be required in addition to
suitable lighting from the egress of the site to Peterborough Road. A traffic free
route on this section of Exwick Lane would provide safe and secure access to the
primary school and onwards towards shops and services in Exwick and improve
access to Exeter St Davids and Exeter College. If approved, these measure
could be secured by planning condition.
In addition, the highway officer has highlighted that to promote walking and
cycling and enhance the attractiveness of using local bus connections, the
scheme would need to improve the standard of the existing footway alongside
the eastern boundary of the site. The highway authority has previously raised
concerns about the substandard nature of this link in terms widths, material,
gradient and lack of street lighting. Accordingly the highway officer has requested
that a financial contribution of £75,000 is made to upgrade this link to
improvement pedestrian usage. If approved, this contribution could be secured
by way of a Section 106 agreement.
To further reduced the reliance on private car usage and promote sustainability
the scheme is required to have a travel plan. The highway officer has therefore
request that a financial contribution is paid to the County Council for them to
implement the travel plan and its measures. If approved, the contribution of £500
per dwelling could be secured by way of a Section 106 agreement.
In summary, the highway officer has concluded that subject to the various
highway improvement measures, primarily to improve accessibility of the site in
means other than private vehicles, the scheme is acceptable in highway terms.
The applicant has confirmed their agreement to the requests made and has also
indicated that they are seeking to establish a car club from the site, which would
be welcomed.
Ecological Issues
Given the proposed change of use for the land from grassland to residential
development it is inevitable that the landscape and ecological character of the
area will irreversibly change. The application have been accompanied by an
updated Ecological Impact Assessment (February 2021) which describes the site
as semi-improved grassland field used for horse grazing, bordered and
intersected with a number of rich and species poor hedgerows with associated
trees. The site was found to have evidence of a range of protected and notable
species, including breeding bird, dormice, invertebrates, reptiles, amphibians and
commuting/foraging bats. The report states that the development will result in the
loss of approximately 2.8ha of semi-improved grassland and approximately 200
metres of hedgerows.

Page 48

The need for the protection of endangered species is the responsibility of the
local planning authority under the habitats directive and the presence of a
protected species represents a material consideration. In this respect the
ecological assessment states that specific surveys for dormice and bats were
undertaken in addition to a Phase I Habitat Survey and a Biodiversity Net Gain
Assessment including mitigation measures where appropriate. The ecologist’s
report concludes that the development has the potential to impact on a variety of
protected species including dormouse, bats, breeding birds, invertebrate, badger,
reptiles and amphibians. These impacts will be as a result of direct habitat losses
or indirect impacts caused by disturbance factoring during construction and upon
occupation. The report states that suitable avoidance and mitigation measures
have been incorporated into the design to minimise adverse impact on protected
species and in particular a dormouse mitigation licence will be secured prior to
the commencement of work. The report states development will result in a net
gain in terms of biodiversity habitat and an approximately 19% increase of
hedgerows with the planting of 350 metres of hedgerow to compensate for the
200 metres to be removed.
If permission is forthcoming it is considered that the imposition of a condition
requiring the submission of a Biodiversity Mitigation and Enhancement Plan prior
to commencement on site will address the requirements of the submitted report
in respect of protected species and habitat management. It is anticipated that the
important trees and hedgerow along the boundaries of the site should be
retained and supplemented where appropriate and would be looked at in more
detail at the reserved matters stage.
The site is located within an area of local interest for nature conservation and
therefore Local Plan Policy LS4 applies. This policy states that development will
only be permitted if ‘a) the need for the development is sufficient to outweigh
nature conservation considerations and b) the extent of any damaging impact is
kept to a minimum and appropriate mitigation and compensatory measures are
implemented’. It is undeniable that the development of this site for 80 dwellings
will have an irreversible impact on the existing wildlife and habitat of the site. In
particular, the proposed new access into the site would involve the removal of a
substantial section hedgerow which would significantly alter character and
appearance of this section of Redhills opposite Barley Villas and its biodiversity
value which will take time to re-establish. However given the conclusion of the
report, it is considered that the applicant has fully investigated the requirements
of the site in respect of habitat preservation and creation. Accordingly whilst the
removal of existing mature hedgerow to form the new vehicular access; loss of
trees to create highway improvements along Redhills in addition to loss of
vegetation within the site and to the boundary will have an adverse impact on the
character of the landscape, given the conclusions of the ecological report it is
considered that a refusal in respect of Policy LS4 is, on balance, unwarranted.

Page 49

Habitat Mitigation
The Council has undertaken an Appropriate Assessment for the site which
concludes that, whilst the development has the potential to have a significant
effect on the European Sites, and an adverse impact on the achievement of the
conservation objectives for the sites, the impacts of the development can be
mitigated through receipts from Community Infrastructure Levy to contribute
towards the implementation of measure in the South East Devon European Site
Mitigation Strategy, which are designed to avoid and mitigate the adverse
impacts of increased visitor pressure brought about through population growth.
This approach is accepted by Natural England.
Education/GP provision
Devon County Council as the educational authority has requested a financial
contribution towards meeting the increased demands on educational institutions
as a result of this development. The County Council has forecast that there is
enough spare primary capacity to accommodate the number of pupils expected
to be generated from this development and therefore a contribution toward
primary education is not sought. However the County’s forecast is that the
secondary schools within Exeter are at capacity and therefore have calculated
that a financial contribution of £284,700 based on this 80 dwelling scheme would
be required. The contributions will be used towards new secondary provision at
South West Exeter, which will in turn release capacity at existing secondary
schools across the city.
The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group has raised concern that the combined
surgeries of St Thomas’ Health Centre and Foxhayes Surgery are already at or
over capacity within their existing footprints therefore it follows that to have a
sustainable development in human health terms the whole local healthcare
provision will require review. The surgeries already have 42,470 patients
registered between them and this new development will increase the local
population by a further 182 persons. Consequently in line with guidance
produced by NHS England and Devon County Council, this will result a request
for £551 per dwelling which based on 80 units require a total contribution of
£40,858 towards the mitigation of the pressures on local healthcare facility.
Flooding
Several local residents have raised concerns about possibility of flood risk given
the elevated nature of the site, particularly in respect of properties in St Peters
Mount. Following initial concerns, the County Flood Team have commented that
they have no in-principle objections. Originally they objected to the scheme
because it is not considered that the development satisfactorily conformed to
Core Strategy Policy CP12 which requires all developments to mitigate against
flood risk and utilise sustainable drainage systems (SuDS). However further
information was provided by the applicant in the form of a surface water drainage
strategy in line with the Devon Guidance for SuDS. The applicant has proposed
an attenuation basin to restrict flows to greenfield runoff rates, which also

Page 50

incorporates the site’s long term storage requirements. If the application is
approved a planning condition would be required for infiltration to be fully
investigated on site in line with the surface water management hierarchy.
Public Opinion
This application has generated a considerable amount of public opposition and
support from residents who live close the site and from throughout the city.
These comments have been summarised in the representation section of the
report. The number of comments clearly indicate that local people are keen to
safeguard the land or release this site for development, but have also highlighted
wider concerns about the development in the city and nearby areas. It is
therefore important to reiterate that that the planning assessment must be
assessed on the basis of each case on its individual merits and although
development has previously been anticipated in nearby Teignbridge district, this
is not a relevant consideration for the assessment of this application. As
previously stated the lack of a 5 year housing supply means that issues,
particular regarding landscape impact need to be assessed on a site by site
basis rather than relying on an overall landscape policies contained within the
local plan.
CIL/S106
The development is CIL liable and a S106 agreement will be required to secure
the affordable housing provision, highway contributions, education, GP provision
and agreement of future management of the open space/LEAP if planning
permission is approved.
Community Infrastructure Levy - The residential development at the site will be
liable for the payment of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). The current rate
for 2021 is £118.93 per square metre (gross internal floorspace) and is
applicable to all market housing within the development.
17.0

Conclusion
The fact that housing on site is visible within an area of land does not necessarily
make a development unacceptable. The application is in outline and therefore
the appearance of the proposed dwellings is not for consideration. However it is
the impact the built development would have on the overall landscape character
of the area, which remains the fundamental consideration as to whether the
scheme is acceptable. This is the planning balance, which needs to be
considered, taking into account all material planning considerations and in
particular the Council’s lack of a 5 year housing supply as the ‘tilted balance’
required by the NPPF places great weight on the approving of sustainable
housing development unless there are clear reasons for refusal. The
fundamental consideration therefore is whether the provision of 80 dwellings
(including 28 affordable units), provision of onsite open space/play areas and the
associated highway improvement and mitigation measures put forward in support
of the application take precedence against the detrimental impact the

Page 51

development would have on the landscape character of the area both locally and
from a wider landscape setting. As this report sets out the assessment is clearly
a balanced one, however it is considered that the landscape quality of this valued
site and the harmful visual impact intrusive created by the housing development
should be afforded greater weight, in this instance. It is considered that the
adverse impacts of granting planning permission would significantly and
demonstrably outweigh the benefits of the proposal, when assessed against the
policies in the NPPF (2019) taken as a whole. Accordingly the application is
recommended for refusal.
18.0

RECOMMENDATION
REFUSE
The development would have a significant impact on the rural character of the
area and landscape setting of the city by developing and urbanising a prominent
ridgeline that will be visible from surrounding parts of the city. It will have a
significant impact on the rural character of Redhills through the creation of an
access road and necessary visibility splays, which will detract from the rural
approach to the city from the west. The development is therefore contrary to the
adopted development plan policies CP16 of the Exeter Core Strategy and saved
Policy LS1 of the Exeter Local Plan First Review, and paragraphs 127c) and 170
of the NPPF (2019). In regard to the presumption of sustainable development in
the NPPF, it’s considered that the adverse impacts of the development on the
rural character and distinctiveness of the area and landscape setting of the city
would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits of housing delivery
on this site when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole.

Page 52

Agenda Item 6
Planning Committee Report: 20/1684/OUT
1.0

Application Number:
Applicant name:
Proposal:

Site address:
Registration Date:
Link to application:

Case Officer:
Ward Members:

20/1684/OUT
University of Exeter
Outline planning application to build student
accommodation and ancillary amenity facilities (up to
a maximum of 49,821 sq. metres) and external
alterations and refurbishment of Birks Grange Village
Blocks A-E; with associated infrastructure, demolition
of existing buildings and landscaping (All Matters
Reserved).
Clydesdale Nash and Birks Grange Village halls of
residence University of Exeter, Lower Argyll Road
10 December 2020
http://publicaccess.exeter.gov.uk/onlineapplications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summar
y&keyVal=QL4R52HBKVR00
Paul Jeffrey
Cllr K Mitchell, Cllr M Mitchell and Cllr M Pearce
(Duryard and St James Ward)

REASON APPLICATION IS GOING TO COMMITTEE: Major application with
over 10 emails/correspondence of objection.
2.0

Summary of Recommendation: DELEGATE to GRANT permission subject to
completion of a S106 Agreement relating to matters identified and subject to
conditions as set out in report.

3.0

Reason for the recommendation: as set out in Section 18







Site lies within the existing University campus.
Area identified for future redevelopment in the University Masterplan.
The impact of the new buildings particularly in terms of height are
considered acceptable within the site’s wider context.
The proposal is not considered to cause significant harm to residential
amenity of nearby residential properties.
The location is considered to be sustainable and the proposal is
acceptable in its design and general visual impact.
There are no material considerations which warrant refusal of this
application.

Page 53

4.0

Table of key planning issues
Issue
Principle of development

Impact on the wider landscape
Impact on residential amenity

Scale, design, impact on character
and appearance

Access/Impact on Local Highways

Ecological Issues

5.0

Conclusion
Site lies within the existing University
campus. The scheme will make more
efficient use of land on a brownfield
site.
Subject to parameter plan acceptable
impact the wider setting of the campus
Amended plans indicate scheme will
have an acceptable impact on
adjacent residential occupants.
Submitted illustrative layout and
Design & Access Statement indicate
that the future development will be
appropriate.
Subject to suitable conditions and
meeting obligations within the Section
106 Agreement details regarding
access and financial contributions
meet the requirements of the County
Highway officer.
Limited impact. Scheme to incorporate
appropriate mitigation and
enhancement.

Sustainable Construction and Energy
Conservation

Passivhaus supported. Appropriate
standard to be secured through
condition.

CIL/S106

CIL generated and S106 to secure
highway improvement and student
management plan

Description of Site
The application site comprises of an area of land to the western side of the
Streatham campus, approximately 1km north of the city centre. The site
comprises of existing student residential halls namely Clydesdale and Nash
Grove, Birks Grange Halls and associated refectory and the existing Estates
Service Centre within a site area of 6.37 ha. The site lies either side of the
Pinetum an established area of mature trees, which is unaffected by the
proposed development. Holland Hall and Mardon Hall are located to the north
east of the application site with the grade II listed Reed Hall located to the east.
An existing footpath, Grafton Road lies to the north of the site linking Cowley
Bridge Road and Belvidere Road. Residential properties within Glenthorne Road,

Page 54

Clydesdale Road and Highcroft are located on the other side to Grafton
Road/footpath. Cowley Bridge Road is located to the west of Birks Grange and
forms the western boundary of the site. Residential properties within Elmbridge
Gardens, Dunvegan Close, Lodge Hill and Streatham Drive border the remainder
of the site. Vehicular access to the site would continue to be from New North
Road to serve the Birks Grange site with the remainder of the application site
served from Streatham Drive within the campus. The application also includes
highway works to a section of Streatham Drive.
6.0

Description of Development
This outline planning permission seeks consent for the demolition of Clydesdale
and Nash Grove halls of residences, Birks Grange refectory, the estates service
centre and the refurbishment of existing Birks Grange halls to build student
accommodation and ancillary/amenity/associated facilities; additional
landscaping; a new internal access road linking the campus to Birks Grange
village; provision of solar panels at the Holland Hall car park and a new footpath
alongside Streatham Drive. The scheme would involve the demolition of 8,847sq
metres of existing student halls (Clydesdale and Nash) with the total new floor
space limited to a maximum of 49,821 sq metres gross internal floor area. In
addition, the proposal seeks the refurbishment of Birks Grange blocks A-E
including external alterations of the building’s walls, windows, and roof including
roof mounted solar panels to meet equivalent Passivhaus standards for
conversion/refurbishment works.
The overall scheme is proposed to deliver a net increase of between 1,200 to
1,250 new student bedspaces. The precise number of units is not for
determination at this stage given that this is an outline application but the
illustrative/supporting information provides an indication of these numbers. The
accommodation table submitted with the application indicates that the demolition
of Clydesdale and Nash would remove 217 spaces and the refurbishment works
at Birks would reduce the number further by 70 from the existing 360 spaces
contained within Birks Blocks A-E to 290. The total new build would result in
approximately 1500 new bedspaces (against a net reduction of 287 spaces). The
scheme’s design is based on all the new buildings being constructed to
Passivhaus standards. However the submitted outline planning application seeks
approval for a maximum permitted floor area rather a specific number of units.
This approach was used for the development of the East Park development for
1,282 bedspaces (16/1232/OUT) currently under construction. This application
sought to condition the amount of floor area and used parameter plans to limit
the development area and heights of buildings within the outline stage to provide
a set of guiding principles to be followed at the reserved matters stage.
The application site areas can be divided into four main areas:
i)

Demolition of the existing two and three storey buildings at Clydesdale
and Nash Halls and replaced with new student accommodation

Page 55

ranging in height from 3 to 8 storeys. These buildings will include
ancillary service such as shops, cafes at the ground floor level and
arranged in courtyard setting with associated hard and soft
landscaping.
ii)

Demolition of the existing service centre and replace with student
accommodation buildings varying in height from 3 to 4 storeys. A
replacement estates service centres is proposed in planning
application 20/1685/OUT, which if approved would be located to north
east part of the University campus

iii)

Demolition of existing Birks Grange refectory building and construction
of a new 6 storey student accommodation building, with ancillary social
and amenity space on the ground floor.

iv)

Refurbishment of existing accommodation block A-E of the Birks
Grange to achieve equivalent Passivhaus standards to include external
alterations to the walls, windows and roof to include solar panels. The
demolition of the refectory removes catered halls from this part of the
campus results in the need for new kitchens within each flats and
which as a consequence reduces the overall number of units.

In addition, solar panels are proposed above the existing car parking to the east
of Holland Park and south of Grafton Road. The type and design would be
determined at the reserved matters stage. The application proposed no change
to the overall number of car parking spaces within the campus.
A new footway is proposed along the eastern side Streatham Drive to improve
access to and from these sites which would be constructed on existing grassed
area.
A new internal road is proposed in the area of existing estate service centre to
connect the main campus to Birks Grange. The applicants has indicated that this
road would only be used by the estates team to remove the need to access this
part of the campus via the public highway.
The application is accompanied by a significant number of report and plans
includes including indicative images of how the building may ultimately be
designed. However the application is for outline planning permission with all
matters reserved and therefore these details will not be approved drawings,
unless they forms part of the parameter plans, which intend to direct the extent
and height of the development.

Page 56

7.0

Supporting information provided by applicant
The application is accompanied by the following supporting information:




















Planning Statement
Design and Access Statement
Statement of Community Involvement
Illustrative Masterplan
Landspace and Biodiversity Parameter Plan
Parameter Plan – Land Use
Parameter Plan – Movement and Access
Parameter Plan - Heights
Arboricultural Constraints Report
Arboricultural Impact Assessment
Ecological Assessment
Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy
Landscape and Visual Appraisal
Heritage Statement
Lighting Assessment
Noise Assessment
Energy and Passivhaus Report
Transport Statement
Utilities Infrastructure Assessment Report

8.0

Relevant Planning History
Clydesdale and Nash Grove buildings were built in the late 1980s and early
1990s. Planning permission was granted for Birks Grange Village in 2009

9.0

List of Constraints
Smoke Control Area

10.0

Consultations
All consultee responses can be viewed in full on the Council’s website.
Natural England has commented on the need for the Council to consider
whether an appropriate assessment is necessary in respect of this application.
County Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment (Highways)
comment that from a highways view, the provision of circa 1250 student flats on
campus represents a highly sustainable development that is unlikely to create
any significant highway issues. The application is in a sustainable location, with
excellent walking / cycling and public transport opportunities available for
students travel. The key areas of consideration for the Highway Authority relate
to appropriate pedestrian and cycle access and how the additional person trips
from the site will be accommodated.

Page 57

Trip Generation - A transport statement has been submitted with the application.
The proposed development will be car-free and as such, no additional car
parking will be provided. The trip rates used in the transport assessment are the
same as those used in the Spreytonway and Moberly 2017 and East Park site in
2018, which is accepted.
The TS States: A multi-modal trip generation for the site has been undertaken of
an additional 1,250 bedrooms. This forecasts that there will be 293 two-way
person trips made in the AM Peak, 328 two-way person trips made in the PM
Peak and 3,230 two-way person trips made daily.
To accommodate this additional demand, the applicant has made efforts to
improve the permeability and connectivity of the site for walking and cycling trips.
A footway is proposed along the southern side of the eastern link road which will
tie-in to the existing facilities on Clydesdale Road. The applicant has also
proposed a new footway on the south-western side of Streatham Drive adjacent
to the Mardon Hall accommodation which currently has no footway facilities.
The provision for a new footway adjacent to Streatham Drive (shown in Drawing
No 2012758-02) is welcomed by the Highway Authority. The new footway will
connect facilities via the proposed new footway on the eastern link road through
to the Streatham Drive / Mardon Hill Junction, a distance of approximately 250m.
The proposal incorporates appropriate crossing points of Streatham Drive. In
summary the new footway will help to provide safe and suitable access to the site
which is in accordance with Paragraphs 108/110 of the NPPF and CP9 of the
ECC Core Strategy.
Pre-application discussions were also held with the applicant and it was agreed
that Streatham Drive / New North Road would be the primary route for the
majority of student trips from the site towards the train station or city centre.
Streatham Drive / New North Road junction currently has poor provision for
pedestrian and cycle facilities. Given the development will add significant
pedestrian and cyclist movements through this junction (in the region of 3000
trips a day), the Highway Authority will request a S106 contribution towards
improvements at this junction. A S106 contribution of £25,000 has been agreed
with the applicant and will be requested through this application.
TRO - The proposals for a new footway on Streatham Drive shown in Drawing
No 2012758-02 will require a change to the restrictions (double yellows) covered
under the existing Traffic Regulation Order. The amendments to the road
markings to accommodate the proposal will therefore require a new Traffic
Regulation Order. The Highway Authority will seek a contribution in the region of
£3,000 to be secured prior to commencement.
Vehicular Access - The proposed works are primarily on private roads which fall
within the University estate. A new service road is proposed between the existing

Page 58

access road serving the current Estate Services Centre and the existing Birks
Grange access road. This will enable vehicles to access and service the Birks
Grange Village accommodation from within the campus, rather than the B3183
New North Road as was done previously. This allows servicing to be undertaken
on campus, with no impact on the public highway network.
Student drop-off and pick-up will be undertaken on private roads under
management by the university staff. To accommodate the additional demand at
the start and end of terms, the central avenue will also be opened to facilitate a
pickup and drop off service.
Travel Planning - The applicant has been made aware that the existing
Sustainable Travel Plan 2016-2020 is now out of date and due for renewal.
However, it is accepted that the current Sustainable Travel Plan for the University
Campuses will apply to the proposed development. Therefore, the measures and
targets set out within the Travel Plan will apply to students that will reside in the
new accommodation buildings.
It is essential that covered secure cycle parking, in accordance with the
standards set out in the Exeter City Council Sustainable Transport
Supplementary Planning Document, are achieved. The provision of these
facilities should be secured by condition.
Construction - The site is located in a busy pedestrian environment. Demolition
and subsequent construction will therefore need to be carefully managed to
ensure the impact of these is minimised and the potential for large plant,
including cranes, on the highway is likely to be limited. It is therefore
recommended that a condition for a Construction Traffic Management Plan
(CTMP) is attached in the granting of any permission and the applicant is advised
that adequate areas will need to be made available within the site to
accommodate construction vehicles off of the public highway.
Summary - Subject to the below conditions and securing the S106 contribution
towards walking and cycling improvements, the Highway Authority has no
objection to the granting of any planning permission
Devon and Cornwall Police Liaison Officer has no objection in relation to the
application but makes the following comments and recommendations for
consideration.
With limited detail at this stage, it is important to ensure that crime prevention
through environmental design principles are considered and embedded into the
design of the scheme. Adhering to such principles will promote a safe and secure
environment in which students can live and work, by reducing the opportunity for
and fear of crime and antisocial behaviour. The attributes include:

Page 59

• Access and Movement: Places with well-defined and well used routes, with
spaces and entrances that provide for convenient movement without
compromising security. Safe, well overlooked dedicated routes are vital to the
safe navigation of the site and promoting personal safety amongst legitimate
users and reducing the likelihood of creating ‘desire lines’ and the use of
unofficial routes that are not afforded such safety. Casual intrusion into halls of
residents must also be considered in the design with measures on place to
restrict unauthorised access.
• Structure: Places that are structured so that different uses do not cause conflict.
Consider areas that may be open to the public, residential space, mixed use
space etc. ensuring that uses do not conflict with one another.
• Surveillance: Places where all publicly accessible spaces are overlooked; have
a purpose and are well managed to prevent creating areas which could attract
criminal activity, the antisocial to gather or for unacceptable behaviour to go
unnoticed. Presumably monitored CCTV linked to the Estate Patrol department in
keeping with the existing CCTV strategy on campus will be distributed throughout
the scheme. This will go some way to providing formal surveillance onsite.
• Ownership: Places that promote a sense of ownership, respect, territorial
responsibility and community. Such ownership is supported by the use of
defensible space, appropriate boundary treatments, clear demarcation between
private and public space. If ownership of space is ambiguous and responsibility
of it unclear, it can attract crime and antisocial behaviour.
• Physical Protection: Places that include necessary, well-designed security
features. All external doors, accessible windows etc. are advised to be tested
and certificated to a nationally recognised security standard.
• Activity: Places where the level of human activity is appropriate to the location
and creates a reduced risk of crime, fear of crime and a sense of safety at all
times.
• Management and Maintenance: Places that are designed with management
and maintenance in mind to discourage crime, fear of crime and antisocial
behaviour.
Devon County Council Flood and Coastal Risk Management Team raise
objection to the proposal and is current in discussion with the agent to agree
suitably worded conditions to address the need for the scheme to adhere to
SuDS principles.
Devon County Waste Management comment that paragraph 8 of the National
Planning Policy for Waste and Policy W4 of the Devon Waste Plan requires
major development proposals to be accompanied by a Waste Audit Statement.
The application is not supported by any such statement and it is therefore
recommended that a condition is attached requiring the submission of a
statement at reserved matters stage.
Exeter Cycling Campaign notes the provision of cycle parking in line with the
Supplementary Planning Document on Sustainable Transport, and the comments

Page 60

in the application regarding the provision of lighting, cover and security of the
parking facility. The Campaign offers its support to this application.
ECC Environmental Health officer raises no objection subject to the imposition
of suitable conditions in respect of the need for a Construction and
Environmental Management Plan, noise assessment, lighting assessment and
contamination investigation.
ECC Place Making officer comments that:
-The zig-zag plan form of the proposed blocks C1, C2, D1 and D2 terminated by
block E1 creates a central linear corridor linking a series of connected spaces
(Central Spine) the quality of which will be essential to the setting of the
buildings. An integral part of this will be how the level changes are dealt with.
Whilst understanding that this an outline application it would be helpful to have
some indicative sections through the buildings to illustrate how the level changes
could be carefully integrated into the communal areas together with the strategy
for the use of materials.
- Central spine: the key of the Illustrative Masterplan describes this area as a
paved pedestrian ‘central spine’. More information is required to support the
intention that the paving will fully complement the objective of creating a welldesigned space of the highest quality.
- Passivhaus: it would be useful to have examples of other developments which
show how the limitations of Passivhaus requirements on the design of buildings
has been dealt with e.g. lack of projecting features, materials used to articulate
facades, window sizes and reveals. The potential simplicity of the proposed
buildings could create a bland appearance that relies heavily on material finishes
to enhance appearance: examples should be provided of the high quality surface
materials that the design of the buildings demand.
- Holland Hall car park solar panels: examples of good designs would be helpful
to show how this substantial structure could be both functional and have a wellconsidered appearance that integrates with its setting. In addition there is a need
to ensure that an assessment of potential reflected glare is carried out.
- Although not within the development area Birks Bank Pinetum has been a
major influence on the evolution of the building height parameters and its
continued presence and well-being are essential. Whilst the University’s estate
maintenance is well-established, a specific management plan for Birks Bank
Pinetum should be produced to accompany the development proposals to ensure
that it maintains and enhances its qualities.
Further comments received in response to the initial observation March 2021
The Illustrated Courtyard sections indicates the kind of scale and relationship
between the different levels that could result from the development (drwg.
No.0803-P-WIA-CB-XX-SITE-A-010030).

Page 61

The Outline landscape Materials Palette shows a co-ordinated and good quality
range of materials and street furniture.
The Passivhaus Facades Precedent Sheets which shows some very interesting
and lively elevations which if emulated could potentially produce good designs.
Responses to other comments are acceptable.
RSPB comment that they strongly recommend that bird boxes are made a
condition of the consent if granted and that the number and types of integral
boxes in the new and refurbished building comply with the Council’s own SPD.
11.0

Representations
41 objection emails/letters received. Issues raised:
1. Too many students in the City already;
2. City too reliant on the University/wrong profile for the City;
3. Buildings too tall/overbearing for the area, particularly at 8 storeys, buildings
should be no higher than 3 storeys;
4. Increased noise, disturbance and anti-social behaviour from students
particularly within the outdoor areas;
5. Density of the development too great/overconcentration of units;
6. Lack of regard to neighbouring resident’s amenities;
7. Concentration of student accommodation in the neighbouring streets,
increased by this proposal;
8. Change of units to self-catering will result in increased traffic from delivery
vehicles;
9. Increased overall traffic and consequent road safety issues;
10. Design of proposed buildings out of proportion with surrounding existing
buildings;
11. Need for shop facilities to be on-site to avoid student movement through
residential streets at night;
12. Detrimental visual impact when seen from across the river;
13. Height of buildings will dominate the campus skyline;
14. Increased overlooking to neighbouring properties;
15. Buildings too close to existing properties;
16. Light pollution adversely affecting neighbours and wildlife;
17. Lack of pavements will increase risk of accidents;
18. Increased traffic pollution;
19. Inadequate parking/loading/turning areas on campus;
20. Loss of wildlife habitat/adverse environmental impact;
21. Concern regarding drainage and runoff as buildings to be built on a steep
slope;
22. Impact on existing TV signal;
23. Inaccurate information submitted in respect of pedestrian flow through the
campus;
24. Increase in rubbish and litter in the area;

Page 62

25. Noise and traffic disturbance from new access road next to the Birks building;
26. Need for more trees to be planted to preserve privacy;
27. Need for a noise assessment;
28. Overlooking of memorial ground;
29. Need to provide secure boundaries to protect neighbouring properties from
student intruders;
30. Blocks B2 and E1 too big and need to be reduce given the harm to residential
amenity;
31. Overconcentration of students contrary to the development plan;
32. Proposed illustrations show monolithic homogenous block with little
architectural merit;
33. Concern about the mental health of students living in high rise blocks;
34. Design of units implies more expensive accommodation impacting on
affordability and social intrusion;
35. Lack of change from the developer in response to the original public
consultation;
36. Loss of green space within the campus;
37. Impact of stairwell in visual and use terms on residential amenity;
38. Incomplete information with landscape and ecological reports regarding
nearby wildlife areas;
39. Incomplete historical information regarding the memorial ground next to
Holland Hall;
40. Transport plan inaccurate;
41. Loss of campus parking;
42. Loss of views from existing campus buildings;
43. Buildings will create wind tunnels.
Design Review Panel 20 February 2020
Summarised comments
The Stated principles and aspirations for the project are supported.
It is felt the design approach undertaken to date is exemplary
A further attempt to engage with students during the design process may be
helpful.
Generally, the landscape led approach being undertaken is supported.
Incorporation of external passive social spaces is supported.
It would be helpful to consider what the key intersection will look like and how this
may be marked/signposted.
It would be helpful to consider a wider definition of sustainability beyond zero
carbon.
There may be opportunities to incorporate further harvesting/renewable energy
measures.
A finer grain analysis of the development site and immediate surroundings would
be helpful.
There is concern that the presented wireframe visualisations indicate an overly
homogenous/continuous built form.

Page 63

There is concern regarding the impact upon the setting of the existing Mardon
Hall.
Challenges of overlooking and north facing aspects should be considered at this
stage of the design process.
Consider wind at this stage of the design process.
Demonstrate how the landscape proposals will knit into the wider green
infrastructure plan would be beneficial.
There is concern some of the northern facing external spaces and residences
courtyards may always be in shadow.
Additional eyelevel views from within the central street may be beneifical to
assess the quality of the proposed place-making environment for end users.
It is felt the proposed residential buildings appear brutal and would benefit from
being visually softened.
A (broad brush) Design Code at this outline stage may be beneficial.
12.0

Relevant Policies
Government Guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (February 2019)
2.
Achieving sustainable design
3.
Plan making
4.
Decision-making
5.
Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
8.
Promoting healthy and safe communities
11.
Making effective use of land
12.
Achieving well-designed places
15.
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
16.
Conserving and enhancing the historic environment
Exeter Local Development Framework Core Strategy (Adopted 21 February
2012)
CP1 - Spatial Approach
CP4 - Density
CP5 - Student Accommodation
CP9 - Transport
CP10 - Meeting Community Needs
CP11 – Pollution
CP12 - Flood Risk
CP13 - Decentralised Energy Networks
CP14 - Using Renewable and Low Carbon Energy in New Development
CP15 - Sustainable Construction
CP16 – Landscape Setting
CP17 - Design and Local Distinctiveness
Exeter Local Plan First Review 1995-2011 (Adopted 31 March 2005)
AP1 - Design and Location of Development

Page 64

AP2 - Sequential Approach
E4 - Exeter University Campus
The development of education uses, student housing and research and
development initiatives, including ancillary production, will be permitted on the
University of Exeter Campus provided that the character and setting of the
Campus is protected.
H5 - Diversity of Housing
Relevant text- Student housing will be permitted provided that:
a) the scale and intensity of use will not harm the character of the building and
locality and will not cause an unacceptable reduction in the amenity of
neighbouring occupiers or result in on-street parking problems;
b) the proposal will not create an overconcentration of the use in any one area of
the city which would change the character or the neighbourhood or create an
imbalance in the local community;
d) student accommodation is located so as to limit the need to travel to the
Campus by car
T1 - Hierarchy of Modes
T2 - Accessibility Criteria
T3 - Encouraging Use of Sustainable Modes
T10 - Car Parking Standards
C1 - Conservation Areas
C2 - Listed Buildings
C3 - Buildings of Local Importance
C4 – Historic Park and Garden
C5 - Archaeology
EN2 - Contaminated Land
EN3 - Air and Water Quality
EN4 - Flood Risk
EN5 – Noise
EN6 – Renewable Energy
DG1 - Objectives of Urban Design
DG2 - Energy Conservation
DG4 - Residential Layout and Amenity
DG6 Vehicular Circulation and Car Parking in Residential Development
DG7 - Crime Prevention and Safety
LS1 - Landscape Setting
LS4 - Local Nature Conservation Designations
Devon Waste Plan 2011 – 2031 (Adopted 11 December 2014) (Devon County
Council)
W4 – Waste Prevention
W21 – Making Provision for Waste Management
Development Delivery Development Plan Document (Publication Version,
July 2015)

Page 65

This document represents a material consideration but has not been adopted
and does not form part of the Development Plan and therefore carries limited
weight.
DD1 – Sustainable Development
DD9 – Accessible, Adaptable and Wheelchair User Dwellings
DD12 - Purpose Built Student Accommodation
This policy seeks to protect residential amenity and to ensure that purpose built
student accommodation is fit for purpose:
Purpose built student accommodation will be permitted provided the proposal:
a) respects, and contributes positively towards, the character and appearance of
the area;
DD20 – Accessibility and Sustainable Movement
DD21 – Parking
DD25 – Design Principles
DD26 – Designing out Crime
DD28 – Conserving and Managing Heritage Assets
DD29 Landscape Setting Areas
DD30 – Green Infrastructure
DD31 – Biodiversity
DD33 – Flood Risk
DD34 – Pollution and Contaminated Land
Exeter City Council Supplementary Planning Documents
University of Exeter Masterplan Development 2010
8.2.2 Areas with potential for development
All areas outside the primary campus landscape structure have the potential for
development subject to more detailed analysis and local sensitivities.
Zone A These comprise areas where development already exists. New
development would seek to complement the existing buildings or building groups.
Park Living
8.3.2 The …residential areas at Mardon Park…comprise a range of building
forms and scales set within a fairly mature landscape. The tree cover will be
maintained and a regime of felling trees and replanting introduced to ensure that
this light woodland character is maintained.
Mardon Park
8.6.6 These areas should be developed to create attractive, inviting and vibrant
living spaces that create a student community set within a wooded setting, and
taking advantage of the excellent views of the countryside.
Additional student residences could be created by the consolidation and
redevelopment of the cluster of student residences in the Clydesdale area of the
Campus.
Building Form
Any new development should ensure that it creates a sense of place, with clear
fronts and backs and entrances that overlook the key public spaces.

Page 66

Any new development should respond carefully to the topography and to views
out over the wider landscape.
Archaeology and Development November 2004
Sustainable Transport March 2013
Development Related to the University June 2007
Houses in Multiple Occupation (including Class C4 Uses) January 2014
Planning Obligations April 2014
University of Exeter Masterplan Development 2010
Trees in relation to Development September 2009
Residential Design Guide September 2010
Pennsylvania Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan May 2005
The site is identified as being within the University Campus and as a Site of Local
Interest for Nature Conservation Importance. The site forms part of the
University's designation as a Historic Park and Garden
Exeter University's Estate Strategy
Other documents
Net-Zero Exeter 2030 Plan July 2020 to inform all policy documents, plans and
corporate decision making in response to the Climate Emergency and in
pursuance of the goal to make Exeter a carbon neutral city by 2030
13.0

Human rights
Article 6 - Right to a fair trial.
Article 8 - Right to respect for private and family life and home.
The first protocol of Article 1 Protection of property
The consideration of the application in accordance with Council procedures will
ensure that views of all those interested are considered. All comments from
interested parties have been considered and reported within this report in
summary with full text accessible via the Council’s website.
It is acknowledged that there are certain individual properties where there may
be some adverse impact and this will need to be mitigated as recommended
through imposing conditions to ensure that there is no undue impact on the home
and family life for occupiers. However, any interference with the right to a private
and family life and home arising from the scheme as result of impact on
residential amenity is considered necessary in a democratic society in the
interests of the economic well-being of the city and wider area and is
proportionate given the overall benefits of the scheme in the provision of homes,
including affordable housing and economic benefits.
Any interference with property rights is in the public interest and in accordance
with the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 regime for controlling the
development of land.

Page 67

This Recommendation is based on consideration of the proposal against adopted
Development Plan policies, the application of which does not prejudice the
Human Rights of the applicant or any third party.
14.0

Public Sector Equalities Duty
As set out in the Equalities Act 2010, all public bodies in discharging their
functions must have “due regard” to the need to:
a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that
is prohibited by or under this Act;
b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;
c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.
Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not
share it involves having due regard in particular to the need to:
a) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;
b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it;
c) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate
in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is
disproportionately low.
Whilst there is no absolute requirement to fully remove any disadvantage the
Duty is to have “regard to” and remove OR minimise disadvantage and in
considering the merits of this planning application the planning authority has had
due regard to the matters set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010.

15.0

Financial benefits
The requirements to set out the financial benefits arising from a planning
application is set out in s155 of the Housing and Planning Act 2016. This requires
that local planning authorities include financial benefits in each report which is:
a) made by an officer or agent of the authority for the purposes of a nondelegated determination of an application for planning permission; and
b) contains a recommendation as to how the authority should determine the
application in accordance with section 70(2) (of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990).

Page 68

The information on financial benefits must include a list of local financial
considerations or benefits of a development which officers consider are likely to
be obtained by the authority if the development is carried out including their value
if known and should include whether the officer considers these to be material or
not material.
16.0

Planning Assessment
The key issues are:
1.Principle of the Proposed Development/Need for student accommodation
2. Sustainable Design
3. Impact on wider landscape
4. Impact on residential amenity
5. Impact on trees/ecology/nature conservation issues
6. Access and Transport Issues
7. Heritage assets
8. Construction and Environmental Management Plan/UXO
9. Flooding
10. Need for Environmental Assessment
11. CIL
1. Principle of Development /Need for student accommodation
This application is similar to the recent approval at East Park in that a
development of this magnitude requires careful consideration as it will have a
significant impact on the immediate character and appearance of the area both
within context of the University Campus and the City as a whole. It is
understandable that the application has attracted a significant number of
objections from local residents living nearby and the wide ranging issues they
raise require particular assessment. However this application differs from East
Park in that it seeks to redevelopment areas which are already used for student
accommodation or related uses rather than a green field, albeit in the case of
East Park one that was identified in the University Masterplan for development.
The report will address the principle of the site's development and use within the
development plan policies in addition to considering more site specific matters
such as the siting and heights of buildings, sustainable design, impact on the
landscape/trees/ wildlife, proximity to residential properties, heritage assets,
flooding and contamination/unexploded ordnances.
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states in paragraph 11 that:‘planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise’. It is therefore important to consider the
development plan background against which this application is assessed. It is
accepted that the creation of purpose-built student accommodation on Campus
represents a sustainable form of development and seeks to make most efficient
use of previously developed land. The principle of the development is therefore
wholly acceptable.

Page 69

The Core Strategy 2012 states CP5:‘The supply of housing should meet the
needs of all members of the community such that ‘…’purpose built student
accommodation should be provided to meet the housing need.’ The
accompanying text (para 6.28) states that the University envisages about 3,300
additional full time living away from home students from 2010/11 to 2025/26 ‘The
University’ aim to provide housing for all full-time students who want it is
supported because it will ease pressure on existing family housing. 75% or more
of additional student numbers should be accommodated in purpose built student
housing. New purpose built housing should be located on, or close to the
University Campuses…’. It is clear that the most sustainable location for new
student accommodation is within the campus particularly when the scheme is
supported by additional shops and ancillary support facilities as is the case in this
submission.
Objectors to the scheme have commented that there are already too many
purpose-built student flats and there is no need for further accommodation of this
type in the City. Core Strategy Policy CP5 provides the strategic context which
supports additional student accommodation to meet housing need and as part of
an adopted development plan policy represents an important material
consideration.
Development of significant further student accommodation is considered
necessary to ensure good performance against the target of 75% or more of
students in PBSA to meet University aspirations that first year and overseas
students have the opportunity of a Campus experience and to reduce the impact
of students’ imbalancing communities in popular student areas. If the number of
Council Tax exemptions in private shared houses is to be reduced it is important
to continue to allow significant amounts of additional PSBA to be delivered that
exceed the growth of the University. As is the case for conventional housing
there is no requirement for the applicant to prove the need for student
accommodation. The application must be considered on its merits.
Development within the campus is covered by Exeter Local Plan First Review
2005 Policy E4 which states that:‘The development of education uses, student housing and ancillary research and
development initiatives, including ancillary production, will be permitted on the
University of Exeter Campus provided that the character and setting of the
Campus is protected.’. The provision of further student accommodation clearly
fails within these criteria.
The publication version Development Delivery DPD July 2015 (not part of the
development plan) states (para 3.27): ‘The Council will encourage the provision
of further purpose built student accommodation at Streatham Campus through
the review of the masterplan. By maximising the number of additional students
accommodated in purpose built student housing, further adverse impacts on the

Page 70

private housing market can be minimised.’ Policy DD12 seeks to protect
residential amenity and to ensure accommodation is fit for purpose.
A Streatham Campus Master Plan supplementary planning document
was adopted by the City Council in 2010 following public consultation. Whilst the
Masterplan does not form part of the development plan it remains a relevant
material planning consideration. It was prepared to provide guidance and inform
decisions on the University’s future expansion plans. The application area is
referred to in the document as Mardon Park stating that ‘…additional student
residences could be created by consolidation and redevelopment of the cluster of
student residences in the Clydesdale area of the Campus’
In summary, it is considered that the proposed scheme would accord with the
principle of these relevant policies. It is therefore necessary to balance the
relevant development plan policies as a whole against other specific material
planning issues.
2. Sustainable Design
In accordance with advice provided by the National Planning Policy Framework
and Planning Practice Guidance ‘Design’ the applicant has sought the advice of
the Design Review Panel prior to the submission of the planning application. This
guidance states that local planning authorities are required to have regard to the
recommendations of the Design Review Panel in assessing applications. The
Panel concluded that although they welcomed the aspiration of the proposal
which focused on landscape and ecological considerations, although were not
supportive of the design presented in its current form did support the sustainable
design approach being followed. The supporting documentation describes how
the Passivhaus approach has informed the siting, form, massing, orientation and
treatment of the buildings, which will dictate the future detailed design of the
building. These measures look to ensure thermal comfort throughout the
buildings and provide modelling to optimise efficiency for energy use in part
through the building’s orientation and windows sizes. As stated in the supporting
documentation the Passivhaus approach needs to be balanced between carbon
saving design and other material planning considerations, such as the
relationship with existing residential building alongside the boundary of the site
and elevational treatment. The applicant has stated that this scheme is set to be
one of the largest Passivhaus schemes in the UK and accordingly is seeking to
be an exemplar project in the construction industry and university sector.
3. Impact on the landscape
The application seeks outline planning permission and consequently detailed
layout and building design issues are for future consideration. However the
applicant has provide a range of supporting reports/plans including illustrative
designs, sectional drawings, a detailed Design and Access Statement and
Landscape and Visual Appraisal which provides an appropriate level of
information to enable an assessment of the scheme on the wider landscape to be

Page 71

made. It is accepted that the character and appearance of the area will be
significantly altered given the quantum of development being proposed. The
submitted Landscape and Visual Appraisal provides a detailed study of views
from within the site and from wider vantage points. Additional information has
recently submitted which provides further clarification of how the development
would appear within the context of the existing buildings within the campus.
Particular attention is given to the appearance of the development when viewed
from the Riverside Valley Park, as this provides the least obstructed view of the
development seen as a whole. Whilst the new buildings will clearly be seen from
other viewpoints they will be partially obscured by existing building or mature
vegetation. It is noted that the Council’s Place Making officer and the Design
Review Panel raised no objection to the proposed quantum of development or
height of the proposed buildings, which in some instances are 8 storeys. It is
considered that the combination of the site’s topography and the existing mature
trees contained on campus, such as the Birks Bank Pinetum will help to integrate
the development into the campus setting.
Additional information has been received which indicates that the proposed
maximum heights contained within the submitted parameter plan will not exceed
the ridgeline of the campus in this location or the height of Holland Hall, which
represents the most prominent building in this part of the campus. It is accepted
that the development will effectively obscure this building from other wider
viewpoints and therefore it will be important at the detailed reserved matters
stage that the external design and materials provide sufficient interest to avoid
the overly homogenous/continuous built form as considered by the Design
Review Panel.
The supporting information outline the level of information that will be necessary
to ensure that various architectural techniques are used to break up the visual
massing of the proposed buildings both vertically and horizontally. Whilst images
have been produced it is the reserved matters stage where decisions on the
acceptability of the proposed building’s design is required. However it is
considered that the following summary as stated in the submitted design and
access standard does indicated that a range of possible design options are being
explored:Clustering buildings into groups of distinct character, which will read as distinct
elements from distant views;
Creating breaks in plan form and steps in building heights to differentiate
buildings of similar character;
Exploring a variety of roof forms, including pitched and dormers;
Using a variety and mix of materials to differentiate buildings and cluster with
brick as the predominant facing material;
Adopting horizontal devices such as attic storeys, string courses and
differentiated ground floor to add visual interest and reduce repetition;

Page 72

Using treatments to group windows horizontally and vertically with framing or
material changes to break the repetitive window patterning common to student
accommodation;
Tree planting to reduce the perceived massing from distant view.
In conclusion the findings of the Landscape and Visual Appraisal are accepted
which states that ‘…the proposed development is generally characteristic of the
type of development currently found within the University Grounds. Increases in
efficiency of land use will result in a minor adverse effect on the current informal
character of Clydesdale and Nash Grove but the proposed hard and soft
landscaping scheme will enhance connectivity and setting, connecting with
existing landscape and ecological features…The built form of the building is
stepped down the hillside to work with the sites natural topography. The proposal
is considered to be of a scale and mass that is not out of context in relation to the
surrounding campus and adjacent buildings and spaces…’
4. Impact on residential amenity
The majority of the scheme involves the redevelopment or refurbishment of
existing campus student accommodation buildings. It is only in the location of the
Birks refectory and the estate service yard where the existing uses are to be
replaced by new student accommodation. However the scheme does seek to
make most efficiency use of the land, which means that the density of student
accommodation in these areas will be increased, as will the overall heights of
proposed buildings. The land use parameter plan indicates the position of the
proposed buildings in relation to the boundaries of the site. It is proposed that this
plan would be conditioned and therefore would provide a level of certainty of the
appropriate buffer between the proposed buildings and existing boundaries when
the reserved matters application is submitted. In addition, the heights parameter
plan identifies areas of the site where the highest buildings of 6, 7 and 8 storeys
are considered acceptable. The parameter plans are important in directing
development to areas of the campus that are most appropriate in terms of site’s
topography/relationship with existing buildings but also importantly in relation to
neighbouring residential properties.
The applicant’s supporting statement highlights that during the pre-submission
public consultation stage neighbour’s comments were taken into consideration
and as a result some blocks were reduced in height and consequently overall
student numbers lowered. This is considered an appropriate response to the
public consultation exercise and to be expected. However notwithstanding the
changes already made by the applicant, it was considered that in three areas
closest to existing dwellings the submitted parameter plans still represented an
unacceptable relationship and amended drawings were sought.
Block B1 is the site of the existing estate service yard, which is to be replaced
with a new student block of 3 and 4 storeys. The resultant building would lie
adjacent to existing residential properties located in Lodge Hill to the south and

Page 73

Streatham Drive to the north. Currently these properties border onto low level
buildings and greenhouses and it is clear that these residents will experience a
significant change in the scale of the buildings and the type of activity from this
site. In this instance it is considered that the stepped nature of the proposed
height from 3 to 4 storeys furthest away from residential properties is appropriate
and the distance from the boundaries acceptable. However whilst a ‘window
control zone’ has been proposed, which seeks to prevent windows from the
student blocks directly facing residential properties was indicated, it was still
consjdered that some degree of overlooking would occur. Consequently
amended plans have been received which has increased the zone from 37
metres to 42 metres from the boundary with the neighbouring properties, which is
now considered appropriate. In addition, to prevent activity closest to the
boundaries with these properties a new fence line and wildlife buffer is required
alongside the southern boundary to prevent the area being used as an informal
recreation area and discourage students attempting to use the area as cut
through, as residents have previously experienced. It is considered that this
would be included in the landscape and ecology management plan to be
conditioned. It is now considered that the arrangement in this part of the campus
would be acceptable, although further assessment would be required at the
reserved matters stage to ensure that the relationship with 32 Streatham Drive is
appropriate.
Block B2 would be created with the demolition of two existing student
accommodation blocks. 32 Streatham Drive is located to the south of the site and
separated by existing trees. Whilst is acknowledged that the land slopes away
from the boundary with the existing residential dwelling, concern was raised
regarding the height of the proposed buildings at four storeys and the indicative
orientation of the proposed building in relation to 32 Streatham Drive.
Consequently amended plans have been received reducing the maximum height
of the new building to three storeys, which in some areas of the building would
result in a ridge height for the proposed building being lower that the existing
building. In addition, the indicative layout of the buildings has been re-orientated
to remove windows, which could potentially face towards this neighbouring
property or includes a design of window that is orientated to the south west. The
parameter plan would allow the closest new building to be approximately 35
metres from this neighbouring property. Whilst these layout changes are not for
determination at this outline stage they do indicate an awareness of the applicant
to sensitive relationship the development would potentially cause to residential
amenity in terms of overlooking and over-dominance.
Block E1 would be created with the demolition of three student blocks within the
existing Nash Buildings and are located closest to residential properties in
Highcroft. The original submission indicated the area for four storey buildings and
an indicative layout proposing an ‘H’ shaped building in order to minimise the
amount of flank wall facing these properties thereby seeking to reduce the overdominance of the building. A ‘window control zone’ was also proposed to prevent

Page 74

the inclusion of windows, which may overlook neighbouring properties. However
whilst it was noted that the proposed building was intended to move the building
further away from the boundary, in some areas by a distance of 12 metres from
that of the existing student block, concern was raised about the dominating
impact the proposed building would have when viewed from the neighbouring
properties. Consequently the parameter plan has been amended to reduce the
storey height of the building alongside the Holland Building car park from four
storeys to three storeys. The front section of the building is still shown at four
storeys, as this is furthest from residential properties being further down the
slope of the site and therefore acceptable. The reduction in storey height has
resulted in the proposed buildings being comparable to the ridge height of the
replaced student blocks on this part of the site. In addition, the ‘window control
zone’ has been increased to ensure that the central section of the ‘H’ does not
have windows directly facing residential properties of Highcroft. It is noted that
this section of the building would be located approximately 50 metres from the
boundary of the residential properties. It is considered that this will help address
issues raised by neighbours in respect of overlooking and light intrusion. The
changes would result in a scheme that better reflects its relationship with
neighbouring properties to an acceptable level.
As previously stated this application is for outline and therefore the details
submitted within the reserved matters application will require further assessment
to be made. It is important to note that the parameter plans in respect of land use
and height represent the maximum the development can achieve. If at the
reserved matters stage there are areas of the site where a reduced building
height is required or siting of building deemed too close to a boundary then
further changes can be at made. In addition, residents have raised concern about
the increased noise and disturbance level following the significant increase of
student numbers in this area. It is considered that the student management,
which would be a requirement of the Section 106 agreement, represents an
appropriate measure to address these matters.
5. Impact on trees/ecology/nature conservation issues
The major of the development site is currently occupied by existing buildings and
consequently the impact of the scheme on trees and wildlife habitat is limited. In
particular the Pinetum is retained in its entirely and represents an important
element for the successful integration of the resultant scheme into the wider
landscape setting. The important trees are identified on the detailed tree survey
and the arboricultural impact assessment, which has informed the submitted
parameter plans and can be controlled by planning condition. In addition, it is
considered that a condition which requires a detailed arboricultural method
statement in association with the tree protection plan is appropriate in this
instance.
In addition, the application is supported by an ecological survey undertaken to
consider the impacts of the development and describe suitable avoidance,

Page 75

mitigation and enhancement measures. An extended phase I habitat survey was
conducted in September 2019 to map the habitats present and highlight the
potential for protected species. Following this survey it was concluded that the
application site offered potential to support bats, badgers, nesting birds and
reptiles. In addition, specialist surveys have been undertaken in respect of bats
and badgers. Given the presence of the species identified, it is consider
appropriate to impose an ecological management plan to ensure that the existing
wildlife and its habitat is safeguarded and enhanced following the development of
these sites. The submitted reports highlight in particular the need for an updated
badger report; bat sensitive lighting strategy; sensitive working methods to
protect badgers and hedgehogs; need to a bat licence and the installation of a
range of bat and bird boxes into the fabric of the buildings or trees. In summary, it
is considered that appropriate measures have been demonstrated within the
supporting documentation to show that sufficient regards has been given to
safeguarding and enhancing the biodiversity of the site.
6. Access and Transport Issues
The Council highway officer comments that Streatham Drive is the primary route
that the majority of students are likely to take from this development.
Consequently the provision for a new footway adjacent to Streatham Drive is
therefore to be welcomed. The new footway will help to provide safe and suitable
access to the site which is in accordance with Paragraphs 108/110 of the NPPF
and CP9 of the ECC Core Strategy. However, the County Council are in the
process of developing proposals for pedestrian and cycle improvements at the
New North Road / Streatham Drive junction and consider that improvements at
this location would help cater for the additional demand in person trips from the
development which would justified a financial contribution of £25k towards these
works. The highway officer has raised no objection to the scheme subject to the
imposition of suitable conditions and financial contributions.
7. Heritage Assets
In accordance with advice contained within the NPPF local authorities have a
duty to consider heritage assets that may be affected by a proposal. The whole
of the University Campus site, which includes the application site, lies within a
Historic Garden and Park as identified in the Exeter Local Plan First Review and
is covered by Policy C4. The policy seeks to prevent loss of features that are
integral to the Park’s character or appearance and would detract from its
enjoyment, layout or setting. The applicant’s design for the site is landscape led,
taking account of the relief of the site and the context of the development in its
wider landscape setting area, which includes the existing Campus. The Pinetum
forms an important element within the historic park designation and confirmation
that this will remain is essential. It is accepted that the small number of trees
removed will be adequate compensation. In addition, a local resident has
comment on the presence of a memorial site to the north east of the site. It is
considered that the proposed development will not have a harmful effect on this

Page 76

area and therefore acceptable. Consequently it is considered that the scheme is
appropriate within the context of Local Plan Policy C4.
The closest listed building is Grade II listed Reed Hall to the south east of the
application site within the University Campus. Members are advised that their
statutory duty in matters of setting of listed buildings and Conservation Areas
under Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 is to give special regard to the desirability of preserving and enhancing the
character or appearance of the area and siting of listed buildings. It is considered
that the distances from the application site and the presence of existing mature
landscape would represent an acceptable relationship between the development
and these recognised heritage assets.
8. Construction and Environmental Management Plan/UXO
Local residents have raised concern about the level of disturbance which would
occur from the development during the construction phase from vehicles entering
and leaving the site during demolition and initial construction work on the site,
delivery of materials, construction of essential infrastructure and ultimately the
buildings themselves. A condition is therefore needed requiring the submission of
a detailed CEMP is required to ensure that environmental issues raised by
residents, such as the location of material storage, hours of working, dust, mud
on the road noise etc are addressed prior to commencement of works and once
details of the infrastructure and buildings are known
In addition, residents have raised concern in connection with the recent bomb
incident in Glenthorne Road. In response the University has provided a
preliminary UXO (unexploded ordnance) risk assessments for the sites which
was prepared in November 2019 and is currently undertaking a detailed report to
determine the most approach form of action to take which may include a nonIntrusive survey prior to commencement of any ground works. The university has
stressed that they fully acknowledge its responsibilities to its staff, students and
visitors in this regard as well as the potential impacts to the local neighbours, and
will undertake necessary surveys that involve digging below a certain depth. It is
therefore considered that a condition is imposed to address this issue.
9. Flooding
The applicant has submitted a Flood Risk Assessment which states that the site
is located within Flood Zone 1, is not within a critical drainage area and has no
history of surface water flooding. The report concludes that the drainage
proposed for the site through mainly a sealed attenuation facility coupled with a
partial infiltration facility would meet national and local policy and offer
betterment, alleviating existing flood issues, which occurs as a result of the
natural run off and gradient associated with this particular area of land. However
the County Flood Officer have raised concern about the lack of detail contained
within the report in respect of times of high rainfall and lack of mitigation which
incorporate SUDS measures. The applicant is currently discussing this issue

Page 77

which a view to acknowledging the need for a suitably worded condition for
details to be provided at the reserved matters stage.
10. Need for an Environmental Impact Assessment
Residents have expressed concern that the application was not accompanied by
an Environment Statement in accordance with Environment Impact Assessment
(EIA) regulations. The local planning authority has provided a screening opinion
that concludes that an EIA in this instance is not required. Whilst the proposal
requires significant supporting documentation, which has been provided, to make
an appropriate assessment in the context of this planning application, it is
important to note that the site has previously been identified for development in
both the Exeter Local Plan First Review and the University’s Masterplan. This is
a brownfield site where re-development is to be expected and encouraged. In
addition, Members are advised that the Planning Practice Guidance
‘Environmental Impact Assessment’ states that ‘only a very small proportion of
Schedule 2 development (which this development falls within) will require an
assessment…’. The Guidance goes onto state that it is for the local planning
authority to consider whether a proposed development requires an
Environmental Impact Assessment.
11. Community Infrastructure Levy
CIL contributions -The adopted CIL charging schedule applies a levy on
proposals that create additional new floor space on a site. This proposal is CIL
liable. The rate at which CIL is charged for this development is £59.46 per sq.
metre. Confirmation of the final CIL charge will be provided to the applicant in a
CIL liability notice issued prior to the commencement of the development. If the
proposed maximum floor space of 49,821 sq metres was utilised (minus the
existing floor space of 8,847 sq m to be demolished) this would result in a CIL
contribution of approximately £2,436,314.
17.0

Conclusion
The proposal complies with the development plan policies, which concludes that
the principle of the development of this site is appropriate. Given the recent
number of student accommodation schemes submitted in off Campus locations,
the proposal for such a significant number of bed spaces within a sustainable
location on Campus is to be welcomed. It is accepted that the quantum of
development proposed is substantial however it is considered that the parameter
plans effectively limit the level of development to an acceptable scale. The
proposed building heights to accommodate this would have a considerable
impact on the character and appearance of the area. However it is an accepted
planning practice that where development is considered acceptable in principle,
most efficient use of the land should be sought. In addition, the Passivhaus
approach to the scheme is to be welcomed and is accepted will in some instance
dictate the orientation, form and design of the resultant buildings. The parameter
plans will help to guide the development to an appropriate proximity to
boundaries so that the resultant development can be achieved without resulting
in overdevelopment and detriment to the landscape setting of the area or

Page 78

adversely affecting the amenity of residents living in the neighbouring properties.
This outline application seeks to establish the principle of student
accommodation on the site and it will be at the reserved matters stage, which will
ensure that the details, as already highlighted within this report, are dealt with. It
is therefore recommended that the application is approved.
18.0

RECOMMENDATION
Subject to the completion of a Section 106 Agreement securing a Student
Management Plan and a financial contribution towards Streatham Drive / New
North Road junction of £25,000 and Traffic Regulation Order contribution
APPROVE the application subject to the following conditions:1) Approval of the details of the layout, scale, appearance of the buildings, the
means of access thereto and the landscaping of the site (hereinafter called "the
reserved matters") shall be obtained from the Local Planning Authority in writing
before any development is commenced.
Reason: To safeguard the rights of control by the Local Planning Authority in
respect of the reserved matters.
2) Application for the approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local
Planning Authority before the expiration of five years from the date of the
permission and the development hereby permitted shall be begun before the
expiration of five years from the date of the permission, or before the expiration
of two years from the date of the approval of the last of the reserved matters to
be approved whichever is the later.
Reason: To ensure compliance with section 91 - 93 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.
3) The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in
accordance with the Site Location Plan 010002 Rev P2, Demolition Plan (dwg
no. 010003 Rev P2); Land Use Parameters Plan (dwg no. 010010 Rev P2);
Movement and Access Parameter Plan (dwg no. 010011 Rev P2); Heights
Parameter Plan (dwg no. 010012 Rev P2) & Landscape and Biodiversity
Parameter Plan (Figure 1, dated 16th April 2020) as modified by other conditions
of this consent.
Reason: In order to ensure compliance with the approved drawings.
4) Before works commence on any individual building(s) details of the finished
floor levels and overall roof heights of the building(s) in relation to a fixed point or
O.S datum (not to exceed the AOD specified in the Building Heights Parameter
Plan dwg no 010012 rev P2) have been submitted to, and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interest of visual amenity and the appropriate development of the
site.

Page 79

5) No development shall take place until an Outline Landscape and Ecology
Management Plan, to include recommendations, has been submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority. The Management Plan shall indicate
a) how the existing biodiversity of the site will be protected, in accordance with all
relevant legislation;
b) how the proposed development and associated works will enhance wildlife in
the area and
c) how the landscaped area is to be managed to include an ecological clerk of
works
and shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for review on a 24 month
basis unless otherwise agreed in writing;
Reason: In the interests of nature conservation.
6) No development shall take place until a Detailed Arboricultural Method
Statement in association with the Tree Protection Plan for the demolition and
construction phase of the development has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Tree Protection Plan shall also
consider how trees adjacent to the site, including the Pinetum, are to be
protected. The final method statement shall incorporate a provisional programme
of works; supervision and monitoring details by an Arboricultural Consultant shall
proceed in accordance with the measures described in the Arboricultural Method
Statement throughout the duration of the works.
Reason - To ensure the continued wellbeing of the trees in the interests of the
amenity and environmental quality of the locality.
7) No development (including ground works) or vegetation clearance works shall
take place until a Construction Environmental Method Statement has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
Statement shall provide for:
a) The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors.
b) Loading and unloading of plant and materials.
c) Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development.
d) The erection and maintenance of securing hoarding, if appropriate, which shall
be kept clear of graffiti and fly-posting.
e) Wheel washing facilities.
f) Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction.
g) A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from construction works,
with priority given to reuse of building materials on site wherever practicable.
h) No burning on site during construction or site preparation works
i) Measures to minimise noise nuisance to neighbours from plant and machinery.
j) Construction working hours and deliveries from 8:00 to 18:00 Monday to
Friday, 8:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays or Bank Holidays.
The approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period
of the development.
Reason: In the interest of residential amenity.

Page 80

8) No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a
Construction Traffic Management Plan has been submitted to, and approved in
writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The statement should include details of
route of construction traffic vehicles, access arrangements, timings and
management of arrivals and departures of vehicles. The approved Statement
shall be adhered to throughout the construction period unless otherwise agreed
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and public amenity
9) No development shall take place on site until a full investigation of the site has
taken place to determine the extent of, and risk posed by, any contamination of
the land and the results, together with any remedial works necessary, have been
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The building(s) shall not be
occupied until the approved remedial works have been implemented and a
remediation statement submitted to the Local Planning Authority detailing what
contamination has been found and how it has been dealt with together with
confirmation that no unacceptable risks remain.
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity
10) The applicant shall undertake a noise impact assessment for this application,
which shall be submitted and approved in writing prior to commencement of the
development. This report shall consider the impact of noise from the
development on local receptors and shall include noise from plant and equipment
as well as noise from deliveries, communal areas, residents and events.
If, following the above assessment, the LPA concludes that noise mitigation
measures are required, the applicant shall then submit a scheme of works to
ensure that the development does not have a significant negative impact on local
amenity. These measures shall be agreed in writing by the LPA and shall be
implemented prior to and throughout the occupation of the development.
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity.
11) Prior to the commencement of the development an assessment of the impact
of all external lighting associated with the development shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The assessment should
address the impact of the lights (including hours of use) on the nearest receptors.
Thereafter the lighting shall be installed and maintained in accordance with the
specifications within the assessment.
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity.
12) No part of the development hereby approved shall be brought into its
intended use until secure cycle parking facilities have been provided and
maintained in accordance with details that shall have been submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority and retained for that purpose
at all times
Reason: To ensure that adequate facilities are available for the traffic attracted to
the site.

Page 81

13) No development related works shall take place within the site until a written
scheme of archaeological work has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. This scheme shall include on-site work, and off-site
work such as the analysis, publication, and archiving of the results, together with
a timetable for completion of each element. All works shall be carried out and
completed in accordance with the approved scheme, unless otherwise agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the appropriate identification, recording and publication of
archaeological and historic remains affected by the development.
14) This consent does not imply the approval of the details of access, siting,
layout or design shown on the illustrative masterplan, which must be the subject
of a further application for approval of reserved matters.
Reason: To safeguard the rights of control by the Local Planning Authority in
respect of the reserved matters.
15) The development hereby permitted shall be limited to a total gross internal
floor area of 49,821 sq metres.
Reason: To ensure that the environmental and residential amenity considerations
are safeguarded.
16) The development hereby approved shall achieve Secured By Design 'Gold'
Standard which shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority unless otherwise agreed in writing.
Reason: To ensure that both the physical and environmental crime prevention
measures are taken into account throughout the design and construction of the
scheme.
17) No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until the
proposed new pedestrian footway adjacent to Streatham Drive (as indicated on
the Movement and Access Parameter Plan (dwg no. 010011 Rev P2) has been
provided in accordance with details that shall previously have been submitted to,
agreed and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To provide adequate facilities to promote the use of sustainable modes,
in accordance with paragraphs 29 and 32 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.
18) The development shall be designed in accordance with Passivhaus
Principles. Prior to occupation, or as soon as practicable after occupation,
evidence of Passivhaus certification shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority.
Reason: To ensure that the proposal is in accordance with the aims of Policy
CP15 of Council's Adopted Core Strategy and in the interests of delivering
sustainable development.

Page 82

19) No development shall take place on site until an investigation has taken
place to determine the risk posed by unexploded ordinances and results,
together with any further works necessary, have been agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The approved works shall be implemented in full and a
completion report shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval
in writing prior to the commencement of development.
Reason: In the interests of public safety.
20) Pre-commencement condition: Prior to the commencement of the development

hereby permitted, a Waste Audit Statement shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. This statement shall include all information
outlined in the waste audit template provided in Devon County Council's Waste
Management and Infrastructure Supplementary Planning Document. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved statement.
Reason: To minimise the amount of waste produced and promote sustainable
methods of waste management in accordance with Policy W4 of the Devon Waste
Plan and the Waste Management and Infrastructure Supplementary Planning
Document. These details are required pre-commencement as specified to ensure
that building operations are carried out in a sustainable manner.
21) No part of the development hereby approved shall be brought into its intended use
until the proposed improvements on Streatham Drive as indicated on Drawing No.
2012758-02, have been provided in accordance with details that shall previously have
been submitted to, agreed and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in
consultation with the Local Highway Authority.
Reason: To provide a safe and suitable access for pedestrian and cyclists, in
accordance with Paragraphs 108 and 110 of the NPPF.
22) No part of the development hereby approved shall be brought into its intended use
until the private highway works, as indicated on Drawing No 103259-SK06, have been
provided in accordance with details that shall previously have been submitted to,
agreed and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To provide a safe and suitable access for vehicles, pedestrian and cyclists, in
accordance with Paragraphs 108 and 110 of the NPPF.
23) Prior to occupation of the development, details shall be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority of cycle parking provision for the development. Development shall
not be occupied until such details have been agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority and Local Highway Authority, and prior to occupation the cycle parking shall
be provided in accordance with the submitted details.
Reason: To ensure that the development promotes all travel modes to reduce reliance
on the private car, in accordance with paragraph 110 of the NPPF
24) No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until adequate
areas shall have been made available within the site, or other areas as agreed in
writing by the local planning authority, to accommodate operatives' vehicles,

Page 83

construction plant and materials and a Construction Method Statement has been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The statement
should include details of access arrangements, measures to minimise the impact on
adjacent footpaths and timings of the proposed works. The approved Statement shall
be adhered to throughout the construction period.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and public amenity
INFORMATIVES
1) The Local Planning Authority considers that this development will be CIL
(Community Infrastructure Levy) liable. Payment will become due following
commencement of development. A Liability Notice is attached to this permission.
It is also drawn to your attention that where a chargeable development is
commenced before the Local Authority has received a valid commencement
notice (i.e. where pre-commencement conditions have not been discharged) the
Local Authority may impose a surcharge, and the ability to claim any form of
relief from the payment of the Levy will be foregone. You must apply for any
relief and receive confirmation from the Council before commencing
development. For further information please see www.exeter.gov.uk/cil.
2) A Section 106 Agreement is attached to this development.

Page 84

Agenda Item 7
Planning Committee Report - 20/1685/OUT
1.0

Application Number:
Applicant name:
Proposal:

Site address:
Registration Date:
Link to application:

Case Officer:
Ward Members:

20/1685/OUT
University of Exeter
Outline planning application to build a replacement
Estates Services Centre and ancillary buildings and
structures, with associated infrastructure and
landscaping (All Matters Reserved).
Land at Rennes Drive, University of Exeter, Exeter
10 December 2020
http://publicaccess.exeter.gov.uk/onlineapplications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=su
mmary&keyVal=QL4R5YHBKVS00
Paul Jeffrey
Cllr K Mitchell, Cllr M Mitchell and Cllr M Pearce
(Duryard and St James Ward)

REASON APPLICATION IS GOING TO COMMITTEE: Major application with
over 10 emails/correspondence of objection.
2.0

Summary of Recommendation: DELEGATE to GRANT permission subject to
conditions as set out in report.

3.0

Reason for the recommendation: as set out in Section 18








Site lies within the University of Exeter Streatham Campus Masterplan
December 2010 identified for development.
Provide improved facility to meet the ground and landscape maintenance
requirements of the university campus
The location is considered to be sustainable and the proposal is
acceptable in its design and general visual impact.
The scale of development is appropriate within the setting of the University
campus and its wider landscape setting.
The proposal is not considered to cause any significant harm to the
residential amenity of nearby occupant’s properties.
Suitable conditions can be imposed to mitigate the impact of the
development to occupants of existing residential properties in the area.
There are no material considerations which would warrant refusal of this
application.

Page 85

4.0

Table of key planning issues
Issue
Principle of development

Impact on the landscape

Impact on residential amenity

Sustainable Design

Ecological Issues

5.0

Conclusion
Site lies within the University of Exeter
Streatham Campus Masterplan
December 2010 identified for
development
The scale of development is
appropriate within the setting of the
University campus and its wider
landscape setting
Suitable conditions can be imposed to
mitigate the impact of the
development to occupants of existing
residential properties in the area
The location is considered to be
sustainable and the proposal is
acceptable in its design and general
visual impact.
Limited impact. Scheme to incorporate
appropriate mitigation and
enhancement including 10 metre
wildlife buffer.

Description of Site
The relocated Estate Service Centre is proposed on land to within the north
eastern part of the campus to the south of Belvidere Road and west of the Exeter
Community Garden. The site is currently being used by the ground services team
for storage of green waste, spoil and equipment. It was previously used on a
temporary basis in connection with the development of student accommodation
at the nearby East Park. The site slopes from its highest point at the north
western corner (111m AOD) to the south eastern corner (99m AOD). The
western side of the site contains a mature band trees separating the site visually
from the reservoir beyond. The northern boundary contains a mature row of
trees, which lie to the south of Belvidere Road with Belvidere Meadow Local
Nature Reserve and woodland beyond. To eastern edge of the site is the
Community Garden which contains vegetable beds, polytunnels and greenhouse.
A public footpath forming part of the Green Circle is located to the eastern edge
of the Community Garden. An additional area of University land containing
mature deciduous trees is located beyond this public footpath and forms the
boundary with existing residential properties in Hillcrest Park. The rear garden
boundaries of these properties would be located approximately 50 metres from
the eastern boundary of the site. The distance from the rear of the dwellings is

Page 86

approximately 100 metres. Due to the topography of the Hillcrest Park, properties
on the eastern side of this road are elevated and also have a view of the
application site through the existing deciduous trees. These properties would be
located approximately 140 metres from the eastern boundary of the site. The
southern boundary contains existing mature trees and shrubs with open green
space beyond.
Access to the site would be within the campus from Rennes Drive to the south
western corner of the site closest to the new decked Car Park B.
6.0

Description of Development
This outline planning application is for a new estate services centre comprising of
offices, workshops, glasshouses, polytunnels, growing areas and storage
buildings, associated infrastructure and landscaping with all matters reserved.
However the applicant has provide significant illustrative material, which provides
details of the access location; layout including position of storage areas, parking
and vehicular turning/circulation space and proposed buildings/structures
required in connection with the use. Whilst the details of these are not for
consideration as part of this outline planning application, they are helpful to the
overall assessment of the scheme’s impact and appropriateness within this
location.
Access to site is to be created through the existing and widened entry point
within the south western corner of the site. To maximise the area for level
ground, highlighted as a specific requirement for the new service centre, two
main terraced areas are proposed within the site. Given the sloping nature of the
site a significant cut and fill operation will be required. The lower service yard and
upper terraced area are delineated by a retaining wall. The supporting
information indicates that this will be constructed using devon bank/ gabion
basket approach. The retaining wall is indicated to be approximately 2 metres in
height. The lower yard will contain open hoppers to the western section of the
yard for green waste storage. The central and southern area of the yard will
provide vehicular access and circulation with the new estate service centre
building located to the eastern side of the site.
The new building would contain workshop (including vehicular inspection pit) and
staff facilities (i.e. changing rooms, lockers, drying rooms and WCs) at ground
floor with storage, a smaller workshop area, welfare (staff kitchen, WCs) and
offices/meeting rooms on the upper floors. The building would comply with
accessibility regulation (including a lift) and be built using Passivhaus principles.
The illustrative drawings indicate a building 17 metres by 7 metres with an overall
height of 5 metres. The proposed design indicates a building with a green roof on
the higher mono pitched eastern side and an essentially flat roof with solar
panels on the western side. No windows are proposed within the eastern
elevation of the building with the majority of the building facing inwardly

Page 87

overlooking the service centre yard and parking area. Staff access to wc/showers
is also provided to the south of the building and an access is provided from the
first floor of the building onto the upper terrace.
The upper section of the site contains the horticultural elements of the service
centre including greenshouse and polytunnels and an open growing area. These
building are single storey and even allowing for the raised area where they are
proposed to be located would be no higher than the two storey service yard
building located on the lower terraced, as depicted in the illustrative plans
submitted.
The boundary of the site will be secured by a new boundary fence and a 10
metre landscape/ecology buffer including trees and wildflower is proposed
around the perimeter of the site, which is stated to be artificial light free.
The applicant has stated that the existing estates services centre is
approximately 4000 sq metres in site area with proposed centre at Rennes Drive
to be approximately 6080 sq metres. In terms of the split of uses, the
polytunnel/greenhouse area is approximately 100 sq metres larger at the
proposed centres compared to the existing facility. The main increase is the open
yard area, i.e. providing additional circulation space, which means less reversing
of vehicles on site. The applicant has stated that the existing Estates Services
Centre has evolved over many decades and is currently outdated. The
replacement facility is not intended to intensify the uses at the site, but would just
provide more room for the existing staff to operate and to maintain the campus
grounds.
7.0

Supporting information provided by applicant
The application is accompanied by the following supporting information:
















Planning, Design & Access Statement
Statement of Community Involvement
Illustrative Masterplan
Landscape and Biodiversity Parameter Plan
Landscape Appraisal
Arboricultural Constraints Report
Arboricultural Impact Assessment
Ecological Assessment
Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy
Heritage Statement
Lighting Assessment
Noise Assessment
Energy and Passivhaus Report
Transport Statement
Utilities Infrastructure Assessment Report

Page 88

8.0

Relevant Planning History
There are no relevant planning application relating to this site.

9.0

List of Constraints
Smoke Control Area

10.0

Consultations
All consultee responses can be viewed in full on the Council’s website.
Natural England has no comment to make on this application. The lack of
comment from Natural England does not imply that there are no impacts on the
natural environment, but only that the application is not likely to result in
significant impacts on statutory designated nature conservation sites or
landscapes. It is for the local planning authority to determine whether or not this
application is consistent with national and local policies on the natural
environment.
South West Water comment that no development will be permitted within 3
metres of the water main. The water main must also be located within a public
open space and ground cover should not be substantially altered. Should the
development encroach on the 3 metre easement, the water main will need to be
diverted at the expense of the applicant. South West Water is able to provide foul
sewerage services from the existing public foul or combined sewer in the vicinity
of the site. Having reviewed the applicant’s current information as to proposed
surface water disposal for its development. The method proposed to discharge
into the ground (infiltration) is acceptable and meets with the run-off destination
hierarchy.
County Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment (Highways)
make no comment in respect of this application.
Devon County Council Flood and Coastal Risk Management Team currently
raise objection as the scheme does not satisfactorily conform to Policy CP12
(Flood Risk) of the Exeter Core Strategy which requires all developments to
mitigate against flood risk and utilise sustainable drainage systems, where
feasible and practical. The applicant will therefore be required to submit
additional information in order to demonstrate that all aspects of the proposed
surface water drainage management system have been considered.
The surface water drainage strategy for the new service centre is proposing a
tank to attenuate the runoff. The applicant is encouraged to fully explore the use
of above ground attenuation in line with best practice for Devon’s SuDs Guidance
(2017). Above ground systems provide multiple benefits which underground
systems do not such as amenity value, biodiversity benefits such as habitat
creation and the treatment of runoff to help improve water quality.
The agent is currently in discussion with the County Flood officer to address this
issue.

Page 89

Devon County Waste Management comment that paragraph 8 of the National
Planning Policy for Waste and Policy W4 of the Devon Waste Plan requires
major development proposals to be accompanied by a Waste Audit Statement.
The application is not supported by any such statement and it is therefore
recommended that a condition is attached requiring the submission of a
statement at reserved matters stage.
ECC Environmental Health officer raises no objection subject to the imposition
of conditions in respect of CEMP, noise, lighting, hours of operation and
contamination.
ECC Place Making officer raises no objection in principle but makes the
following comments in response to further information requested.
The detailed information about the change from green roof to biodiverse roof is
informative.
The confirmation that the development platforms will be blended into the
landform and the ecology buffer is welcome.
Notes that the intended planting of the central retaining wall has been included in
the Landscape and Biodiversity Parameter Plan and that evergreen trees have
been included in the area to the east of the centre as part of the parameter plan.
RSPB notes that the developer’s ecologist' report includes a recommendation
that bird boxes/bricks are integrated into the design of the new buildings. We are
aware that if Passivhaus Principles are being applied there may be restrictions
on how they will be integrated into the building, we would like to see more details
with the reserved matters application
11.0

Representations
41 objection email/letters received. Issues raised:
1. Use/building will have a damaging impact on the visual appearance of the area
contrary to development plan policies;
2.Use similar to an industrial unit unsuitable in an area of landscape value and
close to residential properties;
3. Too close to existing residential properties in Hillcrest Park and Doriam Close;
4. Loss of green space/green buffer;
5. Existing and proposed tree screening will be inadequate to mitigate the visual
impact of the use/buildings;
6. Existing car parking lighting/sports pitch lighting has highlighted the insufficient
screening available;
7. Noise pollution from motorised vehicles, shredders, reserve beeping all
amplified by the natural amphitheatre of the site;
8. Detrimental impact on flora and fauna including deer, foxes, badgers, bats,
moths and owls;
9. Impact of light pollution on wildlife particularly given sites proximity to protected
wildlife areas;

Page 90

10. Unacceptable accumulation of development in the area from the recent
approvals of East Park and Car Park B;
11. Insufficient information within the submission to satisfy resident’s concerns
about the impact of the development on their existing amenities;
12. Concern over the use of heavy vehicles using the site and causing
congestion in the nearby roads;
13. Glare of glass roofs adversely affecting residential amenity;
14. Alternative site for the facility should be found on the campus away from
residential properties;
15. Activity will extend beyond normal working hours given the nature of the site;
16. Unconvinced that the University will adhere to any planning conditions given
experience of the East Park development;
17. Increase in traffic noise from the campus;
18. Lighting and noise report considered inadequate/inaccurate and overly
technical;
19. Further noise and disturbance during building work; a continuation of the East
Park development;
20. Two storey building unacceptable in this open setting;
21. Inadequate public consultation;
22. Inadequate sound mitigation measure proposed as part of the scheme;
23. Loss of open green space on the University campus having a negative effect
on the wider surrounding landscape;
24. Loss of green/wildlife link through the campus;
25. Topography of site means that residents will have a clear view of
use/buildings adversely affecting their outlook;
26. Lack of a waste plan accompanying the application;
27. Impact on adjacent community garden through noise pollution, fumes and
oil/grease run off;
28. Ecological report incomplete no information on protective species.
Design Review Panel 20 February 2020
The Panel is supportive of this and considers it will contribute to the creation of
successful and attractive campus. In the spirit of helpfulness it is suggested the
proposal could further consider the need for long term future expansion. It is felt
there may be an opportunity to re-orientate the eastern boundary building, as this
may allow for further expansion of the service yard. It is recognised the proposed
building creates a barrier, however the Panel also note the provision of planting
to provide screening between the service yard site and adjacent neighbouring
properties.
Consideration should be given to the potential for glare from the proposed
greenhouses. It is noted that the separation distances between the proposed
greenhouses and any other buildings amenity spaces may be sufficient to
prevent this from being considered problematic. However it may be helpful to
demonstrate this at this design process. It is suggested that it may be beneficial
for the proposed Estates Service Centre to utilise off-site manufacturing; this may

Page 91

represent a good opportunity to demonstrate the benefits of this, may help with
the delivery programme and may also help to reduce the carbon footprint of the
proposals. It is felt there is an opportunity for the introduction of further renewable
energy measures within this element of the proposals.
The cut and fill approach to the proposed Estates Service Centre, proposed so
as to minimize off-site waste is supported in principle. However it is noted that
this area has already facilitated the redistribution of infill from the adjacent car
park site and this should be acknowledged within the proposal.
12.0

Relevant Policies
Government Guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (February 2019)
2.
Achieving sustainable design
3.
Plan making
4.
Decision-making
8.
Promoting healthy and safe communities
11.
Making effective use of land
12.
Achieving well-designed places
15.
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
Exeter Local Development Framework Core Strategy (Adopted 21 February
2012)
CP11 – Pollution
CP14 - Using Renewable and Low Carbon Energy in New Development
CP15 - Sustainable Construction
CP16 – Landscape Setting
CP17 - Design and Local Distinctiveness
Exeter Local Plan First Review 1995-2011 (Adopted 31 March 2005)
E4 - Exeter University Campus
The development of education uses, student housing and research and
development initiatives, including ancillary production, will be permitted on the
University of Exeter Campus provided that the character and setting of the
Campus is protected.
T3 - Encouraging Use of Sustainable Modes
C4 – Historic Park and Garden
C5 - Archaeology
EN2 - Contaminated Land
EN3 - Air and Water Quality
EN4 - Flood Risk
EN5 – Noise
EN6 – Renewable Energy
DG1 - Objectives of Urban Design
DG2 - Energy Conservation

Page 92

DG7 - Crime Prevention and Safety
LS1 - Landscape Setting
Development which would harm the landscape setting of the city will not be
permitted. Proposals should maintain local distinctiveness and character.
LS4 - Local Nature Conservation Designations
Development that would harm a site of nature conservation importance or a site
of local interest for nature conservation…or landscape features which are of
importance for wild fauna and flora, or wildlife corridors will only be permitted
subject to the following;
a)the need for the development is sufficient to outweigh the nature conservation
considerations; and
b)the extent of any damaging impact is kept to a minimum and appropriate
mitigation and compensatory measures are implemented.
Devon Waste Plan 2011 – 2031 (Adopted 11 December 2014) (Devon County
Council)
W4 – Waste Prevention
W21 – Making Provision for Waste Management
Development Delivery Development Plan Document (Publication Version,
July 2015)
This document represents a material consideration but has not been adopted
and does not form part of the Development Plan and therefore carries limited
weight.
DD1 – Sustainable Development
DD20 – Accessibility and Sustainable Movement
DD28 – Conserving and Managing Heritage Assets
DD29 Landscape Setting Areas
‘Development within the Landscape Setting Areas will only be permitted where:
a) there is no harm to the distinctive characteristics and special qualities of the
landscape setting of the City and the wider area; and
b) it does not contribute towards the urbanisation of these areas;…’
DD30 – Green Infrastructure
DD31 – Biodiversity
DD33 – Flood Risk
DD34 – Pollution and Contaminated Land
Exeter City Council Supplementary Planning Documents
University of Exeter Masterplan Development 2010
8.2.2 Areas with potential for development
Zone C These areas lie on the relatively flat upper plateau above the 100m
contour. Development in these areas may be visually sensitive. Development
here will primarily be limited to low level buildings, sports use and strategic car
parking.
Sports Park

Page 93

8.3.2 This comprises the areas of landscape along the upper ridge of the
campus. The key management aim is to retain the existing areas of tree groups
and woodlands to provide a landscape framework for the sports pitches and to
retain the wooded hill top image of the University campus. Green links to the
surrounding countryside will be retained.
Belvedere Park
8.6.10 Any future development proposals in that part of the area lying east of the
reservoir are subject to policy LS1 of the adopted Exeter Local Plan
Trees in relation to Development September 2009
Other documents
Net-Zero Exeter 2030 Plan July 2020 to inform all policy documents, plans and
corporate decision making in response to the Climate Emergency and in
pursuance of the goal to make Exeter a carbon neutral city by 2030
13.0

Human rights
Article 6 - Right to a fair trial.
Article 8 - Right to respect for private and family life and home.
The first protocol of Article 1 Protection of property
The consideration of the application in accordance with Council procedures will
ensure that views of all those interested are considered. All comments from
interested parties have been considered and reported within this report in
summary with full text accessible via the Council’s website.
It is acknowledged that there are certain individual properties where there may
be some adverse impact and this will need to be mitigated as recommended
through imposing conditions to ensure that there is no undue impact on the home
and family life for occupiers. However, any interference with the right to a private
and family life and home arising from the scheme as result of impact on
residential amenity is considered necessary in a democratic society in the
interests of the economic well-being of the city and wider area and is
proportionate given the overall benefits of the scheme in the provision of homes,
including affordable housing and economic benefits.
Any interference with property rights is in the public interest and in accordance
with the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 regime for controlling the
development of land.
This Recommendation is based on consideration of the proposal against adopted
Development Plan policies, the application of which does not prejudice the
Human Rights of the applicant or any third party.

Page 94

14.0

Public Sector Equalities Duty
As set out in the Equalities Act 2010, all public bodies in discharging their
functions must have “due regard” to the need to:
a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that
is prohibited by or under this Act;
b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;
c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.
Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not
share it involves having due regard in particular to the need to:
a) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;
b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it;
c) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate
in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is
disproportionately low.
Whilst there is no absolute requirement to fully remove any disadvantage the
Duty is to have “regard to” and remove OR minimise disadvantage and in
considering the merits of this planning application the planning authority has had
due regard to the matters set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010.

15.0

Financial benefits
The requirements to set out the financial benefits arising from a planning
application is set out in s155 of the Housing and Planning Act 2016. This requires
that local planning authorities include financial benefits in each report which is:
a) made by an officer or agent of the authority for the purposes of a nondelegated determination of an application for planning permission; and
b) contains a recommendation as to how the authority should determine the
application in accordance with section 70(2) (of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990).
The information on financial benefits must include a list of local financial
considerations or benefits of a development which officers consider are likely to
be obtained by the authority if the development is carried out including their value
if known and should include whether the officer considers these to be material or
not material.

Page 95

16.0

Planning Assessment
1. Principle of the Proposed Development
This proposal relates in part to the student accommodation scheme (Ref
20/1684/OUT) on the Streatham campus as approval of this application would
remove the existing estates service centre to be redeveloped for purpose built
student accommodation. However the consideration of the application for the
new service centre must be assessed on its own individual planning merits.
It is recognised that the estate service centre provides an essential on-site
function for the University. The substantial tree cover and green space on the
campus requires ongoing maintenance and the presence of this onsite facility
ensures that issues can be dealt with ‘in house’ and the current attractive
landscape setting for campus continues. It is accepted that the existing facility is
dated and a new centre would provide better facilities for staff within a more
energy efficient building. Consequently whilst it is considered that a new service
centres is acceptable on the campus, specific assessment is required to
determine whether the proposed site is appropriate. Consideration is needed as
to the use and building’s impact on the landscape character, residential
amenities and the wildlife/habitat in the area and its appropriateness against the
development plan policies. Assessment of the proposal is made on the
acceptability of this site rather than whether other sites are more appropriate, as
suggested by some residents. In addition, given the application is for outline
condition with all matters reserved it is the principle of the development which is
to be assessed rather than the details contained within the submitted application,
which are to be treated as for illustrative purposes only.
The site has been used in association with University related activities for many
years without the need for planning permission, as the works undertaken were
either of a temporary nature or did not constitute development. These included
the temporary storage of materials from the campus and more recently as a
temporary site compound in connection with works at Car Park B and the East
Park student accommodation scheme, the latter of which is still ongoing. These
activities did not require planning permission being defined as; ancillary uses in
associated with the University’s primary function; not defined as development or
permitted development in association with approved works. Clearly the creation
of a purpose built permanent estate service centre and associated structures
does not fall within any of these categories.
The application site lies outside the University campus as designated in the
Exeter Local Plan Policy E4 but is refer to in the Streatham Campus Masterplan
as an area where limited to low level buildings, sports use and strategic car
parking may be appropriate. This document does highlight the visual sensitively
of the site and the need to ensure that the backdrop of the existing trees, which
forms the boundary with the Belvidere Local Nature Reserve is maintained. The

Page 96

site is located within land designated for landscape setting under Policy LS1 of
the Exeter Local Plan and consequently development which ‘…harm the
landscape setting of the city will not be permitted. Proposals should maintain
local distinctiveness and character…’ The site falls within an area of local interest
for nature conservation covered by Local Plan Policy LS4 and part of the historic
parks and gardens within Policy C4, although these designations are applicable
to the whole of the University campus. The landscape importance of the site is
further recognised within Core Strategy CP16 which maintains the site’s status
as an area of landscape protection. Given government advice which still
identified the development plans as the starting point for planning decision, the
policy position represents an important consideration. Recent appeal decisions
have effectively weaken the status of landscape policy LS1 giving it limited
weight but conversely these decisions have recognised that Core Strategy Policy
CP16 carries full weight. However the assessment of the application needs to
consider the development plan as a whole and identify a development’s specific
impact on the landscape character on the area. It is not appropriate to view the
landscape policies of Local Plan Policy LS1 and Core Strategy Policy CP16 as a
blanket restriction to development in these designated areas.
2. Impact on the landscape
The site is located within the highest parts of the campus and as recognised by
the University Masterplan represents a sensitive location where the existing
landscape is an integral part of the University’s setting. The terraced approach
has sought to create two distinct level areas to serve the storage, parking,
circulation and the two storey building on the lower level with the single storey
greenhouses and polytunnels on the higher level. It is noted that the two storey
office/staff/workshop building has a comparable height to the maximum height of
the greenhouses/polytunnels on the upper level. In both instances these
structures are set below the existing row of trees, which form the southern
boundary of Belvidere Road. This reflects the requirements of the Masterplan
which seeks to ‘…retain the existing areas of tree groups and woodlands to
provide a landscape framework…and to retain the wooded hill top image of the
University campus. In addition, the supporting information indicates more
planting would be provided to the boundaries of the site, which will ensure that
‘..green links to the surrounding countryside will be retained’ as specified by the
Masterplan. This is considered important due to the presence of the Community
Garden on land adjacent to the site and the Green Circle public footpath further
to the east. The Council’s Place Making/Landscape office has assessed the
scheme and raises no objection in principle subject to matters of detail being
provided at the reserved matters stage.
The application was reported to the Design Review Panel for consideration prior
to submission. The Panel were supportive of the scheme (expressing no
objection to the site area being expanded for future proofing) and offered
comments as to how the scheme could be enhanced at the reserved matters
stage. NPPF paragraph 129 states that local authorities should have regard to

Page 97

the outcome of the recommendations made by design review panels in achieving
well designed places. It is accepted that the formalisation of this site with
buildings, structures, hardstanding and parking will have a permanent visual
impact on the appearance of this site within the context of the wider landscape.
However it is considered that suitable care has been taken at this outline stage to
indicate that the facility can be integrated successfully without adversely affecting
the landscape character of the area. The facility will be set below the trees and
ridge that border the campus and consequently unseen from Belvidere Valley
Park. The low level buildings will appear set within the landscape and indeed it is
considered that the upper appearance of the buildings proposing a green roof
and greenhouses/polytunnels provide an appropriate visual appearance within
the site designated as important for landscape setting in Core Strategy Policy
CP16.
3. Impact on residential amenity
The closest residents to the application site live in Hillcrest Park. Given the
topography of this land both sides of this road and residents in Doriam Close are
currently able to see through to and down onto the site. The site is separated by
trees beyond the rear garden of properties in Hillcrest Park and the Community
Gardens owned by the University. The illustrative details submitted with the
application indicate the two storey building’s location on the eastern section of
the site. This has been purposely sited to reduce the visual impact of the storage,
parking and vehicular circulation areas when seen from the residential properties.
The distance from the rear of the two storey building to the rear of the residential
garden boundary is approximately 50 metres. Properties in Hillcrest Park have
relatively long rear gardens and therefore the average distance to the rear of the
dwelling is approximately 100 metres. The applicant is proposing to plant
additional deciduous and evergreen trees to the rear of the proposed building to
mitigate its appearance from the east. However notwithstanding these additional
trees, it is considered that suitable distance would be retained for the proposed
structures and hardstanding not to have an adverse visual impact on residential
amenity.
A number of objections have been received in respect of the loss of view across
this currently open site. Members are reminded that loss of a view is not a
material planning consideration and cannot justify refusal of the application.
However the siting and in particular heights of the proposed buildings and
structures have been assessed within the context of the site's position within the
overall landscape and are considered acceptable.
Residents have liken the proposed estate service yard as being similar to an
industrial depot and therefore inappropriate close to residential properties and in
an area of landscape importance. However it is notable that the same facility
currently operates in closer proximity to existing resident’s properties and
gardens without objection. Concerns have been raised regarding the noise from
traffic manoeuvring within the site and from machinery in connection with the

Page 98

service centre’s functions. The Council’s environmental health officer has
assessed the proposed operations within this application and considers that
subject to specific conditions being imposed the application would mitigate
against any significant adverse impact on residential amenity. The applicant has
confirmed that the hours of operation would be 7am until 6pm in line with the
current service yard, with the earlier time providing staff to access the facility,
rather than undertake work which may generate noise disturbance. In response
to specific issues raised, the applicant has confirmed that no shredder or chipper
will be used at the centre (with this work being carried out at source and stored
later at the facility) and a white noise bleepers will replace the normal reversing
sounds associated with vehicles. Specific conditions are proposed to address
these issues.
It is considered that the type of activity associated with the centre, proposed
layout and the imposition of conditions to control the noise and light levels
coupled with the proposed additional planting will result in a development, which
will undoubtedly alter the current appearance when seen from neighbouring
residential properties, but not to an extent which would be unacceptable to
residential amenities.
4. Wildlife and ecology
The application has been accompanied by an ecological assessment which
addresses existing wildlife within the site. The landscape parameter plan
indicates a no light 10 metre wide wildlife buffer which although specific to aid bat
movement will be beneficial for all wildlife through the creation of habitat
corridors. The RSPB has commented on the need for bird boxes which can be
addressed within the proposed ecological management plan. It is noted that
protected species are afforded specific protection and it is considered that
subject to a condition which ensure the future ecological management in line with
the submitted report, the application would be appropriate in this instance.
Other issues
5. Environment Assessment
Some residents have commented that the application was not accompanied by
an Environment Statement in accordance with Environment Impact Assessment
(EIA) regulations. The local planning authority has provided a screening opinion
that concludes that an EIA in this instance is not required. Whilst the proposal
requires significant supporting documentation, which has been provided, to make
an appropriate assessment in the context of this planning application Members
are advised that the Planning Practice Guidance ‘Environmental Impact
Assessment’ states that ‘only a very small proportion of Schedule 2 development
(which this development falls within) will require an assessment…’. The
Guidance goes onto state that it is for the local planning authority to consider
whether a proposed development requires an Environmental Impact
Assessment.

Page 99

6. Waste Management
The issue regarding the need for a waste management audit has been
highlighted by residents as being absence in the planning submission. As
previously stated the application is in outline and therefore all details will be
provided for consideration and therefore will require scrutiny at the reserved
matters stage. However the County Waste Management team were contacted
upon registration and requested that a planning condition is imposed, if the
application is approved.
7. Flooding
The applicant has submitted a Flood Risk Assessment which states that the site
is located within Flood Zone 1, is not within a critical drainage area and has no
history of surface water flooding. However the County Flood Officer has raised
concern about the lack of detail contained within the report in respect of times of
high rainfall and lack of mitigation which incorporate SUDS measures. The
applicant is currently discussing this issue with the County Flood officer with the
intention of agreeing a suitably worded condition for details to be provided at the
reserved matters stage.
8. Lighting from Car Park B
Many residents living in Hillcrest Park have commented on the light intrusive from
the new decked car park, which lies beyond the application site. Whilst it is noted
that this had given rise to significant objection from residents, it is not a relevant
consideration for the assessment of this application. The applicant has
commented that the level of lighting for the facility will be low level and not
comparable with the requirement of the existing car park. It is considered that a
condition which requires details to be submitted will ensure that any issue
associated with light pollution from this site is mitigate. It is understood that the
University will comment separately in respect of the light intrusion from the car
park in the near future.
17.0

Conclusion
It is considered that the proposed estate service centre represents an essential
facility towards maintaining this attractive university campus. Whilst the proposed
site lies within an area of landscape setting, it has previously been identified for
potential low level development within the University Masterplan. It is considered
that the building’s overall layout and height reflect the sensitive nature of this site
and will not cause adverse harm to the wider landscape. The proposal to meet
Passivhaus requirement is to be welcomed. The scheme has been designed to
reduce its impact on residential properties located to the east and the imposition
of conditions will help to mitigate any adverse impacts the use will have on
residential amenity. Accordingly the recommendation is to approve the
application.

Page 100

18.0

RECOMMENDATION
APPROVE subject to the following conditions:
1) Approval of the details of the access, layout, scale, appearance of the
buildings, the means of access thereto and the landscaping of the site
(hereinafter called "the reserved matters") shall be obtained from the Local
Planning Authority in writing before any development is commenced.
Reason: To safeguard the rights of control by the Local Planning Authority in
respect of the reserved matters.
2) Application for the approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local
Planning Authority before the expiration of five years from the date of the
permission and the development hereby permitted shall be begun before the
expiration of five years from the date of the permission, or before the expiration
of two years from the date of the approval of the last of the reserved matters to
be approved whichever is the later.
Reason: To ensure compliance with section 91 - 93 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.
3) The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in
accordance with the Site Location Plan (dwg no. 019002 Rev P1) and Landscape
and Biodiversity Parameter Plan (Figure 1, dated 8th February 2021) as modified
by other conditions of this consent.
Reason: In order to ensure compliance with the approved drawings.
4) No development shall take place until an Outline Landscape and Ecology
Management Plan, has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority. The Management Plan shall indicate;
a) how the existing biodiversity of the site will be protected, in accordance with all
relevant legislation;
b) how the proposed development and associated works will enhance wildlife in
the area and
c) how the landscaped area is to be managed to include an ecological clerk of
works and shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for review on a 24
month basis unless otherwise agreed in writing;
Reason: In the interests of nature conservation.
5).No development shall take place until a Detailed Arboricultural Method
Statement in association with the Tree Protection Plan for the demolition and
construction phase of the development has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The final method statement shall
incorporate a provisional programme of works; supervision and monitoring details
by an Arboricultural Consultant shall proceed in accordance with the measures
described in the Arboricultural Method Statement throughout the duration of the
works.

Page 101

Reason - To ensure the continued wellbeing of the trees in the interests of the
amenity and environmental quality of the locality.
6) No development (including ground works) or vegetation clearance works shall
take place until a Construction Method Statement has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Statement shall provide
for:
a) The site access point(s) of all vehicles to the site during the construction
phase.
b) The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors.
c) The areas for loading and unloading plant and materials.
d) Storage areas of plant and materials used in constructing the development.
e) The erection and maintenance of securing hoarding, if appropriate.
f) Wheel washing facilities.
g) Measures to monitor and control the emission of dust and dirt during
construction.
h) No burning on site during construction or site preparation works.
i) Measures to monitor and minimise noise/vibration nuisance to neighbours from
plant and machinery.
j) Construction working hours and deliveries from 8:00 to 18:00 Monday to
Friday, 8:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays or Bank Holidays.
k) No driven piling without prior consent from the LPA.
The approved Statement shall be strictly adhered to throughout the construction
period of the development.
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity.
7) No development shall take place until a Construction Traffic Management
Plan has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning
Authority. The statement should include details of route of construction traffic
vehicles, access arrangements, timings and management of arrivals and
departures of vehicles. The approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout
the construction period unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and public amenity.
8) No development shall take place on site until a full investigation of the site has
taken place to determine the extent of, and risk posed by, any contamination of
the land and the results, together with any remedial works necessary, have been
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The building(s) shall not be
occupied until the approved remedial works have been implemented and a
remediation statement submitted to the Local Planning Authority detailing what
contamination has been found and how it has been dealt with together with
confirmation that no unacceptable risks remain.
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity.
9) No development shall take place on site until an investigation has taken place
to determine the risk posed by unexploded ordinances and results, together with

Page 102

any further works necessary, have been agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved works shall be implemented in full and a completion
report shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing
prior to the commencement of development.
Reason: In the interests of public safety.
10) No development related works shall take place within the site until a written
scheme of archaeological work has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. This scheme shall include on-site work, and off-site
work such as the analysis, publication, and archiving of the results, together with
a timetable for completion of each element. All works shall be carried out and
completed in accordance with the approved scheme, unless otherwise agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the appropriate identification, recording and publication of
archaeological and historic remains affected by the development.
11) Pre-commencement condition: Prior to the commencement of the
development hereby permitted, a Waste Audit Statement shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This statement shall include
all information outlined in the waste audit template provided in Devon County
Council's Waste Management and Infrastructure Supplementary Planning
Document. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
statement.
Reason: To minimise the amount of waste produced and promote sustainable
methods of waste management in accordance with Policy W4 of the Devon Waste
Plan and the Waste Management and Infrastructure Supplementary Planning
Document. These details are required pre-commencement as specified to ensure
that building operations are carried out in a sustainable manner.
12) The applicant shall undertake a noise impact assessment for this application,
which shall be submitted and approved in writing prior to commencement of the
development. This report shall consider the impact of noise from the
development on local receptors and shall include noise from plant and equipment
as well as noise from deliveries, communal areas, residents and events. If,
following the above assessment, the LPA concludes that noise mitigation
measures are required, the applicant shall then submit a scheme of works to
ensure that the development does not have a significant negative impact on local
amenity. These measures shall be agreed in writing by the LPA and shall be
implemented prior to and throughout the occupation of the development.
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity.
13) The level of noise emitted from the site should not exceed a rating noise level
(measured in accordance with BS4142:2014) of 42 dB. The noise levels should
be determined at the nearest noise sensitive premises. The measurements or
assessment should be made at free field locations representing facades of the

Page 103

nearest noise sensitive premises, or via a combination of measurement and
propagative calculation.
Reason : In the interests of residential amenity.
14) Prior to the commencement of the development an assessment of the impact
of all external lighting associated with the development shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The assessment should
address the impact of the lights (including hours of use) on the nearest receptors.
Thereafter the lighting shall be installed and maintained in accordance with the
specifications within the assessment.
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity.
15) The use hereby permitted shall not be carried out outside the hours of 07.00
and 18.00 (excluding emergency activities, such as gritting estate roads and
paths) unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of nearby occupiers.
16) No external lighting is to be used within the application site outside the hours
specified in condition 14 unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of nearby occupiers.
17) No chipping or shredding of green/brown waste is to take place within the
application site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of nearby occupiers.
18) Only white noise reversing alarms shall be operated on vehicles operated or
owned by the Applicant unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of nearby occupiers.
19) No part of the development hereby approved shall be brought into its
intended use until secure cycle parking facilities have been provided and
maintained in accordance with details that shall have been submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority and retained for that purpose
at all times
Reason: To ensure that adequate facilities are available for the traffic attracted to
the site.
20) The development shall be designed in accordance with Passivhaus
Principles. Prior to occupation, or as soon as practicable after occupation,
evidence of Passivhaus certification shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority.

Page 104

Reason: To ensure that the proposal is in accordance with the aims of Policy
CP15 of Council's Adopted Core Strategy and in the interests of delivering
sustainable development.
21) This consent does not imply the approval of the details of access, siting,
layout or design shown on the illustrative masterplan, which must be the subject
of a further application for approval of reserved matters.
Reason: To safeguard the rights of control by the Local Planning Authority in
respect of the reserved matters.

Page 105

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
REPORT TO: PLANNING COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting:
27 May 2021
Report of:
City Development Strategic Lead
Title:
Delegated Decisions and Planning Report Acronyms
1

WHAT IS THE REPORT ABOUT

1.1

This report lists planning applications determined and applications that have been
withdrawn between the date of finalising the agenda of the last Planning Committee
and the date of finalising this agenda. Applications are listed by Ward.

2

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

Members are requested to advise the Assistant Service Lead City Development
(Roger Clotworthy) or the Director (Bindu Arjoon) of any questions on the schedule
prior to Planning Committee meeting.

2.2

Members are asked to note the report.

3

PLANNING APPLICATION CODES

3.1

The latter part of the application reference number indicates the type of application:
OUT
Outline Planning Permission
RES
Approval of Reserved Matters
FUL
Full Planning Permission
TPO
Works to Tree(s) with Preservation Order
ADV
Advertisement Consent
CAT
Works to Tree(s) in Conservation Area
LBC
Listed Building Consent
ECC
Exeter City Council Regulation 3
LED
Lawfulness of Existing Use/Development
LPD
Certificate of Proposed Use/Development
TEL
Telecommunication Apparatus Determination
CMA
County Matter Application
CTY
Devon County Council Application
MDO
Modification and Discharge of Planning Obligation Regulations
NMA
Non Material Amendment
EXT
Extension to Extant Planning Consent
PD
Extension - Prior Approval
PDJ
Office to Dwelling - Prior Approval

3.2

The decision type uses the following codes:
DREF Deemed Refusal
DTD Declined To Determine
NLU Was Not Lawful Use
PAN Prior Approval Not Required
PAR Prior Approval Required
PER Permitted
REF Refuse Planning Permission
RNO Raise No Objection
ROB Raise Objections
SPL Split Decision
WDN Withdrawn by Applicant
WLU Was Lawful Use
WTD Withdrawn - Appeal against non-determination

4

PLANNING REPORT ACRONYMS
The following list explains the acronyms used in Officers reports:
AH
Affordable Housing

Page 107

AIP
BCIS
CEMP
CIL
DCC
DCLG
DfE
DfT
dph
ECC
EIA
EPS
ESFA
ha
HMPE
ICNIRP
MHCLG
NPPF
QBAR
SAM
SANGS
SEDEMS
SPA
SPD
SPR
TA
TEMPro
TPO
TRO
UE

Approval in Principle
Building Cost Information Service
Construction Environmental Management Plan
Community Infrastructure Levy
Devon County Council
Department for Communities and Local Government: the former name
of the Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government
Department for Education
Department for Transport
Dwellings per hectare
Exeter City Council
Environment Impact Assessment
European Protected Species
Education and Skills Funding Agency
Hectares
Highway Maintainable at Public Expense
International Commission on Non-Ionizing Radiation Protection
Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government
National Planning Policy Framework
The mean annual flood: the value of the average annual flood event
recorded in a river
Scheduled Ancient Monument
Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space
South East Devon European Sites Mitigation Strategy
Special Protection Area
Supplementary Planning Document
Standard Percentage Runoff
Transport Assessment
Trip End Model Presentation Program
Tree Preservation Order
Traffic Regulation Order
Urban Extension

Richard Marsh
Liveable Exeter Programme Director and City Development Strategic Lead

Page 108

All Planning Decisions Made and Withdrawn Applications
between 20/04/2021 and 17/05/2021
Alphington
Delegated Decision
Application Number: 20/1654/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 24/12/2020

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Hazelwood Little Johns Cross Hill Exeter Devon EX2 9PL

Proposal:

Demolition of garage and construction of new garage with
adjoining store.

28/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0110/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 11/02/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

7 Shillingford Road Exeter Devon EX2 8UB

Proposal:

Single storey side extension and two storey rear extension.

14/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0235/TPO

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

109 Cowick Lane Exeter Devon EX2 9HF

Proposal:

Up to a height of 1.1 metres from the ground 25% of the stem of
the tree is hollow . We have been advised by Dartmoor tree
surgeons to reduce the tree by 4-5 metres in height.

28/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0399/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 25/03/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

23 Chapel Road Exeter Devon EX2 8TB

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension.

05/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0427/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 25/03/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

32 Blenheim Road Exeter Devon EX2 8SE

Proposal:

3m single storey extension to existing extension.

29/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0452/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 25/03/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

131 Cowick Lane Exeter Devon EX2 9HF

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension, two storey side extension and car
port.

Page 109

29/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0475/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 25/03/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

40 Corn Mill Crescent Exeter Devon EX2 8TW

Proposal:

Side and rear extension with a timber cabin at rear of garden.

23/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0557/NMA

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

11 Marsh Barton Road Exeter Devon EX2 8NU

Proposal:

Non-material amendment to planning application 20/0500/FUL
granted 26 August 2020 to include new external canopy, changes
to window arrangment, vehicle doors, car park configuration,
fence/gate alignment and external louvres.

30/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0678/VOC

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Withdrawn by Applicant

Date:

Location Address:

118 Broadway Exeter Devon EX2 9NT

Proposal:

Condition Number(s): 2 - Conditions(s) Removal: The proposed
side extension is now desired to be reduced from a two storey to a
single storey side extension. Therefore the proposed drawings will
be revised with a new drawing number reference. The condition
number 2 which states the approved drawing numbers will need to
be amended to suit the revised drawing number references that
apply to the revised design.

11/05/2021

Duryard And St James
Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0145/VOC

Delegation Briefing: 11/02/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Rear Of 35-36 Sidwell Street And St Sidwell's Chapel Exeter
Devon EX4 6NS

Proposal:

Variation of condition two of application 20/0843/FUL (Additional
storey and change of use to YMCA move-on accommodation), to
approve amended materials and elevation details.

29/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0185/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

20 Old Tiverton Road Exeter Devon EX4 6LG

Proposal:

T1 Small Sycamore in rear garden, dismantle and remove due to
damage by girdling caused by previous homeowner resulting in
severe wound. G1 Group of Holly trees reduce by 2m sides and
top to provide clearance from electrical wires and prevent potential
obstruction of pedestrian highway.

Page 110

27/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0215/TPO

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

101B Pennsylvania Road Exeter Devon EX4 6DT

Proposal:

T1 - Monterey Pine Reduce 1 southerly limb overhanging garage
by 3.5m to upright growth point, tip prune tertiary branches, MDC
150mmTip reduce 1 south easterly limb growing over Laurel by
2m, MDC 75mm.Reduce westerly limb by removing tertiary
branches back to growth point growing at 45 degrees, MDC
125mm.Reduce 3 northerly limbs by 1-2m accordingly, MDC
75mm.Tip reduce 1 southerly limb in upper crown by 2m to suitable
growth points, MDC 75mm.Remove major hazardous
deadwood.Reason for works:The tree has shed some major limbs
in recent years, 1 limb on western aspect this year, works to
prevent further limb damage and to make the tree safe

27/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0304/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

St Catherines New North Road Exeter Devon EX4 4AG

Proposal:

The tree is one large Ash tree that is close to my house, but
particularly close to my neighbours house. The ash tree I have
been told has a disease and I would therefore want the tree
completely removed. I do want to re-place it with a smaller tree
such as a cherry tree, not exactly in the same position as the Ash
Tree, but a meter away form the ash trees current position.

27/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0390/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 18/03/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Pembroke House Pennsylvania Road Exeter Devon EX4 5BQ

Proposal:

Side extension and first storey extension to existing detached
garage.

05/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0450/LED

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Withdrawn by Applicant

Date:

Location Address:

45 Pennsylvania Road Exeter Devon EX4 6DB

Proposal:

Retention of existing use as 3no. self contained flats.

17/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0468/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

20 King Stephen Close Exeter Devon EX4 4LX

Proposal:

T1 Sycamore: Fell to 50cm above ground level and remove all
arisings (coppice)T2 Sycamore: Crown Reductions - Reducing the
height of the tree by 4m and crown spread by up to 2-3m.

Page 111

26/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0517/LED

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was not lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

99 Howell Road Exeter Devon EX4 4JU

Proposal:

Use of property as House of Multiple Occupation (HMO) (Sui
Generis) for up to 12 persons

21/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0528/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 01/04/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

20 Cowley Bridge Road Exeter Devon EX4 5AD

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension to existing semi-detached house.

11/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0689/NMA

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

64 Argyll Road Exeter Devon EX4 4RY

Proposal:

Change the size of the windows.

30/04/2021

Exwick
Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0564/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

44 Moorland Way Exeter Devon EX4 2ER

Proposal:

Installation of new ground floor window to gable end. The window
will be of white uPVC to match those currently used in the property.
The proposed window is to be 1790x1330mm in size.

28/04/2021

Heavitree
Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0130/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 04/02/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

9 North Avenue Exeter Devon EX1 2DU

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension, and two and a half storey side
extension.

Page 112

04/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0222/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

10 Salutary Mount Fore Street Heavitree Exeter Devon EX1 2QE

Proposal:

T1 - Holm OakReduce height by by a maximum of 2m, lateral
spread to the north by 3m, lateral spread to the south reduce via
thinning by 1-2m. Crown raise over adjacent outbuilding
underneath the tree by removing all tertiary branches, remove any
branches fouling T2 - Poplar. Remove deadwood.T2 - Poplar
Reduce height by 4-5m to suitable growth points and reduce
eastern aspect by 1-2m. Remove deadwood.Reason for works T1
- Decay present at major union in tree, to reduce loadings on
heavy tree and to keep within appropriate arboricultural
managementT2 - To contain a significantly large tree, worries over
stability of particularly long stems.

27/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0244/PD

Delegation Briefing:
22/04/2021

Decision Type:

Prior Approval Not Required Date:

Location Address:

12 Chard Road Exeter Devon EX1 3AX

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension measuring 4.29m (depth) x 3.95m
(max. height) x 2.70m (eaves height).

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0278/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 25/02/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

71 Fore Street Heavitree Exeter Devon EX1 2RJ

Proposal:

Change of use of shop outbuilding to residential.

11/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0307/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

1 Pegasus Court North Street Heavitree Exeter Devon EX1 2RP

Proposal:

Apple T1 Reduce crown by 30%Apple T2 Reduce crown by
30%Cherry, T3 Reduce crown by 30%Silver birch,T4 Reduce by
third in height and lower branches off. Cherry trees, T5 A group of
5 small cherry trees light reduction in height.Silver Birch T6, T7,
T8 A cluster of 3 Silver birch trees, raise canopy -removal of lower
limbs, then reduce height to allow more light in to home windows.
Hawthorn tree T9, T10, T11, T12 Reduce the overall size by 30%
each.

29/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0500/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 01/04/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

15 Alpha Street Exeter Devon EX1 2SP

Proposal:

Proposed installation of patio doors.

Page 113

29/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0515/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 08/04/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

54 Polsloe Road Exeter Devon EX1 2DS

Proposal:

Demolition of rear extensions and construction of single storey rear
extension.

04/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0534/TPO

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

67 Polsloe Road Exeter Devon EX1 2NG

Proposal:

Pruning of 3x Lime Trees - to increase light for the house and to
remove any low hanging branches from the road. To keep the
shape of the trees as we have done for the last 40 years.

28/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0561/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 08/04/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

165 Sweetbrier Lane Exeter Devon EX1 3DG

Proposal:

Increase to roof height and build rear conservatory.

05/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0648/NMA

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

32 Meadow Way Exeter Devon EX2 5BJ

Proposal:

Correction of approved drawings to relate width of building to
dimensioned floor plans, alterations to window sizes to reflect floor
plans and revision of window styles to suit opening sizes and
compliance with the Building Regulations. Omission of ground floor
window to side elevation and reduction in roof pitch to suit fibre
cement slate roof covering. Omission of enclosed porch to front
elevation.

13/05/2021

Newtown And St Leonards
Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0082/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 04/02/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

149 Sidwell Street Exeter Devon EX4 6RT

Proposal:

Change of use from pay day loan shop (Sui Generis) to mixed
restaurant (Class E) and takeaway (Sui Generis).

06/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0144/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 11/02/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

10 Portland Street Exeter Devon EX1 2EQ

Proposal:

Ground and first floor rear extensions.

Page 114

22/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0173/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

4 Mount Radford Crescent Exeter Devon EX2 4EN

Proposal:

T1 Mulberry. Remove first branch south side and first branch east
side. Trim crown by up to 2m to shape.

27/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0175/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

5 Mount Radford Crescent Exeter Devon EX2 4EN

Proposal:

Yes Approved YesT1 Birch. Reduce height by 3m and trim sides to
shape.T2 Birch. Reduce height by 4.5m and trim sides to shape.

27/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0220/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 18/03/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

5 Heavitree Road Exeter Devon EX1 2LD

Proposal:

Paint mural on gable-end elevation.

05/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0248/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Mulberry House 1 St Leonards Road Exeter Devon EX2 4LA

Proposal:

Mulberrymarked by an X in the planre-pollard

27/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0294/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 18/03/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

7 Belmont Road Exeter Devon EX1 2HF

Proposal:

Replacement single/two storey extension at rear, replacement front
door, windows, rooflight, roof materials and boundary wall, and
other minor works

17/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0295/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 18/03/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

7 Belmont Road Exeter Devon EX1 2HF

Proposal:

Replacement single/two storey extension at rear, replacement front
door, windows, rooflight, roof materials and boundary wall, and
other minor works

Page 115

17/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0365/TPO

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Cleveland Court Grosvenor Place Exeter Devon

Proposal:

T439 - Weeping Ash, Fraxinus excelsior 'pendula'Section fell to
ground levelThis tree appears to be dead (or nearly dead), no live
buds were spotted. This sub-species is typically poor in structure
and when dead becomes especially brittle. This tree is not viable
for even short-term retention.Tree protected by TPO 134 (T10 in
record)

11/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0398/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Crossley House 32 Denmark Road Exeter Devon EX1 1SE

Proposal:

Hawthorn (T1) - FellReason - Decayed main stem and leaning over
road.

17/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0424/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 25/03/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

5 Barnardo Road Exeter Devon EX2 4ND

Proposal:

Insertion of 3x windows into side elevation.

29/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0454/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Magdalen Court School Victoria Park Road Exeter Devon EX2
4NU

Proposal:

T1. Magnolia. Prune branches resting on roof back to suitable
growth points to clear property by approx. 0.5 to 0.7m. Reduce
tallest leader by approx. 1.5m back to suitable growth points so it is
at a height that is level with the guttering. Crown lift to suitable
growth points for a ground clearance of approx. 2m. Shape tidy by
removing branches to suitable growth points in sections of no more
than 0.5m in length.

11/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0460/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Mulberry House 1 St Leonards Road Exeter Devon EX2 4LA

Proposal:

T1 - Ash tree - Reduce in height by 5 metres. Prune all lateral
branches by up to 20% of branch length, to form a balanced
crown. T2 - Bay tree: Cut to ground level.

Page 116

17/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0518/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 08/04/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

5 Victoria Park Road Exeter Devon EX2 4NT

Proposal:

Alterations including reconfiguring internal spaces, re-modelling
roof, and new windows and doors. Re-modelling terrace to rear
garden and new finishes to front garden.

04/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0519/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 08/04/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

5 Victoria Park Road Exeter Devon EX2 4NT

Proposal:

Alterations including reconfiguring internal spaces, re-modelling
roof, and new windows and doors. Re-modelling terrace to rear
garden and new finishes to front garden.

04/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0552/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 08/04/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

50 Portland Street Exeter Devon EX1 2EQ

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension.

11/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0665/NMA

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Barnfield House 2 Barnfield Hill Exeter Devon EX1 1SR

Proposal:

Non-material amendment to Planning Permission Ref.
19/1559/FUL (granted 20 January 2020) to alter internal layout and
bin/ bicycle storage arrangements

17/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0701/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Condition(s) Fully
Discharged

Date:

Location Address:

89 Portland Street Exeter Devon EX1 2EG

Proposal:

Discharge of condition 3 (materials) for planning permission
19/0745/FUL granted on 8 July 2019.

14/05/2021

Pennsylvania
Delegated Decision
Application Number: 20/1652/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 07/01/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

1 Beacon Avenue Exeter Devon EX4 7JD

Proposal:

Two storey block containing two flats within existing residential
curtilage.

Page 117

04/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0177/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 11/02/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

27 Prince Charles Road Exeter Devon EX4 7EG

Proposal:

Extension of existing front dormer.

28/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0217/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Pennsylvania Park Exeter Devon

Proposal:

A1 - Ilex aquifolium. Fell and grind out stump. Replace with 1x
Quercus robur.A2 - Laurus nobilis. Coppice.A3 - Ilex aquifolium.
Fell.A4 - Taxus baccata. Fell.A5 - Ilex aquifolium. Fell.A6 - Sorbus
aria. Fell.Replace trees A4, A5 and A6 with a number of small,
deciduous, native trees such as Crataegus, Malus sylvestris and
Sorbus aucuparia.

27/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0426/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 25/03/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

180 Mincinglake Road Exeter Devon EX4 7DS

Proposal:

Construction of two storey rear extension.

29/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0451/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 25/03/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

11 Rosebarn Avenue Exeter Devon EX4 6DY

Proposal:

Rear glassroom extension, with associated balustrade and steps
(Revision to 20/0706/FUL).

21/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0499/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 01/04/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

53 Sheppard Road Exeter Devon EX4 5DD

Proposal:

Balcony with access stair to rear of property.

04/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0592/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

4 Thompson Road Exeter Devon EX1 2UB

Proposal:

Certificate of lawfulness for proposed loft conversion, hip to gable
and rear dormer roof extensions, front roof lights and associated
works.

Page 118

21/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Delegation Briefing:

Application Number: 21/0663/PD

06/05/2021

Decision Type:

Prior Approval Required and Date:
Refused

Location Address:

9 Stoke Hill Crescent Exeter Devon EX4 7DE

Proposal:

Rear single storey extension that expands 6m to rear, and eaves
height to 2.4m.

Pinhoe
Committee Decision
Application Number: 18/1145/OUT

Delegation Briefing: 20/09/2018

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Land East Of Cumberland Way Monkerton Exeter EX1 3RW

Proposal:

Residential development of up to 80 dwellings (all matters
reserved except access).

26/04/2021

Committee Decision
Application Number: 20/0439/MDO

Delegation Briefing: 16/04/2020

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Pinhoe Quarry Harrington Lane Exeter Devon EX4 8DT

Proposal:

Application to modify the S106 agreement related to Outline
Permission ref 10/2088/01 (the S106 Agreement). The Planning
Obligation is for the payment of the 'Exhibition Way Link
Contribution' required by the First Schedule of the S106 Agreement
(dated 3rd February 2012) associated with planning application
10/2088/01. The modification sought is to amend the obligation by
a) reducing the amount of the contribution, b) redefining the
purpose of the reduced contribution, and c) altering the trigger
relating to the payment of the contribution.

13/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Delegation Briefing:

Application Number: 21/0118/PD

22/04/2021

Decision Type:

Prior Approval Not Required Date:

Location Address:

7 Causey Lane Exeter Devon EX1 3SE

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension measuring 4m (depth) x 3m (eaves
height) x 3m (maximum height).

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0312/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 04/03/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

1 Langaton Lane Pinhoe Exeter Devon EX1 3SP

Proposal:

Single storey side extension.

Page 119

27/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0318/ADV

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Cumberland Grange Cumberland Way Pinhoe Exeter Devon EX1
3ZU

Proposal:

Installation of No.1 x double-sided externally illuminated postmounted directional sign.

27/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0651/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Condition(s) Partially
Approved

Date:

Location Address:

The Vines Gipsy Lane Exeter Devon EX1 3RL

Proposal:

Discharge of Condition 10 of Planning Permission Ref.
19/1384/FUL (approved on 6 November 2020) relating to external
lighting

07/05/2021

Priory
Delegated Decision
Delegation Briefing: 03/12/2020

Application Number: 20/1158/FUL
Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

141 Salters Road Exeter Devon EX2 5DB

Proposal:

Proposed new two-bedroom dwelling.

27/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0022/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Condition(s) Partially
Approved

Date:

Location Address:

Royal Devon And Exeter Hospital Barrack Road Exeter Devon

Proposal:

Discharge of conditions 3 (Pedestrian Facilities), 4 (Travel Plan)
and 5 (CMP) of planning permission 20/0058/FUL.

23/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0521/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

349 Topsham Road Exeter Devon EX2 6EZ

Proposal:

Loft extension including rear dormer and hip to gable conversion.

04/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0526/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 08/04/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Elm Trees 22 Salmonpool Lane Exeter Devon EX2 4SN

Proposal:

Alterations to approved Planning Application 20/1053/VOC,
relating to 20/0433/FUL.

Page 120

05/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0532/PD

Delegation Briefing:
04/05/2021

Decision Type:

Prior Approval Required and Date:
Refused

Location Address:

27 Browning Close Exeter Devon EX2 6ND

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension extending max. 6m from rear
elevation; height to eaves 2.43m on north elevation; height to
eaves 2.16m on south elevation and max. overall height 3m.

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0533/PD

Delegation Briefing:
28/04/2021

Decision Type:

Prior Approval Not Required Date:

Location Address:

10 Southbrook Road Exeter Devon EX2 6JA

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension extending a maximum 4m from rear
elevation, height to eaves 2.6m and maximum overall height
3.65m.

St Davids
Committee Decision
Application Number: 19/1556/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 30/07/2020

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

The Harlequin Centre Paul Street Exeter Devon EX4 3TT

Proposal:

Development of a Co-Living (Sui Generis) accommodation block
and a hotel (Class C1) including bar and restaurant, following
demolition of existing shopping centre and pedestrian bridge,
change of use of upper floors of 21-22 Queen Street to Co-Living
(Sui Generis), and all associated works including parking,
landscaping, amenity areas, public realm improvements, new
pedestrian bridge and provision of heritage interpretation kiosk.
(Revised)

23/04/2021

County Decisions
Application Number: 20/1762/NMA

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Beech Hill House Walnut Gardens Exeter Devon EX4 4DH

Proposal:

Non-material amendment to planning application 19/0560/FUL
granted 19 December 2019 to include internal and external layout
to secure revised cycle store location, 167 bedrooms and improved
fire escape provision.

21/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0265/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 11/03/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Broadwalk House Southernhay West Exeter Devon EX1 1TS

Proposal:

New cycle store to Southern walkway; brick enclosure of existing
cycle store; installation of new access ramps and associated
works; new reception doors.

Page 121

13/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0286/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

The Palace Palace Gate Exeter Devon EX1 1HY

Proposal:

Beech (T65) remove to ground level due to giant polypore
decaying underside of roots . Replant with one stand plane in
same position

28/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0345/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 01/04/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

British Telecom Castle Street Exeter Devon EX4 3PG

Proposal:

Proposed additions to existing base station installation at rooftop at
Exeter Telephone Exchange.

06/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0420/PDJ

Delegation Briefing:
30/04/2021

Decision Type:

Prior Approval Required and Date:
Granted

Location Address:

Keble House Southernhay Gardens Exeter Devon EX1 1NT

Proposal:

Change of Use from Offices (B1a) to 30 self-contained residential
units.

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0474/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 15/04/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

9 Cotfield Street Exeter Devon EX2 8EE

Proposal:

Single storey extension from rear of house to span full width of
property (4.3m) and 4m into garden.

04/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0478/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 01/04/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

24 Haldon Road Exeter Devon EX4 4DZ

Proposal:

Installation of white colour uPVC replacement windows.

11/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0525/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 08/04/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Devon And Exeter Institution 7 Cathedral Close Exeter Devon EX1
1EZ

Proposal:

Removal of 20th century chimney, make good roof in matching
slate.

Page 122

12/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0590/FUL

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Withdrawn by Applicant

Date:

Location Address:

7 St Leonards Avenue Exeter Devon EX2 4DL

Proposal:

SINGLE STOREY FLAT ROOF REAR EXTENSION AAH

20/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0681/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

7 St Leonards Avenue Exeter Devon EX2 4DL

Proposal:

Ground floor rear extension.

30/04/2021

St Loyes
Delegated Decision
Application Number: 20/0976/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 18/02/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

167 Honiton Road St Loyes Exeter Devon EX1 3EP

Proposal:

2No. proposed dwellings and associated work (Revisions to
Planning Permission 19/0723/FUL).

07/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Delegation Briefing: 25/02/2021

Application Number: 20/1678/FUL

14/05/2021

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

Fernleigh Nurseries Ludwell Lane Exeter Devon EX2 5AQ

Proposal:

Conversion of existing nursery buildings/garage to single dwelling.

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0428/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 25/03/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

5 Bishops Way Exeter Devon EX2 7PF

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension.

29/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0507/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 01/04/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

3 Warwick Road Exeter Devon EX1 3EY

Proposal:

Ground floor rear extension.

Page 123

04/05/2021

St Thomas
Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0141/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 25/02/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

4 Essex Close Exeter Devon EX4 1LS

Proposal:

Replacement and enlargement of rear conservatory.

28/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0297/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 04/03/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

37 Somerset Avenue Exeter Devon EX4 1LT

Proposal:

Replacement roof over existing ground floor extension and creation
of first floor rear extension.

26/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0341/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

40 Alphington Road Exeter Devon EX2 8HS

Proposal:

beech (T1) - Fell - Residents wish to remove the tree due to
excessive shade cast over surrounding gardens

28/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Delegation Briefing: 01/04/2021

Application Number: 21/0349/FUL

27/04/2021

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

1 Crawford Gardens Exeter Devon EX2 8HQ

Proposal:

Construction of a 3-bedroom end-of-terrace dwellinghouse

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0422/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 25/03/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

23 Princes Street North Exeter Devon EX2 9AL

Proposal:

Rear dormer and roof lights.

27/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0593/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

11 Ferndale Road Exeter Devon EX2 9BW

Proposal:

Certificate of lawfulness sought for two single storey rear
extensions.

Page 124

21/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0615/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

94 Wardrew Road Exeter Devon EX4 1EZ

Proposal:

Extension and loft conversion.

23/04/2021

Topsham
Committee Decision
Application Number: 20/0849/RES

Delegation Briefing: 30/07/2020

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Land At Clyst Road Clyst Road Topsham Exeter Devon

Proposal:

Approval of reserved matters (Appearance, landscaping, layout
and scale) for 155 dwellings relating to outline planning application
(Reference 17/1148/OUT) approved on 14th January 2019 via
appeal ref 3202635

12/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 20/1475/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 03/12/2020

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Bridgeleigh Old Rydon Lane Topsham Exeter Devon EX2 7JW

Proposal:

Substantial remodelling including new front extension, side
extension, new roof and dormer.

29/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 20/1483/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Condition(s) Partially
Approved

Date:

Location Address:

Land To Rear Of 1 And 2 Globe Court Topsham Exeter EX3 0EZ

Proposal:

Discharge of Condition 3 (materials) and Condition 5
(contaminated land) for planning permission 19/1602/FUL granted
13 May 2020.

14/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 20/1660/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 25/02/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

44 Fore Street Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0HY

Proposal:

Various internal and external alterations including enlargement of
garage door opening, replacement hanging tiles and garage door
on rear elevation.

Page 125

20/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 20/1661/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 25/02/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

44 Fore Street Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0HY

Proposal:

Various internal and external alterations including enlargement of
garage door opening, replacement of staircase from lower ground
(garage) to ground floor, replacement hanging tiles and garage
door on rear elevation, new structural support design in lower
ground level and alterations to first floor layout to include en-suite
in front bedroom.

20/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0176/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Quay Gardens Barn Monmouth Avenue Topsham Exeter Devon
EX3 0AF

Proposal:

Ash ( T1 ) - Pollard at approximately 5m at 2nd union from ground
The tree has died in 3/4 of the canopy and there are dangerous
dead branches at height which need safely removing. Yew ( T2 ) Reduce height by 2m approximately . The tree needs to have
gangly top sproutings removed.

27/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0183/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

41 The Strand Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0AY

Proposal:

T1 Eucalyptus, reduce crown back to previous cutsT2 Mulberry,
thin out new growth on the ends to reduce leverage on the long
limbs. This was done 3 years ago

27/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0186/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Withdrawn by Applicant

Date:

Location Address:

2A Elm Grove Road Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0BW

Proposal:

T1, Yew; fell. My client would like to remove this tree because of
excessive shading, root damage to the drive and garden terrace
wall and its close proximity to the house. She would like to replace
it with a couple of smaller suitable trees with less dense crowns.

26/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0418/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Middleten Station Road Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0DS

Proposal:

T1, Willow. trim back to previous cuts. this tree gets trimmed back
every three years or so

Page 126

17/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0503/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 01/04/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Flat 18 Grove House Fore Street Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0HF

Proposal:

New open porch over entrance door.

29/04/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0505/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 08/04/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

11A High Street Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0EA

Proposal:

Installation of bi-fold doors to rear extension and minor internal
alterations.

17/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0506/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 08/04/2021

Decision Type:

Raise No Objection

Date:

Location Address:

11A High Street Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0EA

Proposal:

Installation of bi-fold doors to rear extension and minor internal
alterations.

17/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0560/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 08/04/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

51 Exeter Road Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0LX

Proposal:

Replacement porch to front elevation.

11/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0563/NMA

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Land To The North Of Exeter Road Exeter Road Topsham Devon

Proposal:

Minor amendments to the approved scheme in respect of the
interior and exterior of the Care Home. These consist of changes
to total number of bedrooms (reduction from 72 to 68), windows,
and floor layouts. (Non-material minor amendment to Planning
Permission ref no. 20/0229/FUL).

13/05/2021

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0567/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 08/04/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

23 Grove Hill Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0EG

Proposal:

Replacement rear extension.

Total Applications: 105

Page 127

05/05/2021

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
REPORT TO:
Date of Meeting:
Report of:
Title:

PLANNING COMMITTEE
27 May 2021
City Development Strategic Lead
Appeals Report

Is this a Key Decision? No
Is this an Executive or Council Function? No
1. What is the report about?
1.1 The report provides Members with information on latest decisions received and new appeals
since the last report.
2.

Recommendation:

2.1 Members are asked to note the report.
3.

Appeal Decisions

3.1 20/1056/FUL – 1A Rosebarn Avenue. This was an application for the construction of a two and a
half storey, four-bedroom detached dwelling within the garden of 1A Rosebarn Avenue.
The appeal site is located within Pennsylvania, and is sited close to the junction of Rosebarn
Avenue and Pennsylvania Road.
The Council refused the development for four reasons. The Inspector considered the main issues in
this appeal were:





The effect of the proposed development on the living conditions of nearby residents,
The effect of the proposed development on the living conditions of residents of 1A Rosebarn
Avenue,
The effect of the proposed development on the character and appearance of the
surrounding area; and,
Whether the proposed development would comply with national and local planning policy
with regards to environmental sustainability.

First, considering the impact on neighbours. Despite concerns about loss of light to a neighbour, the
Inspector concluded that in absence of any substantive evidence to dispute the details provided in
the application, the proposal would not result in an unacceptable loss of light to the neighbouring
dwelling. However, given the position of 1 Rosebarn Avenue to the boundary, and the position and
height of the proposed dwelling, the Inspector concluded the proposal would have an unacceptable
overbearing effect on the residents of 1 Rosebarn Avenue. The rear of the dwelling would directly
face the rear gardens of properties located within Pennsylvania Road. Whilst within urban
residential areas that there would be a degree of overlooking and intervisibility between properties,
by reason of the height, number of substantially sized windows on the rear of the proposed new
dwelling and given the relatively close proximity of the proposed new dwelling to the boundary with
170 Pennsylvania Road, The Inspector concluded the scheme would result in an unacceptable
level of overlooking and loss of privacy with regards to that neighbouring dwelling. The proposed
new dwelling would further enclose the rear garden of the property at 170 Pennsylvania Road and,
by reason of its height and proximity, would have an overbearing effect for users of the rear garden
amenity space associated with 170 Pennsylvania Road. In summary, the scheme would have a
significant adverse effect with regards to the living conditions of nearby residents on the grounds of
overlooking and loss of outlook.
Second, considering the impact on the living conditions of 1A Rosebarn Avenue. The Council was
concerned the scheme would result in the garden space 1A Rosebarn Avenue being awkwardly
shaped, and dominated by hard landscaping features which would not provide adequate living
conditions. The Inspector concluded the garden would not be overlooked, and that although not a
regular shape, the garden was a sufficient size which was in excess of local policy standards.

Page 129

Concerns over the amount of hard landscaping could be overcome by conditioning a landscaping
scheme. The Inspector found there would be no harm to the residents of 1A Rosebarn Avenue.
Third, the effect of the proposed development on the character and appearance of the surrounding
area. The immediate surrounding area is characterised by well-proportioned detached dwellings of
varying styles and designs, but which are consistent in terms of their scale, mass, set back from the
highway and in respect of the use of red brick and tiled roofs. The proposed dwelling would be two
and half storeys in height and would replicate the appearance, scale and mass of the dwelling on
the opposite side of the adjacent road at 2 Rosebarn Avenue. The appeal scheme would further
result in a dwelling which would maintain the consistent building line within Rosebarn Avenue and
would be consistent in terms of mass and scale to other dwellings located within the immediate
surrounding area. While the Council was concerned the subdivision of the existing plot would result
in a form of development that would appear at odds with the established pattern of long rear
gardens within the area, the Inspector noted the scale and depth of gardens within this area cannot
be readily seen from public view. They did not find that the subdivision of the plot would be harmful
to the established character and appearance of the area. The Council was also concerned this
proposal could set a precedent for development of other corner plot gardens in the areas. Given the
subdivision of the garden was acceptable, the concern about precedent for other gardens was
dismissed, and each case should be considered on its own merits.
Fourth, environment and sustainability. The Council raised a number of environmental and
sustainability concerns, and that the proposal would not enhance biodiversity, partially as a result of
the loss of an established garden. The Inspector considered the proposal would provide a number
of parking spaces which would be sufficient to serve the new dwelling and would provide cycle
storage, electric car charging and solar panels. Conditions could be applied to any planning
permission which required the inclusion of bird and bat boxes, alongside a landscaping scheme
which could specify the types and amount of planting to be included, as well as ensuring that
planting and soft landscaping be maintained to that standard thereafter. The Council considered the
scheme could achieve more in terms of meeting carbon neutral aspirations. While the Inspector
acknowledged this aspiration, there were no details of how a greater contribution could be achieved
by the proposal. The Inspector considered the scheme provided options to reduce private motor
vehicles trips, would install solar panels, and subject to conditions would provide limited biodiversity
enhancements. For these reasons, the proposal would meet Policy CP15 and would accord with
the environmental dimension of sustainable development.
In conclusion, the proposal would not be harmful to the character and appearance of the
surrounding area, and would not be harmful to the living conditions of residents of 1A Rosebarn
Avenue. However, the proposed development would be significantly harmful to the living conditions
of residents of 1 Rosebarn Avenue and to residents of 170 Pennsylvania Road. The harm arising
would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the scheme’s potential benefits and the appeal
should be dismissed.
3.2 20/0037/FUL - 20 Monks Road. This application was for a change of use from domestic garage to
mixed use of office (Use Class B1) and storage (Use Class B8).
This was a planning appeal for non-determination. The appeal is allowed and planning permission
is granted. The Inspectors gave following reasons for allowing the appeal and grants permission for
this development:
a) The site comprises a garage no longer within the same ownership of the house it previously
served, 20 Monks Road.
b) That the development would accord with Policy E5 of the Local Plan, the site would
therefore be suitable for the proposed business use having regard to development plan
policy. H5 that states that planning permission will be granted for business use in residential
areas provided that the proposal will not involve the loss of dwellings or loss of amenity. The
inspector deem there should not be an adverse impact upon highway safety, nor loss of
essential off-street residential parking, and street parking should not significantly increase.
c) The inspector conclude that uses within Class B1 are, by definition, those that can be
carried out within a residential area without detriment to the amenity of that area. Whilst Use
Class B8 has the potential to be disruptive, in this case the small size of the site is unlikely

Page 130

to support levels of activity which would be unacceptably harmful to residents within this
reasonably high-density urban environment.
d) Similarly, given the small scale of the proposal, it is unlikely to cause issues of parking or
congestion within the road network that would be unacceptable or severe. It is noted that the
site is easily accessible by walking, cycling or public transport, and users of the site could
otherwise park in front of its doors.
Further the Inspector concluded that as there are no external changes proposed, the development
would have a negligible effect upon the character and appearance of the area. I noted on site that
the pedestrian door to the garage contains a window providing the internal space with natural light.
There is no evidence that basic amenities, such as a form of toilet facility, could not be provided
within the building for the modest scale of the intended use. Given such, he deemed it to be no
reason to doubt that an adequate working environment could be provided within the building.
Conditions
In the event that the appeal was allowed, the Council requested conditions which the Inspector
have assessed with regard to the tests set out in the National Planning Policy Framework and the
Planning Practice Guidance. Given that the scheme seeks change of use only, he deemed it not
necessary for a condition to confirm approved plans. As the proposal is for a mixed B1 and B8 use,
he deemed it no basis to seek removal of Permitted Development Rights. Similarly, he saw no
compelling reason why any internal works should be controlled. The garage no longer provides
residential parking and, beyond that, no justifiable reason why this proposal should only be
permitted for a temporary period has been provided. Given the findings above, a ‘personal’
permission is not necessary in this case.
4.

New Appeals

4.1 21/0180/FUL – 70 Barley Lane, Exeter
Two storey side extension

Richard Marsh
Liveable Exeter Programme Director and City Development Strategic Lead
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)
Background papers used in compiling the report:
Letters, application files and appeal documents referred to in report are available for inspection
from: City Development, Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter
Contact for enquiries: Democratic Services (Committees) - Room 2.3. Tel: 01392 265275

Page 131

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
REPORT TO:
DATE OF MEETING:
REPORT OF:

PLANNING COMMITTEE
27 MAY 2021
Corporate Manager Democratic and Civic Support

TITLE:

Planning Site Inspections

Is this a Key Decision?
No
Is this an Executive or Council Function?
No
1.

What is the report about?

1.1

To agree a schedule of dates and rota of Members for site inspection parties.

1.2

Normally inspections will commence at 9.30 a.m.

2.
2.1
3.

Recommendations:
that the schedule of dates be approved.
Reason for the recommendation:

3.1

To advice Members in advance of meeting dates

4.

Report Details:
Proposed dates and rota for site inspections are:-

Tuesday 15 June 2021

Councillors Bialyk, Branston and Buswell

Tuesday 13 July 2021

Councillors Denning, Hannaford and Mrs Henson

Tuesday 24 August 2021

Councillors Lights, Martin and M. Mitchell

Tuesday 28 September 2021

Councillors D. Moore, Sparkes and Sutton

Tuesday 30 November 2021

Councillors Morse, Williams and Bialyk

Tuesday 4 January 2022

Councillors Branston, Buswell and Denning

Tuesday 8 February 2022

Councillors Hannaford, Mrs Henson and Lights

Tuesday 15 March 2022

Councillors Martin, M. Mitchell and D. Moore

Tuesday 12 April 2022

Councillors Sparkes, Sutton and Morse

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)
Background Documents – None

CORPORATE MANAGER DEMOCRATIC AND CIVIC SUPPORT
19 MAY 2021

Page 133

This page is intentionally left blank

